ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
THURSDAY, MAY 16, 2024

REGULAR MEETING 6:30 PM
ORANGEVALE COMMUNITY CENTER
6826 HAZEL AVE. ORANGEVALE, CA 95662

NOTE: The Board of Directors may take up any Agenda item at any time, regardless of the order listed. Action
may be taken on any item on the Agenda.

1.

2.

8.1

8.2

8.3

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC DISCUSSION

Any person may address the board upon any subject within the jurisdiction of the Orangevale Recreation
& Park District with each speaker being limited to three minutes. However, the Chairperson can impose
reasonable limitations to the maximum time per person and per agenda item to allow the Board to
complete its business. Any matter that requires action will be referred to staff or committee for a report
and action at a subsequent meeting.

MINUTES
a. Approval of minutes of the Special Meeting on April 16, 2024 (pg. 1-3)
b. Approval of minutes of the Regular Meeting on April 18, 2024 (pg. 4-10)

CORRESPONDENCE
a. Orangevale View April 12, and April 26, 2024 (pg. 11-12)
b. California Parks and Recreation Association Magazine Vol 80, Issue 2 (pg. 13-15)

CONSENT CALENDAR: Reading/Opportunity to Pull Items for Discussion/Board Action

Consent items are considered routine and are intended to be acted upon in one motion, without
discussion. During this portion of the meeting, the Consent Calendar will be read aloud. Prior to approval,
the Chairperson will give the Board, staff, and public the opportunity to pull any item for discussion. The
remaining Calendar will be acted upon. Any pulled items will then be heard and acted upon individually.

CONSENT MATTERS GENERAL FUND

a. Ratification of Claims for April 2024 (pg. 16-17)
b. Budget Status Report for April 2024 (pg. 18-20)
¢. Revenue Report for April 2024 (pg. 21)

OLLAD CONSENT MATTERS
a. Ratification of Claims for April 2024 (pg. 22-23)
b. Budget Status Report for April 2024 (pg. 24-25)

KENNETH GROVE CONSENT MATTERS
a. Ratification of Claims for April 2024 (pg. 26)
b. Budget Status Report for April 2024 (pg. 27)

NON-CONSENT MATTERS GENERAL FUND
a. Ratification of Claims for March 2024 (pg. 28)
b. Ratification of Claims for April 2024 (pg. 29)




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors Agenda
May 16, 2024
Page 2
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Administration & Finance — Minutes from March 9 meeting (pg. 30-31)
b. Maintenance & Operation — No Report
¢. Recreation Committee — No Report
d. Personnel & Policy — Next Meeting Scheduled for May 30
e. Government — No Report
f. Planning Committee — No Report
g. Trails Committee — No Report
h. Ad Hoc — No Report

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
a. Monthly Activity Report — April 2024 (pg. 32-37)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Community Center Roofing Project — Progress Report (pg. 38-43)
Update on playground parts for large playground at OCP

Update on parking lot resealing and restriping projects.

HVCA information

coop

NEW BUSINESS

a. Review Options Playground Retrofit vs Replacement for the Small Playground at Community Center
Park (pg. 44-49)

b. Approval of Resolution 24-05-720 Resolution of Intention to Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-
24, Preliminarily Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of Hearing for the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD) (pg. 50-105)

c. Approval of Resolution 24-05-721 Resolution of Intention to Levy Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023-
24, Preliminarily Approving Engineer’s Report, and Providing for Notice of Hearing for the Kenneth
Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (pg. 106-128)

d. Approval of Resolution 24-05-722, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Preliminary Budget for the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 129-150)

e. Approval of Resolution 24-05-723, Resolution Adopting the Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District (OLLAD) Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 151-158)

f.  Approval of Resolution 24-05-724, Resolution Adopting the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and

Lighting Assessment District (KG) Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/24 (pg. 159-164)

Approval of the First Amendment to the Orangevale Recreation and Park District Beneficiary

Agreement for American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (pg. 165-168)

. Update on projects (verbal)

= o

DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS

ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA

a. Public Hearings for Assessment Districts

b. Salary Schedule

¢. Arcade-Cripple Creek Trail MOU

d. Illness and Injury Prevention Policy Manual Updates

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:
As presiding officer, the Chair has the authority to preserve order at all Board of Directors meetings, to remove

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal,
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive
while addressing said Board, and to enforce the rules of the Board.



Orangevale Rec. & Park District
Board of Directors Agenda
May 16, 2024

Page 3

People with disabilities may request accommodations such as interpreters, alternative formats, or assistance with
physical accessibility. Requests for accommodations must be made with 72 hours prior notice. If you require
accommodations, please contact the Orangevale Recreation & Park District main office at (916) 988-4373.

Directors can be reached at: director@ovparks.com

Sharon Brunberg Manie Meraz Lisa Montes Arica Presinal Mike Stickney



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of Special Meeting of Board of Directors
April 16, 2024

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District was
held on April 16, 2024 at the District Office. Director Stickney called the meeting to order at

6:06 p.m.
Directors present: Stickney, Meraz, Brunberg, Montes, Presinal
Directors absent: None
Staff present: Becky Herz, District Administrator
Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR Superintendent
Horacio Oropeza, Park Superintendent
Jason Bain, Recreation Supervisor
3. PLEDGE OF The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.
ALLEGIANCE
4. APPROVAL OF On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Stickney, the
AGENDA agenda was approved by a vote of 5-0-0 with Directors Stickney,
Presinal, Brunberg, Meraz, and Montes voting Aye. There were no
MOTION #1 Nays or Abstentions.
5. PUBLIC No one wished to address the Board during public discussion.
DISCUSSION

6. CORRESPONDENCE a) 2024 CARPD Conference Scholarship Award (pg. 1)
Admin Hertz advised she has been awarded the CARPD
Conference Scholarship to attend the May 22-25, 2024
Conference. This conference will provide valuable training. This
scholarship will save the District approximately $1,500.

7. NEW BUSINESS a) Approve the Bids for the Driveway & Pathway Projects

Connecting the South Section of Community Center Park with
the North Section of the Park (pg. 2-30): Admin Herz has spoken
with Peter Larimer of MTW regarding this topic. Discrepancies
remain between what the pre-bid contractor stipulates as
necessary versus the engineer’s requirements. Therefore, the RFP
process will likely be necessary. The engineer will assist with the
RFP process to obtain three responsible bids if necessary. Admin
Herz will either provide an engineer approved bid at the May
BOD meeting or RFP three responsible bids at a future BOD
meeting.

Minutes, April 16, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 1



b) Discuss and Prioritize the District’s Capital Improvement and
Capital Replacement Projects (pg. 31-36):

The current FY CIP projects were reviewed:
The plan to move HVAC replacement to FY 24/25 was

discussed. The remaining 2023/24 fiscal year funds can be
utilized for parking resurfacing projects which will be discussed
at the Regular Board of Directors Meeting on Thursday, April 18,
2024. Necessary concrete repairs will be completed at Shady
Oaks, however, in an effort to focus on essential projects, any
additional concrete repairs will be deferred to future fiscal years
for completion. Tennis court maintenance will be moved to a
future fiscal year for completion. The Driveway and
Pathway/Trail project, and the grant funding for the project, will
be moved to the 2024/25 budget.

2024/25 CIP priorities were reviewed:
Repair options for the small playground at the Orangevale

Community Park would likely exceed $15k while replacement
cost would be approximately $40-50k. The Board discussed
options available and agreed to pursue retrofit or replacement of
the small playground. This project is to be prioritized for
2024/25.

Additional top priorities for FY 24/25:

e HVAC units — a minimum of 2 for the Community Center
and 1 for Building 2. A full plan to replace all HVAC at the
Community Center is needed. — High Priority

¢ Purchase of additional AED units — the OV History Museum
will assist by purchasing the AED for the facility they use. —
Level 1

e Purchase of a turbine blower — to assist with additional
maintenance needs once OVparks takes over maintenance of
the ACCT in Sundance and Streng. — Level 1

e Purchase of 2 pool covers — this is in addition to the 2 pool
covers purchased recently. — Level 1

e General playground repairs — will be needed as playground
are aging — Level 1

e Purchasing 1 mower — Level 1. Staff requested a second
mower, but that mower has been moved to Level 2

e Streng Park planning outreach will start in May, but no funds
are being allocated in 24/25 while outreach continues.

e Kenneth Grove improvements will be included in the 24/25
budget due to assessment funds.

Level 2 priorities will include the remaining portion of the
Community Center Roof Replacement, OCCP parking lot repairs,
Streng Park improvements, and Almond Park tot-lot playground
resurfacing. Level 3 priorities include additional concrete repairs
at OCP, outdoor court repairs, the Youth Center roof, repairs to

Minutes, April 16, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 2



parking lots, playgrounds, and restrooms, additional HVAC units,
and additional pool cover replacements. Tennis court repairs will
be postponed until FY 25/26.

The Shade Structure for the Community Center has been moved
to Level 4. A list of priority for repairs and improvements at the
Shady Oaks Disc Golf was created by previous Admin Ross. This
has been moved to Level 4, and the District will revisit this list
and coordinate with the Shady Oaks Disc Golf Club

The long-term Master Plan CIP List was reviewed

The Board of Directors discussed and prioritized a list of projects
to provide to John Isom of Isom Advisors for the wording of the
bond and to determine the amount the District should request in
the bond. Administrator Herz worked with MTW to update the
pricing from the previous planning list. Board Members ranked
items on the list 1-3, and also ranked some items “4” for removal
from the list.

Director Brunberg entered the rankings into the workshop
spreadsheet. Director Brunberg will email the document with
rankings to Admin Herz for presentation to John Isom.

8. DIRECTOR AND No comments were provided.
STAFF COMMENTS

16. CLOSED SESSION a) Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957

District Administrator Employment at 8:05pm.

17. RESUME PUBLIC a) No action was taken. Direction was given to the District
SESSION & Administrator.
ANNOUNCE
ACTIONS FROM
CLOSED SESSION

18. ADJOURNMENT With no further business to discuss, the general meeting of the Board

of Directors was adjourned at 8:52 p.m. On a motion by Director

MOTION #2 Brunberg, seconded by Director Stickney, the adjournment was

approved by a vote of 5-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Presinal,
Brunberg, Meraz, and Montes, voting Aye. There were no Nays or
Abstentions.

Mike Stickney, Chairperson

Minutes, April 16, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 3



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

Minutes of Meeting of Board of Directors

April 18,2024

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District was
held on April 18, 2024 at the District Office. Director Stickney called the meeting to order at

6:33 p.m.

Directors present:
Directors absent:
Staff present:

3. PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF
AGENDA

MOTION #1

5. PUBLIC
DISCUSSION

6. MINUTES

MOTION #2

7. CORRESPONDENCE

MOTION #3

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Stickney, Montes, Presinal

Brunberg, Meraz

Becky Herz, District Administrator

Jennifer Von Aesch, Finance/HR Superintendent
Horacio Oropeza, Park Superintendent

Jason Bain, Recreation Supervisor

The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted.

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Stickney, the
agenda was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney,
Presinal, and Montes voting Aye. There were no Nays or
Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

No one wished to address the Board during public discussion.

Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 21, 2024
(pg 1-9): On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director
Stickney, the minutes were approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with
Directors Stickney, Montes, and Presinal voting Aye. There were
no Nays or Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were
absent.

a) Confidential envelope — Attorney billing for February 2024:

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Stickney,
the Confidential envelope — Attorney billing for February 2024
was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney,
Presinal, and Montes, voting Aye. There were no Nays or
Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

b) Orangevale View March 8. and March 22, 2024 (pg. 10-11):
Admin Herz shared the half page advertisements of upcoming
summer programs as well as the obituary published for Charlie
Clark, previous OVparks Board Member.

- Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 4



8.1.

8.2

8.3.

10.

CONSENT
CALENDAR

MOTION #4

CONSENT
MATTERS
GENERAL FUND

OLLAD
CONSENT
MATTERS

KENNETH GROVE

CONSENT
MATTERS

NON-CONSENT
MATTERS
GENERAL FUND

STANDING
COMMITTEE
REPORTS

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

<)

d)

a)

b)

<)
a)
b)

a)
b)

a)

b)

- Board of Directors Meeting

California Parks and Recreation Association — District 2 Awards
and Installation Banquet Brochure: Cover & page 6 (pg. 12):
Admin Herz shared the professional networking event, attended
by several from OVparks, which honored Recreation Specialist
Kim Vickers as an outgoing Board Member who served a term as
the Recreation Therapist Section Representative for the District
Wide CPRS Board.

Big Day of Service (pg. 13-15): Admin Herz and Supt. Oropeza
to email a link to the Board of Directors to sign up for one of the
OVparks projects available if interested.

Arcade Cripple Creek Trail: Trailblaze Grand Opening (pg. 16):

Director Stickney & Meraz will provide a three minute
presentation on the benefits of trails systems for parks. OVparks
will host a water station at Streng Park with community outreach
on the single-track concept at that site. Director Montes voiced
interest in measuring the trail to potentially coordinate a Sk run
event.

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director
Stickney, the consent calendar was approved by a vote of 3-0-0
with Directors Stickney, Presinal, and Montes, voting Aye.
There were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and
Meraz were absent.

Ratification of Claims for March 2024 (pg 17-18)

Budget Status Report for March 2024 (pg 19-21)
Revenue Report for March 2024 (pg 22)

Ratification of Claims for March 2024 (pg 23-24)
Budget Status Report for March 2024 (pg 25-26)

Ratification of Claims for March 2024 (pg 27)
Budget Status Report for March 2024 (pg 28)

Ratification of Claims for March 2024 (pg. 29)

This agenda item was tabled until the May BOD Meeting.

Administration and Finance: Meeting scheduled for May 9% at
9am.

Maintenance and Operation: No report.

May 16,2024

Page 5



c) Recreation Committee: Minutes from March 21 meeting
(pg. 30-31): Admin Herz reported several events were reviewed.
Four of the events were presented to and approved by the Board
at the March board meeting. An additional event was sent back to
the applicant for discussion of an alternate date for their event.
The applicant has since secured a venue for their event at another
location.

d) Personnel & Policy: Meeting to be scheduled the last week of
May.

e) Government: No report.

f) Planning Committee: No report.

g) Trails Committee: Trails Committee: No report.
h) Ad Hoc: No report.

11. ADMINISTRATOR’S  a) Monthly Activity Report — March 2024 (pg 32-37):

REPORT Admin Herz and Recreation Supervisor Bain attended the CPRS
District 2 Youth and Teen Recreation Services Presentation for its
focus on preschool as the District looks for new ideas to increase
preschool enrollment in the upcoming year.

Admin Herz, Supt. Oropeza, and Supervisor Bain attended meetings
this month with SafeSlide, the Arcade Cripple Creek Ribbon Cutting
team, the Orangevale Rotary regarding the potential shade structure
for the stage at OCC, and planning meetings regarding the Big Day
of Service.

Admin Herz met with the Orangevale History Project to connect with
them regarding the group Wide Open Walls potentially providing a
mural on their Conex box.

Admin Herz, Supt. Oropeza, Supervisor Woodford, and Director
Stickney met with neighbors at the Coyote Court easement to assess
the property. Park Maintenance will be conducting regular cleanups
at the property.

Admin Herz shared photos of the AARP Tax Service, hosted by
OVparks for approximately three months each year, to provide free
tax preparation for seniors in the community.

Admin Herz shared photos of Adventure Camps, Lifeguard Training,
and Pecan Park restroom renovations. The slide renovation at the
pool has been completed and looks great.

Park Supt. Oropeza advised of the Pecan Park restroom renovations
completed which cost approximately $3,200.

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 6



Park Maintenance Staff have been busy with graffiti cleanup on the
fencing and the bridge at Sundance & Streng Parks. Homeless issues
are being addressed as they occur. FEC Park Police may be requested
to provide additional patrols if needed. The City of Citrus Heights is
developing an MOU to address issues that arise at the Arcade-
Cripple Creek Trail. Signage at the trail indicate contacting the City
of Citrus Heights to disseminate maintenance concerns or questions
to the correct entity. At the request of the Board, Admin Herz to have
the OVparks attorney review the draft of the City of Citrus Heights
MOU.

Director Stickney requested Supt. Oropeza research options available
to replace the existing drinking fountain at the Youth Center due to
potential safety issues.

Recreation Supervisor Jason Bain advised of the OVparks Summer
Open House scheduled for Saturday, April 20, 12-1:30pm, to kick-
off the summer program enrollments.

12. UNFINISHED a) Pool Slide repair/restoration (verbal): Admin Herz advised that
BUSINESS this project has been completed and looks beautiful.

b) Written Public Comment Concerning the Sundance Park Entrance
at Coyote Court (pg. 38-63): Admin Herz shared the emails retrieved
regarding the Sundance Park Entrance at Coyote Court with the
Board for review.

13. NEW BUSINESS a) Approve Resolution 24-04-718, Resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Orangevale Recreation & Park District Honoring

Charlie Clark for his Service as a Director on the Board of

Directors and his Dedicated Service to the Community of
Orangevale (pg. 64-65)

On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Stickney,
the Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Orangevale

MOTION #5 Recreation & Park District Honoring Charlie Clark for his
Service as a Director on the Board of Directors and his Dedicated
Service to the Community of Orangevale, was approved by a
vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Montes and Presinal
voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors
Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

b) Approve Resolution 24-04-719. Resolution calling the General
District Election to be consolidated with the presidential General

Election on November 5. 2024 (pg.66-71)

This is paperwork required for general election for three seats
opening up. The incumbents are Directors Stickney, Meraz, and
Montes. Admin Herz will have the associated paperwork signed
by the secretary in a timely manner and filed with the appropriate
government agencies.

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 7



On a motion by Director Montes, seconded by Director Stickney,

MOTION #6 the Resolution calling the General District Election to be
consolidated with the presidential General Election on November
5, 2024, was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors
Stickney, Montes and Presinal voting Aye. There were no Nays
or Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

¢) CARPD Board of Directors Call for Nominations (pg. 72-75)

Admin Herz provided information regarding spots available for
the Board of Directors.

d) Approval of the Purchase of a Wave 140 Robotic Pool Cleaner
(pg.76-77) Purchase of a new pool cleaner was originally slated

for next year. Funding is available in the Equipment and Vehicles
budget for this fiscal year. Purchasing this equipment now will
save staff time during several months of peak season due to a
reduction of manual vacuuming of the pool. Admin Herz thanked
Supervisor Bain for putting the proposal together for this
purchase.

On a motion by Director Presinal, seconded by Director Stickney,
the Approval of the Purchase of a Wave 140 Robotic Pool

MOTION #7 Cleaner from Lincoln Aquatic for the amount of $6,356.44, and
authorize the District Administrator to execute the proposal, was
approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Montes and
Presinal voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions.
Directors Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

e) Approval of the Quotes for Up To Four Parking Lot
Improvement Projects at Orangevale Recreation & Park District
Parks (pg. 78): Each of the four parking lot projects will be
voted on for approval specifying which company to complete the
work and preference of one or two seal coats.

Parking Lot Resurfacing Quotes

Company Almond Pecan Disk Golf Youth Center
Sierra Asphalt $9.175 $5.250 $7.550  $9.775

Add alt. 2 coats $12.775 $8.750 $10.250 $14.625
MGE Grading $13.675 $8.380 $11.768 $18.002

Add alt. 2 coats $19.815 $11.158 $16.768 $26.222

T & S West* * * ol i
*incomplete quotes

Quotes have not been obtained for any additional work at Pecan
Park. If a quote for replacement of the drinking fountain at Youth
Center Park exceeds $5,000, Admin Herz will bring to the Board
for approval at a future BOD meeting.

Minutes, April 18 , 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 8



MOTION #8

MOTION #9

MOTION #10

MOTION #11

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Y

2)

3)

4)

On a motion by Director Presinal, seconded by Director
Stickney, the Sierra Asphalt quote for the Pecan Park parking
lot improvement project to include two coats of sealant, and
direct the District Administrator to execute the proposal, was
approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Montes
and Presinal voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions.
Directors Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

On a motion by Director Presinal, seconded by Director
Stickney, the Sierra Asphalt quote for the Almond Park
parking lot improvement project to include two coats of
sealant, and direct the District Administrator to execute the
proposal, was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors
Stickney, Montes and Presinal voting Aye. There were no
Nays or Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were
absent.

On a motion by Director Presinal, seconded by Director
Stickney, the Sierra Asphalt quote for the Orangevale
Community Shady Oaks Park parking lot improvement
project to include two coats of sealant, and direct the District
Administrator to execute the proposal, was approved by a
vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Montes and Presinal
voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors
Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

On a motion by Director Presinal, seconded by Director
Stickney, the Sierra Asphalt quote for the Youth Center
parking lot improvement project to include two coats of
sealant, and direct the District Administrator to execute the
proposal, was approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors
Stickney, Montes and Presinal voting Aye. There were no
Nays or Abstentions. Directors Brunberg and Meraz were
absent.

Update on projects (verbal):

The roof is currently being replaced at the Orangevale
Community Center. Some dry rot was discovered around
most of the vent areas. The additional cost to repair those
areas will not be significant.

Admin Herz will meet with John Isom from Isom Advisors
tomorrow to review priorities and finalize wording of the
bond. An outreach team will be created to begin sharing the
information with the community. Feedback obtained from the
community will be provided in the June BOD meeting.

Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 9



e Admin Herz has not received a response to the engineer
questions. She will work with Peter Larimer from MTW
Group to go to RFP on the driveway and trails projects.
OVparks will not be charged for any issues already
addressed. This project is anticipated to go out to bid in May
or June.

14. DIRECTOR AND Supervisor Bain advised the pool covers should be received by
STAFF COMMENTS  Memorial Day. Additional pool covers will be purchased after July
1t to be included in the 2024/25 fiscal year.

Finance/HR Supt.Von Aesch advised she is preparing for onboarding
of summer personnel and the upcoming 2024/25 fiscal year budget
finalization.

Parks Supt. Oropeza advised irrigation will be turned on in targeted
areas. He expressed appreciation to the staff and community for all
their assistance in keeping the parks clean and maintained.

Director Stickney mentioned the mowing at the Orangevale
Community Center Park looks especially good.

Director Montes expressed disappointment that she will miss the
OVparks Open House event.

15. ITEMS FOR NEXT a) Preliminary Budget
AGENDA

b) Engineer’s Reports
¢) Small playground replacement at Orangevale Community Park

d) Large playground slide replacement at Orangevale Community
Park

¢) Ratification of Claims for March 2024

16. ADJOURNMENT With no further business to discuss, the general meeting of the Board
of Directors was adjourned at 7:36 p.m. On a motion by Director
MOTION #12 Presinal, seconded by Director Stickney, the adjournment was
approved by a vote of 3-0-0 with Directors Stickney, Presinal, and
Montes, voting Aye. There were no Nays or Abstentions. Directors
Brunberg and Meraz were absent.

Mike Stickney, Chairperson

Minutes, April 18, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 10



Orangevale View, Back Cover - April 12, 2024

8can here for the
OVparks website

One Day OnlyDea\lsrsl

$ass'_¢nl {LJEM 10»-20

Discounts are available on certain | ior
programs and early bird = %ﬂf‘m 2: june 24- July 3 |
registration j ~ Session 3:July 8-18 |

“'.57 n@éﬁi&h'&'ﬂﬂl} zz-m 1

Karate

otc , Aikido
jazzercise Pickieball
Zunibini <o Gnd More
ORANGEVALE VIEW APRIL 12, 2024 M

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 11



Orangevale View - April 26, 2024

CHECK OUT OUR SUMMER EVENTS AND PROGRAMS!

SATURDAY, MAY 117H 9:00AM-3:00PM SRS
ORANGEVALE COMMUNITY CENTER, 6826 HAZEL AVE .
HANDMADE CRAFTS, UNIQUE GIFTS, JEWELRY, AND DIRECT SALES
FROM DVER 30+ VENDORS AT THIS FAMILY-FRIENDLY EVENT.
FREE DOOR PRIZE DRAWINGS EVERY HALF HOUR!

FREE FOR ALL SHOPPERS

0ip YOU MISS THE OVPARKS SUMMER OPEN HOUSE?
NO WORRIES, STILL TIME Y0 SIGN UP FOR OUR SUMMER PROSRAMS
SCAN THE OR CODE TO GET STARTED

Water Polo, NAoTA
Lacrosse Camp, NAolA Chrisimas In july- July 26ih

Softball/Baseball Camp, 1:30-4:00pm
$iot Dog Hoe Down - August 2nd

and more!

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 12



Is it Time to Update
Your Swim Attire Policy?

By Becky Herz, District Administrator, Orangevale Recreation & Park District and Robin Steinshnider, CPRE, Superintendent,
City of Dallas - Park and Recreation Department

Swimming is awesome. You can
swim for fun, fitness, and/or social
connection. Swimming is a lifesaving
skill, a sport, a hobby, and a form

of therapy. You can swim indoors
and outdoors, in pools, rivers, lakes,
and oceans. It is for the young and
the old, the healthy and the healing.
According to interviews conducted
by YouGov', swimming
is the second most
popular physical
activity in America. Yet
despite the countless
lifelong benefits

and popularity of
swimming, there is still
one major barrier to
access faced by many
at public pools across
the country - and it’s
not what you might
think.

It is well documented
that swimming

is connected to

a long history of
institutionalized
sexism, racism, and
classism. As public
swimming pools
evolved and became places of
community, they were also used

as tools to divide. As a nation we
have come a long way over the last
century and we see that progress in
our public swimming pools today,
with people of varying genders,
races, and cultures enjoying a favorite
summer pastime side by side. Yet
there are still those who have been
refused entry, who are on the outside
looking in - those without swimwear.
As a recreation professional, here is
what you need to know and how you
can help.

Overly restrictive swim attire policies
at public aquatic facilities may be
sending the unintended message
that “you are not welcome here” to
those who don’t have access to or
feel comfortable wearing traditional
swimwear. Many aquatic facilities still
post “swimsuit only” signs, and while
many may not experience complaints

Photo: Craig Pattenaude, Cosumnes Community Services District

or challenges to their rules, they

are making the facility inhospitable
to much of their community. A
reoccurring challenge in equity work
is to move beyond solely working
with the people who ARE showing
up to your programs and facilities
into an approach that looks for
ways to reach out to those who are
NOT showing up due to barriers. To
help make swimming accessible to
everyone, and reduce the barrier
that swimwear can present, consider
updating the swim attire portion of
your pool rules.

34 CALIFORNIA PARKS & RECREATION | SPRING 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Board of Directors Meeting

May 16,2024

An anything-goes approach to swim
attire is unlikely to work at a public
facility due to patron safety and
facility concerns. You don’t want to
allow clothing that poses a danger
to swimmers, such as restrictive
clothing that impedes movement or
excessively loose garments that can
become an entanglement hazard.
Nor do you want to
allow clothing that
can damage the water
circulation system

or amenities such as
slides. An inclusive
swim attire policy
keeps health and
safety as priority,

but then takes

into consideration
socioeconomic,
culture, religion,
gender, gender
identity, health
status, disability,
mental health, and
dysphoria challenges.
Let’s consider a brief
overview of some

of these possible
barriers: Swimsuits
can be expensive, and
out-of-reach financially for people
with socio-economic challenges.
Some cultures and religions have
specific clothing and/or modesty
specifications that are not met with
most swimsuits. Traditional swimsuits
are very gender specific, and they
do not provide sufficient options for
community members who are non-
binary and transgender. Swimsuits
expose much of the body and skin,
which can be problematic for people
experiencing a variety of health
concerns and conditions including
lupus, Bloom syndrome, rosacea,

Page 13



cancer, and for people who are
taking medication that causes sun
sensitivity. The exposed nature of
swimsuits can also be prohibitive
to people with body dysphoria,
and those who are simply more
modest.

To update your swimwear policy,
we recommend you start by
establishing clear goals such

as: patron safety, facility care,
inclusion, and reducing public
confusion. Next, identify clothing
you plan to allow in your aquatics
facility. Of course, swimsuits,
board shorts, and rash guards

will be on this list. Also consider
other items that promote inciusion
such as Burkinis (full coverage
clothing designed specifically

for swimming), sports bras and
basketball shorts (clothing made
from similar materials as swimsuits

but designed for other sports)

and trans-tape (a medical-grade
water-proof tape that flattens and
covers the chest of transgender
individuals). We recommend that
you permit a variety of options to
maximize the inclusion component
of your policy.

Next, identify clothing you cannot
allow at your facility such as:
cut-off jeans, soiled clothing,

and regular diapers. Check with
your health department so you
are fully aware of items that

pose a public health risk. Prohibit
clothing that impedes swimmer
safety and facility cleanliness.
Follow up with clarifying the gray
areas. Ask questions such as “Will
cotton clothing effect my filtration
system?”, “Are loose fitting t-shirts
a drowning or entanglement
hazard on our diving board?” and

YES- Water Socks,
Swim Diapers

AAp

YES- Rashguards,
Clean Workout Attire

YES- Swim Suits, Speedo,
Swim Shorts, Swim Skirts

i

YES- Burkinis, T-Shirts,
Wet Suits, Transtape

NO- Jeans, Shorts, Cut-Offs,
Sweatpants, Street Clothes

NO- Boxers, Bras,
Underwear, Thangs, Nudity

NO- Seiled Clothing, Baggy Clothing, Regular Diapers,
Zippers, Metal, Grommets

Orangevale Recreation & Park District
posts their swimwear policy on their website.
Find it here: www.ovparks.com

CREATIVITY IN DESIGN AND EXCELLENCE IN CUSTOMER SERVICE
FOR THE PARKS & RECREATIONAL PROFESSIONALS OF CALIFORNIA

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

ARCHITERRA
DESIGN GROUP

. ,' LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE AND PLANNING

909-484-2800
ARCHITERRADESIGNGROUP.COM

REGISTERED LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT CALIFORNIA #2834

CALIFORNIA PARKS & RECREATION | SPRING 2024 35

May 16,2024

Page 14



We know that JED! work can be challenging - and the journey of updating your swim attire
policy may include hurdles, push-back, and challenges. We also know that as Recreation
Professionals we are in a wonderful position to improve access to swimming for everyone.

“Do we want to allow water socks
and/or water shoes?” Remember
that you are developing a swim attire
policy that is unique to your facility
and your community, and there are
likely to be differences in regulations
amongst facilities, even those that
share the goal of inclusion.

Once you have a comprehensive
list of types of attire permitted

and prohibited at your facility,

you are ready to draft your policy.
Make sure it includes a point of
contact / responsible person who
fully understands the guidelines
and can resolve any customer
concerns. Take a draft of your
policy to your front-line staff, facility
maintenance team, and community
stakeholders for feedback. Then,
once your inclusive swim attire
policy is complete and you have

received any required agency
approval, make sure you share it
with your staff (for implementation)
and your community (for inclusive
outreach). Using outreach tools
such as signage, websites, and social
media will help inform people who
may have been avoiding swimming
at your facility due to swimwear
concerns that you are striving to
create an inclusive environment. To
embrace an additional component
of inclusion, consider creating a sign
with pictures to help community
members navigate possible language
and written word challenges.

As you update your swim attire
policy, consider other areas where
swimwear may create a barrier

such as swim team rules and staff
uniforms. Reviewing your aquatics
programs with a JEDI! lens and

Interested in exploring more topics like this?
Join the conversation on the CPRS JEDI Community page at cprs.org/jedijusticeequitydiversityinclusion/home.

in 2022, we took the monumental step of forming the CPRS Justice, Equity, Diversity and
inclusion (JEDI) counsel, a permanent standing committee approved by the CPRS Board of

adjusting your policies to inclusion
will help dismantie the historical
inequalities in swimming.

We know that JEDI work can be
challenging - and the journey of
updating your swim attire policy

may include hurdles, push-back, and
challenges. We also know that as
Recreation Professionals we are ina
wonderful position to improve access
to swimming for everyone. We see
you - and we appreciate you!

Becky and Robin are part of the
NRPA JEDI Quick-Guide Team - and
the public release of their first Quick-
Guide: “Developing an Inclusive
Swimwear Policy” is anticipated this
spring. Becky is also a member of
the CPRS JEDI Counsel and will be
teaching a workshop on inclusive
policy development at the JEDI
Academy in Oakland on May 2-3. R

https://today.yougov.com/ratings/society/
popularity/physical-activities/all

JEDI Virtual Roundtables

Join the JEDI Counsel and fellow
park & recreation professionals for
free quarterly virtual round-table
discussions. All are welcome,
membership not required.

Wednesday, June 12, 12 - 1 p.m.
Interrupting Bias

Tuesday, August 27,12 - 1 p.m.
LGBTQ+ Representation in
Recreation
cprs.org/resources/jedicounsel

Directors. The JEDI Counsel’s mission is to: Champion Justice, Equity, Diversity and Inclusion
and empower CPRS members to incorporate these values within communities. Our Counsel is
made up of 18 counselors representing various locations, job focuses, backgrounds, and more.
Learn more about the Counsel and opportunities to get involved on the CPRS website at www.
cprs.org/resources/jedicounsel.

36 CALIFORNIA PARKS & RECREATION | SPRING 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

May 16, 2024

Page 15



GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

CLAIM # |[ACCOUNT # VENDOR 'DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907189812| 20202100 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT BOOKS/PERIODICALS 76.00]
1907189812 20202900 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT BUSINESS/CONFERENCE EXPENSES 80.00|
1907183316 20203900 |EMI RUTKOWSKI - EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 8.04}
1907184892 20203900 'SUSAN MYREN ~ |[EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 93.13
1907189599 20203900 |REBECCA HERZ EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 95.14
1907189685 20203900 |JULIANNACHAVEZ EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION | 1253
1907189584 20203900 |JADE VON AESCH ~ |[EMPLOYEE TRANSPORTATION 18.56
) - B - 227.40
1907194170 20206100 |CALIF PARK & RECREATION S ~ [MEMBERSHIP DUES ~ 900.00
1907189812, 20207600 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT OFFICE SUPPLIES - ~ 80.70
1907189812 20208102 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT STAMPS 215.20
1907184847 20208500 |PRINT PROJECT MANAGERS IN PRINTING SERVICES 2,521.35
1907194180, 20208500 PRINT PROJECT MANAGERS IN PRINTING SERVICES 2,934,57
1907199131 20208500  PRINT PROJECT MANAGERS IN PRINTING SERVICES 2,934.57

| o 8,390.49
1907188958 20219700 |[T-MOBILEUSAINC ~ |TELEPHONE SERVICES L 27.45
1907194132| 20219700 |COMCAST TELEPHONE SERVICES 536.14
1907194131| 20219700 |COMCAST TELEPHONE SERVICES ) 525.99
1907189812| 20219700 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT TELEPHONE SERVICES 1 45231
| 1,541.89

1907194182| 20226200 |JJR ENTERPRISES INC OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE € 202.18
1907189492| 20231400 ' BLACK DOG GRAPHICS INC CLOTHING/PERSONAL SUPPLIES 280.27
1907191494| 20257100 |BRAVO SECURITY SERVICES SECURITY SERVICES 188.00
1907194167, 20257100 |BRAVO SECURITY SERVICES SECURITY SERVICES 188.00
) 376.00

1907189498 20259100 |B AND P SECURITY INC OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 365.00
1907189496 20259100 |STREAMLINE SOFTWARE INC OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 200.00
B - 565.00

1907194183 20259101 |N3X MSP INC - IT SERVICES 1,314.00|
1907194183 20281202 |N3X MSP INC SOFTWARE 498.00
1907183302] 20285100 | TERRY MASTEN RECREATIONAL SERVICE 168.00
1907184850/ 20285100 |[KYLAHBOOTH - RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~400.00
1907184860 20285100 |GAIL KENNEY ~ |RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 306.60
1907184852 20285100 |CORDOVA RECREATION & PARK RECREATIONAL SERVICES 425.00
1907184873| 20285100 |SHAUNA LEMAY RECREATIONAL SERVICES 325.00
1907184890 20285100 |SHAUNA LEMAY B RECREATIONAL SERVICES 412.75
1907184891 20285100 |SHAUNA LEMAY RECREATIONAL SERVICES 380.25
1907189544 20285100 |ADRIAAN JANSEN VAN VUUREN  |RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~1,842.90
1907189532 20285100 |ALLGOOD DRIVING SCHOOL RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 14790
1907189534 20285100 |YMCA OF SUPERIOR CALIFORN RECREATIONAL SERVICES 392.00
1907189527 20285100 |ALISON LLOYD ) RECREATIONAL SERVICES 572.00
1907189541 20285100 |STEPHANIE TADLOCK RECREATIONAL SERVICES 408.00
1907189502 20285100 |RESCUE TRAINING INSTITUTE RECREATIONAL SERVICES 192.50
1907189500 20285100 |GAIL KENNEY  |RECREATIONAL SERVICES ~ 555.60
1907189533 20285100 |TERRY HOWARD RECREATIONAL SERVICES | 13230
1907189499 20285100 |CHRISTIAN MARLER RECREATIONAL SERVICES 400.00

Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 16



GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

CLAIM # |ACCOUNT # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907189551 20285100 TERRY MASTEN RECREATIONAL SERVICES 252.00
1907189554 20285100 |STEVEN MIRANDA - RECREATIONAL SERVICES 1,391.65
1907189546 20285100 |BRENDAN CHASE RECREATIONAL SERVICES 4,385.80
1907189812| 20285100 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT RECREATIONAL SERVICES 119.99
1907194185 20285100 |KARI MASTERS B RECREATIONAL SERVICES 800.00
1907194186| 20285100 |LAUREN BAYHA RECREATIONAL SERVICES 800.00
1907194184| 20285100 |BRYAN SAVEA RECREATIONAL SERVICES 400.00
1907199132 20285100 |NADERA SHOMAN-ATAYA RECREATIONAL SERVICES il 800.00

B 16,010.24
1907183309 20285200 LIFE-ASSIST INC RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES - 227.03|
1907189812 20285200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES 757.21
1907189812 20285200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT TAX ACCRUAL 10.76
1907194138| 20285200 |CAPITAL ONE NA RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES 67.57
o I 1,062.57
111202996 | 20296200 |SACRAMENTO COUNTY QR BILLING APR-2024 ORANGEVALE | 5.25
1907184845 30322000 |FIRST CITIZENS BANK & TRU BOND/LOAN REDEMPTION 366.35
1907200250 30322000 FIRST CITIZENS BANK & TRU BOND/LOAN REDEMPTION 366.35
. 732.70
1907191493 50557100 |STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINGERPRINT SERVICES 64.00
——— —

1
Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 17



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
APRIL 2024

Account Budgeted Current |Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 Expenditure Date Available |% Left
1000 SALARIES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
10111000 Salaries & Wages, Regular 1,012,000.00f 81,638.06 806,745.43 205,254.57 20%
10112100 Salaries & Wages, Extra Help 405,000.00{ 17,192.21 296,024.21 108,975.79 27%
10112400 Salaries, Board members 12,000.00 900.00 7,500.00 4,500.00 38%
10121000 Retirement 324,000.00 24,580.82 252,523.85 71,476.15 22%
10122000 Social Security 107,500.00 7,526.56 84,204.64 23,295.36 22%
10123000 Group Insurance 265,500.00] 25,729.88 217,800.84 47,699.16 18%
10124000 Worker's Comp. Ins 49,300.00 51,708.00 (2,408.00) -5%
10125000 Unemployment Insurance 8,000.00 349.10 6,357.09 1,642.91 21%
10128000 Health Care/Retirees 0.00 - 0.00 [#DIV/0!

SUB-TOTAL 2,183,300.00] 157,916.63 | 1,722,864.06 | 460,435.94 | 21%
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
20200500 Advertise/Legal Notices 2,200.00 56.77 2,143.23 97%
20202100 Books/Periodicals/Subscrip 3,000.00 76.00 1,348.92 1,651.08 55%
20202900 Business/Conference Expense 3,500.00 80.00 1,585.36 1,914.64 55%
20203500 Education/Training Serv. 3,000.00 1,530.00 1,470.00 49%
20203600 Education /Training Supplies 500.00 178.26 321.74 64%
20203700 Tuition Reimbursement 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203800 Employee Recognition 2,300.00 2,065.81 234.19 10%
20203802 Recognition Items 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203803 Recognition Events 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20203900 Employee Transportation 2,800.00 227.40 1,713.08 1,086.92 39%
20205100 Liability Insurance 136,100.00 116,213.67 19,886.33 15%
20205500 Rental Insurance 0.00 - 0.00 |#DIV/0!
20206100 Membership Dues 14,600.00 900.00 14,164.05 435.95 3%
20207600 Office Supplies 6,200.00 80.70 5,086.19 1,113.81 18%
20207602 Signs 500.00 195.19 304.81 61%
20207603 Keys 300.00 - 300.00 100%
20208100 Postal Services 7,500.00 4,630.00 2,870.00 38%
20208102 Stamps 1,600.00 215.20 1,537.99 62.01 4%
20208500 Printing Services 26,000.00 8,390.49 17,307.83 8,692.17 33%
20210300 Agricultural/Horticultural Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20210400 Agricultural/Horticultural Supply 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20211200 Building Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20212200 Chemicals 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20213100 Electrical Maint. Service 400.00 - 400.00 100%
20213200 Electrical Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20214100 Land Improv. Maint. Services 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20214200 Land Improv. Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20215100 Mechanical System Maint. Ser 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20215200 Mechanical System Maint. Sup 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20216200 Painting Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20216700 Plumbing Maint. Service 400.00 - 400.00 100%
20216800 Plumbing Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20218100 Irrigation Services 500.00 - 500.00 100%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 18



Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Account Budgeted Current [Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 Expenditure Date Available |[% Left
20218200 Irrigation Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20218500 Permit Charges 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 | 100%
20219100 Electricity 500.00 - 500.00 [ 100%
20219200 Natural Gas / LPG/ Fuel Oil 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20219300 Refuse Collection / Disposal Servic 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20219500 Sewage Disposal Service 500.00 - 500.00 [ 100%
20219700 Telephone Service 15,500.00 1,541.89 15,389.94 110.06 1%
20219800 Water 1,000.00 35.64 964.36 96%
20219900 Telephone System Maint. 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20220500 Automotive Maint. Service 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20220600 Automotive Maint. Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20221200 Construction Equip Maint Sup 500.00 - 500.00 [ 100%
20222600 Expendable Tools 500.00 - 500.00 [ 100%
20223600 Fuel & Lubricants 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20226100 Office Equip Maint Service 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20226200 Office Equip Maint Supplies 3,000.00 202.18 1,526.47 1,473.53 49%
20227500 Rents/Leases Equipment 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20228100 Shop Equip Maint Service 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20228200 Shop Equip Maint Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20229100 Other Equip Maint Service 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20229200 Other Equip Maint Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20231400 Clothing/Personal Supplies 2,000.00 280.27 795.80 1,204.20 60%
20232100 Custodial Services 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 | 100%
20232200 Custodial Supplies 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20244300 Medical Services 400.00 29.84 370.16 93%
20250500 Accounting Services 7,000.00 6,281.60 718.40 10%
20250700 Assessment/Collection Service 19,500.00 9,467.24 10,032.76 51%
20252500 Engineering Services 6,000.00 - 6,000.00 100%
20253100 Legal Services 15,000.00 378.00 14,622.00 97%
20256200 Transcribing Services 0.00 - 0.00 |#DIV/0!
20257100 Security Services 4,000.00 376.00 1,837.00 2,163.00 54%
20259100 Other Professional Services 22,400.00 565.00 11,739.52 10,660.48 48%
20259101 Computer Consultants 14,500.00 1,314.00 11,466.00 3,034.00 21%
20281201 PC Hardware 6,000.00 1,989.07 4,010.93 67%
20281202 PC Software 6,000.00 498.00 4,980.00 1,020.00 17%
20281203 PC Supplies 2,000.00 50.00 1,950.00 98%
20281900 Elections 0.00 - 0.00 |#DIV/0!
20285100 Recreational Services 204,500.00 16,534.24 134,213.42 70,286.58 34%
20285200 Recreational Supplies 37,000.00 1,062.57 28,772.72 8,227.28 22%
20289800 Other Operating Exp - Supplies 2,000.00 3,638.89 (1,638.89)] -82%
20289900 Other Operating Exp - Services 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20291100 System Development Services 3,300.00 2,246.65 1,053.35 32%
20296200 GS Parking Charges 200.00 5.25 63.00 137.00 69%
"SUB-TOTAL 603,200.00 32,349.19 402,513.92| 200,686.08 33%
3000 OTHER CHARGES
30321000 Interest Expense 27,730.00 27,722.50 7.50 0%
30322000 Bond/Loan Redemption 44,200.00 732.70 43,711.10 488.90 1%
30345000 Taxes/Licenses/Assess Trans 1,600.00 18.77 1,581.23 99%
SUB-TOTAL 73,530.00 732.70 71,452.37 2,077.63 3%
Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 19




Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

Account Budgeted Current | Expeditures to Funds

Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 Expenditure Date Available |% Left

4000 FIXED ASSETS

41410100 Land 0.00 - 0.00

42420200 Struc. & Improvements 1,152,000.00 562,655.19 589,344.81 51%

43430300 Vehicles/Equipment 30,000.00 23,000.00 7,000.00 23%
SUB-TOTAL 1,182,000.00 - 585,655.19 596,344.81 50%

5000 INTERFUND CHARGES

50557100 Fingerprinting Service 2,500.00 64.00 1,216.00 1,284.00 51%
SUB-TOTAL 2,500.00 64.00 1,216.00 1,284.00 51%

79790100 Contingency Appropriations 200,000.00 - 200,000.00 0%

Deposit into Reserves 0.00 - 0.00 0%
GRAND TOTAL 4,244,530.00 | 191,062.52| 2,783,701.54 | 1,460,828.46 34%
Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 20




ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

REVENUE STATEMENT
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
APRIL 2024
Account 2023/2024 | Realized | Collection YTD
Number [Revenue Account Budgeted This YTD Uncollected %

Revenue Period Balance Balance | Collected
91910100 |Prop. Taxes - Current Secured 1,692,800 915,833.19| 776,966.81 54.10%
91910200 |Prop. Taxes - Current Unsecured 55,800 59,921.29 -4,121.29 107.39%
91910300 |Supplemental Taxes Current 44,000 5,347.34 19,979.87 24,020.13| 45.41%
91910400 |Prop. Taxes Sec. Delinquent 10,900 13,383.02 -2,483.02| 122.78%
91910500 |Prop. Taxes Supp. Deling. 2,500 4,444.39 -1,944.39| 177.78%
91910600 |Unitary Current Secured 14,800 9,521.09 5,278.91 64.33%

91910800 |Prior Year Supple-Deling - 0.00 0.00

91910900 |Education Rev. Augment. Fund - 0.00 0.00

91911000 |Prop. Tax - Sec. Deling. Roll - 0.00 0.00
91912000 |Prop. Tax - Sec. Redemption 140 0.00 140.00 0.00%
91913000 |Prop. Tax Prior - Unsecured 900 385.11 514.89| 42.79%
91914000 |Penalty Costs - Prop. Tax 500 146.53 353.47 29.31%

91919900 |Taxes - Other - _ 0.00 0.00
SUB-TOTAL TAXES 9100 1,822,340 | 5,347.34| 1,023,614.49| 798,725.51 56.17%
94941000 |Interest Income 14,500 | 16,710.00 31,017.00 -16,517.00| 213.91%
94942900 |Building Rental Other 130,000 | 16,977.52] 114,107.97 15,892.03| 87.78%
94943900 |Cell Tower Leases 47,000 35,894.33 11,106.67| 76.37%
94944800 |Rec.Concessions Final 9 21,000 14,371.93 6,628.07 68.44%

94945900 |Other Vending Devices = 0.00 0.00

94949000 |Concessions - Other - 0.00 0.00
95952200 |Homeowner Prop. Tax Relief 13,000 6,064.56 6,935.44 46.65%
95952900 |In-Lieu Taxes 424,000 114,660.90| 309,339.10] 27.04%

95959504 |Fiscal Relief for Independent Special Di§ - 0.00 0.00

95956900 |State Aid - Other Misc. Programs - 0.00 0.00
96963313 |Miscellaneous Fees 1,000 807.55 192.45 80.76%
96964600 |Recreation Service Charges 585,000 | 98,524.37| 375,409.06| 209,590.94| 64.17%
96969700 |Security Services 1,000 17.41 982.59 1.74%

96969903 |Sponsorships/Scholarships - 0.00 0.00
97973000 |Donations & Contributions 2,300 3,550.00 -1,250.00| 154.35%

97973200 |Recreation Contributions - 0.00 0.00

97973300 |Orangevale Clubs - 0.00 0.00
97974000 |Insurance Proceeds 270 0.00 270.00 0.00%
97979000 |Revenue - Other 201,400 201,875.65 -475.65| 100.24%
SUB-TOTAL OTHER MISC. INCOME | 1,440,470 | 132,211.89| 897,776.36 | 542,693.64 62.33%
TOTAL BUDGET AMOUNT 3,262,810| 137,559.23| 1,921,390.85| 1,341,419.15 58.89%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 21




OLLAD EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

CLAM# | ACCOUNT # [VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907189812 | 20207600 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  |OFFICE SUPPLIES 22.58
1907191417 | 20207603 |AMERICAN RIVER ACE HARDWA |KEYS 12.92
1907183126 | 20210300 |NORTHERN CALIFORNIA INALL  |AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SERVICES 412,50
1907194147 | 20210300 |NORTHERN CALIFORNIA INALL  |AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SERVICES|  412.50

825.00

. |
1907183264 | 20210400 |NUTRIEN AG SOLUTIONS INC AGRICULTURAL/HORTICULTURAL SUPPLIES 619.57
1907183260 | 20211200 |INDUSTRIAL PLUMBING SUPPL _ |BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & MATER 1,211.62
1907181998 | 20211200 |LOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & MATER  1,111.60
1907191417 | 20211200 |AMERICAN RIVER ACE HARDWA |BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & MATER 426.17
1907189812 | 20211200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  |BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & MATER 150.83
1907199063 | 20211200 |LOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & MATER 56.20
| 2,956.42
1907183152 | 20212200 |SCP DISTRIBUTORSLLC CHEMICAL SUPPLIES . 512.00
1907189010 | 20212200 |AQUA SOURCE INC CHEMICAL SUPPLIES 575.83
1907189007 | 20212200 |AQUA SOURCE INC ~ |CHEMICAL SUPPLIES 5,973.66
7,061.49
1907199130 | 20214100 |VON AESCH, COREY LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SERVIC|  300.00
1907183253 | 20214200 |CSLS INC LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLII 385.43
1907181998 | 20214200 |LOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLII 75.55
1907191417 | 20214200 | AMERICAN RIVER ACE HARDWA |LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLII 75.59
1907189812 | 20214200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  [LAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLII 800.92
1907199063 | 20214200 |LOWES BUSINESS ACCOUNT ILAND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLI| 338.45
f 1,675.94
1907199074 | 20215100 |KENDRICK BOILER WORKS INC  |MECHANICAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES 525.00
1907191417 | 20216800 |AMERICAN RIVER ACE HARDWA |PLUMBING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 7.53
1907189812 | 20218200 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  [IRRIGATION SUPPLIES B 19.35
1907188942 | 20219100 |SMUD ELECTRICITY 5,426.84
1907188957 | 20219200 |PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC NATURAL GAS/LPG/FUEL OIL 4,931.31
1907188892 | 20219300 |ALLIED WASTE SERVICES OF REFUSE COLLECTION/DISPOSAL SERVICES 1,733.31]
1907182016 | 20219500 |COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES 819.46
1907188955 | 20219500 |COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES 841.93
1907191490 | 20219500 |AREA PORTABLE SERVICES IN | SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES - 171.58
1907191488 | 20219500 |AREA PORTABLE SERVICES IN _ [SEWAGE DISPOSAL SERVICES 171.58
i o 2,004.55
1907182017 | 20219800 |ORANGEVALE WATER COMPANY \WATER - ~1,785.22
1907188961 | 20219800 |SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT WATER o 420.31
1907189812 | 20219800 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT  |WATER | nas
B ' 1 2,276.66
1907183141 | 20220500 |NAZIR GROUP ~ AUTOMAINTENANCE SERVICES ~ 350.14
1907189011 | 20220500 |NAZIR GROUP - AUTO MAINTENANCE SERVICES ~ 600.00
. ) o 950.14
1907189008 | 20220600 |GENUINE PARTSCO AUTO MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES | 1238

|

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 22



OLLAD EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

1907199071 20222600 |GORDON COOK ~ |EXPENDABLE TOOLS - 1,443.83
1907189812 | 20223600 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT FUEL/LUBRICANTS - ~ 1,399.60
1907183254 | 20228200 | TURF STAR INC - SHOP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 938.25
1907189006 | 20228200 |GOLD COUNTRY TRACTORINC |SHOP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 83.00
1907189006 | 20228200 |GOLD COUNTRY TRACTORINC | TAXACCRUAL 0.39
1907191417 | 20228200 | AMERICAN RIVER ACE HARDWA |SHOP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES| 117.87

1907199076 | 20228200 |TURF STAR INC SHOP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 60.35
1907199076 | 20228200 TURF STARINC TAX ACCRUAL 0.01

— o 1,199.87
1907189009 | 20229100 |KENDRICK BOILER WORKS INC  |OTHER EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICE| 493.75
1907188962 | 20231400 |UNIFIRST CORPORATION CLOTHING/PERSONAL SUPPLIES 78.32
1907183117 | 20232200 |HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAIN CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 326.40
1907188962 | 20232200 |UNIFIRST CORPORATION CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 160.16
1907189005 | 20232200 |HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAIN CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 312.58
S 799.14
1907183130 | 20259100 |FULTON-EL CAMINO REC & PA OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,780.50
1907188988 | 20259100 |NEIGHBORLY PEST MANAGEMEN |OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 186.00
2,966.50
1907191492 | 20289800 ‘W W GRAINGER OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES SUPPLIES 308.65
1907191486 | 42420200 |DALE COOPERLLC ~ |STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 11,439.00
1907191487 | 42420200 DALE COOPERLLC STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 11,439.00
- 22,878.00
L— . , = N — |
— ) i _— — B B I_ — c—
|
- Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 23



ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - OLLAD ASSESSMENT
BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
APRIL 2024
Account Budgeted Current | Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 Expenditure Date Available |% Left
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES

20203500  |Education/Training Service 3,000.00 340.00 2,660.00 89%
20206100 |Membership Dues 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20207600 |Office Supplies 500.00 22.58 22.58 477.42 95%
20207602 |Signs 1,000.00 412.95 587.05 59%
20207603  |Keys 800.00 12.92 506.24 293.76 37%
20210300  |Agricultural/Horticultural Service 12,500.00 825.00 5,237.50 7,262.50 58%
20210400 |Agricultural/Horticultural Supply 12,000.00 619.57 4,001.79 7,998.21 67%
20211200  |Building Maint. Supplies 9,000.00 2,956.42 6,167.91 2,832.09 31%
20212200 |Chemicals 56,000.00 7,061.49 34,738.99 21,261.01 38%
20213100 |Electrical Maint. Service 4,000.00 1,793.00 2,207.00 55%
20213200 |Electrical Maint. Supplies 1,500.00 946.02 553.98 37%
20214100 |Land Improv. Maint. Service 47,000.00 300.00 1,000.00 46,000.00 98%
20214200 |Land Improv. Maint. Supplies 34,000.00 1,675.94 21,498.96 12,501.04 37%
20215100 |Mechanical System Maint. Ser 9,000.00 525.00 782.50 8,217.50 91%
20215200 |Mechanical System Maint. Sup 3,000.00 1,184.72 1,815.28 61%
20216200  [Painting Supplies 1,500.00 716.86 783.14 52%
20216700 [Plumbing Maint. Service 1,000.00 300.00 700.00 70%
20216800 |Plumbing Maint. Supplies 2,300.00 7.53 1,208.59 1,091.41 47%
20218100 |Irrigation Service 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 100%
20218200 [Irrigation Supplies 16,000.00 19.35 7,847.47 8,152.53 51%
20218500  [Permit Charges 4,000.00 4,075.00 (75.00) -2%
20219100 |Electricity 73,000.00 5,426.84 55,719.84 17,280.16 24%
20219200 [Natural Gas / LPG/ Fuel Oil 40,000.00 4,931.31 13,514.06 26,485.94 66%
20219300 |Refuse Collection / Disposal Servic 23,000.00 1,733.31 15,975.55 7,024.45 31%
20219500 |Sewage Disposal Service 14,200.00 2,004.55 12,248.62 1,951.38 14%
20219700 |Telephone System 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100%
20219800 |Water 66,000.00 2,276.66 49,986.94 16,013.06 24%
20219900 Telephone System Maintenance 1,500.00 666.00 834.00 56%
20220500 |Auto Maintenance Service 4,000.00 950.14 2,138.83 1,861.17 47%
20220600 |Auto Maintenance Supplies 5,300.00 12.38 2,996.74 2,303.26 43%
20221200 |Construction Equip. Maint. Sup. 500.00 - 500.00 100%
20222600 |Expendable Tools 2,500.00 1,443.83 1,478.29 1,021.71 41%
20223600  |Fuel & Lubricants 24,000.00 1,399.60 16,111.03 7,888.97 33%
20227500 |Rent/Lease Equipment 3,500.00 1,397.53 2,102.47 60%
20228100  |Shop Equip. Maint. Service 1,500.00 1,192.32 307.68 21%
20228200 |Shop Equip. Maint. Supplies 7,500.00 1,199.87 7,036.49 463.51 6%
20229100  |Other Equip. Maint. Service 1,500.00 493.75 1,528.25 (28.25) -2%
20229200  |Other Equip. Maint. Supplies 2,500.00 1,131.94 1,368.06 55%
20231400 |Clothing/Personal Supplies 3,500.00 78.32 1,949.12 1,550.88 44%
20232100 |Custodial Service 0.00 - 0.00 |#DIV/0!
20232200 |Custodial Supplies 18,000.00 799.14 14,006.44 3,993.56 22%
20250500 |Accounting Services 3,400.00 3,452.80 (52.80) -2%
20252500  |Engineering Services 15,100.00 4,515.00 10,585.00 70%
20253100 |Legal Services 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 100%
20257100 |Security Services 26,000.00 11,412.88 14,587.12 56%
20259100  |Other Professional Services 38,000.00 2,966.50 10,762.68 27,237.32 72%
20289800  |Other Operating Expenses Sup. 17,500.00 308.65 1,825.96 15,674.04 90%

SUB-TOTAL 623,600.00 40,050.65 323,828.39| 299,771.61 48%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 24




Account Budgeted Current | Expeditures to Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 | Expenditure Date Available |% Left
3000 OTHER CHARGES
30321000 |[Interest Expense 0.00 - 0.00 0%
30322000 |Bond/Loan Redemption 0.00 - 0.00 0%
30345000 |Taxes/Licenses/Assess Trans 1,300.00 1,100.84 199.16 15%
SUB-TOTAL 1,300.00 - 1,100.84 199.16 15%
4000 FIXED ASSETS
42420200  |Struc. & Improvements 474,000.00{ 22,878.00 351,223.89 122,776.11 26%
43430300 |Equipment 95,000.00 - 95,000.00 100%
SUB-TOTAL 569,000.00| 22,878.00 351,223.89 217,776.11 0%
GRAND TOTAL 1,193,900.00 62,928.65 676,153.12| 517,746.88 43%
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 25



KENNETH GROVE EXPENDITURES

FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

CLAIM # ACCOUNT # [VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907182017 20219800 |ORANGEVALE WATER COMPANY WATER 31.60]
1907189812 20223600 |US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIAT FUEL/LUBRICANTS 229.52

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 26



BUDGET EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT - KENENTH GROVE ASSESSMENT

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
APRIL 2024
Account Budgeted Current Expeditures Funds
Number Expenditure Account 2023/2024 | Expenditures to Date Available |% Left
2000 SERVICES & SUPPLIES
20200500  |Advertise/Legal Notices 400.00 - 400.00 | 100%
20207600  |Office Supplies 100.00 20.00 80.00 80%
20207602  |Signs 50.00 - 50.00 | 100%
20210300  |Agricultural/Horticultural Service 500.00 - 500.00 | 100%
20210400 |Agricultural/Horticultural Supplies 80.00 - 80.00 | 100%
20219800  [Water 750.00 31.60 522.53 22747 30%
20223600  |Fuel & Lubricants 1,200.00 229.52 855.71 344.29 29%
20250500  |Accounting Services 650.00 665.60 (15.60) -2%
20252500  |Engineering Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 0%
20253100  |Legal Services 100.00 - 100.00 | 100%
20256200 | Transcribing Services 0.00 - 0.00
20259100  |Other Professional Services 400.00 - 400.00 | 100%
20289900  |Other Operating Exp - Services 400.00 - 400.00 | 100%
20291500 |COMPASS Costs 100.00 - 100.00 | 100%
20296200  |GS Parking Charges 0.00 - 0.00
SUB-TOTAL 5,730.00 261.12 3,063.84 2,666.16 47%

4000 FIXED ASSETS
42420200  |Struc. & Improvements 0.00 - 0.00 0%

SUB-TOTAL 0.00 - - 0.00 0%

GRAND TOTAL 5,730.00 261.12 3,063.84 2,666.16 47%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 27




GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING

MARCH 31, 2024

CLAIM # |ACCOUNT # VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907168571, 20285100 |BRADLEY TATUM RECREATIONAL SERVICES 524.00
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 28



GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE MONTH ENDING
APRIL 30, 2024

CLAIM # |ACCOUNT #|VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
1907183312 20285100 |BRADLEY TATUM RECREATIONAL SERVICE 524.00
—
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 29



ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP
THURSDAY, MAY 9, 2024
9:00 AM

MEETING LOCATION:
Orangevale Community Center
6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662

1. CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 9:10 a.m.

Roll call: Director Brunberg, Administrator Herz, Finance/HR Superintendent Von Aesch, Parks
Superintendent Oropeza, Recreation Supervisor Bain, and Admin Services Supervisor Woodford.

2. PUBLIC DISCUSSION
Any person may address the committee; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff
and/or committee/Board of Directors for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.

3. MINUTES
None discussed.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None discussed.

5. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion of District Employee Salaries and Benefits
Administrator Herz confirmed that the next salary scale evaluation is scheduled for early 2025. Next
she explained that the preliminary budget includes adding a full-time Recreation Coordinator and that
the Recreation Supervisor will be promoted to a Recreation Supervisor Il position. Additionally,
updates to bring some recreation programs in-house, and the staff expenses associated with that, have
been added.

B. Discussion of Capital Project List
Administrator Herz stated that the remainder of the Driveway Project should be completely covered
through the grant and funds from the Park Development Fees in the budget. Next, she announced that
the District qualified for an additional 167k from the ARPA COVID-19 relief plan which was applied

Jor several years ago.

C. Discussion of the 2024/25 Preliminary Budget

1. General Fund (332A)

a. Expenditures

b. Revenue
Staff and Director Brunberg moved through the General Budget pages with minimal changes and
noting the funds designated for several needed AED'’s (automated external defibrillators), several
HVAC units, and funds for a new or updated playground structure.
2. OLLAD (374A)

a. Expenditures

b. Revenue
Director Brunberg and staff looked through the OLLAD budget noticing an increase in both water and
chemicals due to the market. Director Brunberg asked what time of year the funds for OLLAD
typically come in and whether that would delay any projects.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 30



Kenneth Grove (374B)

a. Expenditures

b. Revenue
Administrator Herz reported that the Kenneth Grove budget has 16k which the full Board of Directors
approved to use for landscape sculpture(s) project along the hilly stretch along Greenback Lane which
has proven somewhat problematic to grow flora. The process to research, survey the residents, and
present to the Directors is scheduled to begin after the summer season.

D. Timeline for the 2024/25 FY Budget Process
Administrator Herz announced that we would present the preliminary budget at the May Board of
Directors meeting for approval and submit it to the County in June. After needed updates and/or
additions, it will be brought back to the August 15, 20, meeting as the final budget for approval.

E. Schedule Next Meeting
Director Brunberg and staff agreed the next meeting should be late January or early February of 2025
after the first instalment of the taxes are in to review where revenue and expenditures are currently at
for the 24/25 Fiscal Year. A short discussion continued about the timing of capital projects and
revenue and the desire to avoid Dry Budget Spending fees.

6. DIRECTOR’S AND STAFF’S COMMENTS
No additional comments at this time.

7. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA
No additional items at this time.

8. ADJOURNMENT The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 a.m.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 31



STAFF REPORT

DATE: 5-16-24

\

e TO: Board of Directors

OVrarks

m FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator
R R Gy SUBJECT: MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT — APRIL 2024
ADMINISTRATION

On April 2, Admin Herz participated in the CARPD GM Roundtable meeting on-line.

On April 3, Admin Herz attended the on-line Year End FI/MM Use Group Workshop FY 2023-24 hosted
by the County of Sacramento Departments of Finance, Auditor-Controller, General Services, Contract
& Purchasing, and Technology.

On April 3, Supervisor Bain attended the Orangevale Business Watch Meeting

On April 4, Admin Herz joined the OV History Project Ribbon Cutting where she presented former
District Administrator Barry Ross with an OV History Orange. '

On April 5, Admin Herz attended the Orangevale Rotary meeting.

On April 5, Admin Herz and Supervisor Bain met with Jon Isom.

On April 8, Admin Herz and Superintendent Oropeza participated in job-walks at OVparks parking lot
project sites.

On April 8, OVparks staff participated in the Pool Slide Final Walkthrough with Safe Slide.

On April 9, Admin Herz attended the Kiwanis Club of Orangevale — Fair Oaks Meeting

On April 12, Admin Herz attended the Orangevale Community Collaborative Meeting

On April 16, Admin Herz, Office Asst Ward, and Specialist Von Aesch held a Trail Masterplan Update
workshop.

On April 17, Admin Herz joined the OV History Project on a tour of the Indian Stone Coral.

On April 18, Admin Herz participated in the CARPD Legislative meeting on-line.

On April 19, Admin Herz participated in an NRPA Quick Guide meeting.

On April 20, OVparks Recreation staff hosted the OVparks Summer Open House.

On April 24, Admin Herz and Superintendent Oropeza prepared for Big Day of Service with site-walks.
On April 24, Admin Herz participated in the CPRS JEDI Counsel meeting on-line.

On April 25, OVparks held an All-Staff Safety Meeting.

On April 26, Admin Herz attended Orangevale Rotary meeting.

On April 29, Admin Herz met with Peter Larimer from MTW

On April 29, Admin Herz and Superintendent Oropeza met with representatives from Miricle
Playsystems to assess the small playground at OCP.

On April 30, Superintendent Oropeza attended the Big Day Of Service kick-off event.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 32



RECREATION Monthly Report: April 2024

April Enrollment Attendance Gross Revenue
Active Adults
Bridge 39 S 78.00
M.O.V.E. Bingo 23
Active Adults Sub Total 39 23 $ 78.00
Classes
Basic Horsemanship 9 S 1,134.00
Internet Drivers Education 5 S 116.00
Kids Cooking Series 12 S 420.00
Kids Night Out 11 S 297.00
Ukulele Fretters 21 S 21.00
Classes Sub Total 58 0 $ 1,988.00
Events
Creek Week Clean-up 75
OVparks Summer Open House 400
Day Camp Sub Total 0 475 S -
Preschool
Orange Blossoms 14 S 3,878.00
Preschool Sub Total 14 $ 3,878.00
Sports & Fitness
Aikido - Family Training 6 S 555.00
Aikido - Teen/Adult 7 S 1,113.00
Aikido - Youth 2 S 190.00
Beach Volleyball Clinic 15 S 1,287.00
Gymnastics - KinderGym 1 S 105.00
Gymnastics - Parent Participation 3 S 315.00
Gymnastics - Tot 1 S 105.00
NAofA Flag Football 24 S 2,592.00
Pickleball 101 14 $ 980.00
Pickleball Youth 7 $ 693.00
Pilates Reformer 8 S 700.00
Shotokan Karate Grange Karate 1 S 250.00
Shotokan Youth Center Karate 9 S 2,250.00
Shotokan Preschool Karate 3 S 705.00
Skyhawks soccer 17 S 1,683.00
Tennis Youth 15 $ 1,485.00
Top Notch Basketball League. 143 S 17,375.00
Turns n Tumble Baby Ballet 8 S 352.00
Turns n Tumble Pre Ballet 12 S 484.00
Zumbini 8 S 320.00
Sports & Fitness Sub Total 304 0 $ 33,539.00
Trips
Collette Trips - America's Music
Cities 5 ) 1,612.00
Day Trips Cherry Blossoms Festival 8 S 600.00
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024

Page 33



Trips Sub Total

13 2,212.00

GRAND TOTAL 428 498 41,695.00

April Gross Revenue Recap - April OTC (over-the-counter) revenue for combined recreation
and facility rentals ended at $115,502 which is $50,502 above the projected amount. April
recreation revenue came in at $98,524 which is $43,524 above the projected amount. The April
facility revenue came in at $16,978 which is $6978 above the projected amount. Please note the
revenue referenced here includes prepayments for future programs while the revenue figures listed
in the chart above represent revenue attributed to programs occurring in April.

$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

$-

2023-2024 ORPD Recreation & Facility Revenue

Net vs Projected - Monthly Cumulative View

JULY | AUG | SEPT | OCT | NOV | DEC | JAN | FEB | MAR | APRIL

= Net Revenue

$35,525/$81,392($140,80($179,15|$214,67 $228,42($289,37|$325,57|$378,09 $493,59

=== Projected Revenue

$40,000|$90,000($140,50($180,50($202,00($210,00|$285,00|$340,00|$390,00|$455,00/$645,00 $715,00

$200,000
$180,000
$160,000
$140,000
$120,000
$100,000
$80,000
$60,000
$40,000
$20,000
$-

2023-2024 ORPD Recreation & Facility Revenue
Net vs projected - Monthly View

NOV DEC JAN FEB APRIL

JULY | AUG | SEPT OCT

mmmm Net Revenue

$35.525 | $45,867 | $59,409 | $38,353 | $35,521 | $13,751 | $60,948 | $36,202 | $52,519 $115,50

==0=== Projected Revenue

$40,000 | $50,000 | $50,500 | $40,000 | $21,500 | $8,000 | $75,000 | $55,000 | $50,000 $65,000 | $190,00

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

May 16, 2024 Page 34




PARKS Monthly Report: March 2024

Park Infrastructure
Staff continues to conduct monthly playground inspections and makes repairs on site as needed.

40 feet of fence were repaired by staff at Orangevale Community Park and Horse Arena.

Staff removed what appeared to be 3 homeless encampments from Sundance.

Staff finish installing the fence privacy cloth at the pool fence.

Staff moved shade covers at the pool and placed tarps on them in preparation for the pool season.
The back gate to preschool building was repaired by staff.

Graffiti was removed from the Arcade-Cripple Creek Trail at Streng Park on 2 different occasions.

Mechanics
e Staff continues to conduct basic maintenance to small engine equipment and mowers.

o An edger guards on a mower was rewelded in place.
e Staff installed a new hitch on the 2018 Ford F150.
 Staff fixed a power steering hose on the “Old Blue” Ford tractor.

Park Irrigation
e Allirrigation has been turned on.
e Staff worked on 5 systems that were malfunctioning in Oak and Filbert irrigation system.
e  Staff finish the annual irrigation systems checks.
» 10 sprinklers were replaced at various parks of the District.
e  Staff assisted during Creek Week cleanup day.

Park Grounds
e Staff continues ongoing maintenance at all parks and trails (restrooms, trash, mowing, edging &
blowing).

Staff removed a medium size tree at Almond Park.
Staff removed all stumps and logs from the shop parking lot.
Disk Golf was mowed by staff as part of the course maintenance.

Other items
e Lucas and Doug removed the Youth Center little league fence and fence post. They also installed all the

post and got the field ready for Big Day Of Service.
e Staff replaced the back boards on the dugout benches and fixed 1 board on the backstop at Youth Center

Park.
e Staff worked to prepare various projects for Big Day Of Service.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 35



Fulton-El Camino Park District Police Department
Monthly activity report for: Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Reporting Period: April 1-30, 2024

Almond Park

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Notice to Appear 04/04/24 15:00 160281(a) No Insurance / 4000(a) CVC No current reg.
Notice to Appear 04/15/24 13:50  160281(a) No Insurance / 4000(a) CVC No current reg.
Notice to Appear 04/22/24 00:00 160281(a) No Insurance / 4000(a) CVC No current reg.
Warning 04/15/24 13:40  Dog off leash

Warning 04/15/24 15:10  Dog off leash

Warning 04/25/24 13:05 Dog off leash

Norma Hamlin Park

No issues to report.

Off Property

No issues to report.

OV _Community Center

Parking Citation 04/21/24 16.39  4000(a) No current registration

Parking Citation 04/21/24 16.46  4000(a) No current registration

Parking Citation 04/21/24 16.48  4000(a) No current registration

Parking Citation 04/28/24 14:56  4000(a) No current registration

OV Community Park

Notice to Appear 04/25/24 13:40  160281(a) No Insurance / 4000(a) CVC No current reg.
Calls For Service 04/11/24 17:50  Welfare check on screaming in bathroom, no issue found
Warning 04/03/24 19:09  Dog off leash

Warning 04/22/24 13:30  Dog off leash

Parking Citation 04/03/24 19:15  4000(a) No current registration

OV Community Park (Disc Golf)

Notice to Appear 04/15/24 14:29  9.36.057.5 SCO Alcohol in Park

Parking Citation 04/08/24 13:11  5204(a) Registration tabs not properly displayed
Parking Citation 04/08/24 13:17  4000(a) No current registration

Palisades Park
No issues to report.

Pecan Park
No issues to report.

Streng Park
No issues to report

Sundance Park
No issues to report

Youth Center Park
No issues to report

- Board of Directors Meeting

May 16, 2024

Page 36



OvParks Photos of Interest: April 2024

r

Creek Week at Orangevale Community Pa

g

Indian Stone Coral Tour with OV History Project

3 Sl - T e = T
: B

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 37



2.\ ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARKS
UOViarks) 6826 HAZEL AVE
Giiviiiaiy ORANGEVALE, CALIFORNIA 95662

ROOF SECTION: Gym roof DATE: 05/10/2024

Report Data

Report Date 05/10/2024
Title Week 4 roof replacement progress report
Report Type Progress Report

The Community Center metal roof is getting finished up today! The roof turned out awesome, D7 and crew did a great job in a quick
timeline. We will be scheduling our final punch walk for 5/22. The contractor, Horacio and | will walk the roof and make sure the project

was completed to the project specs and requirements.

Prog. Report: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 38



Prog. Repori: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

Crew is installing the downspouts, running
the seamer on the panels and finishing up
the roof!

Back of the roof. Project turned out
fantastic, great job by D7 crew!

May 16, 2024 Page 39



Prog. Report: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

Upclose on the flat roof. You can see the
crew is building the downspouts and
running the seamer. The mechanical seamer
is a machine that presses the seam cap
together with force.

May 16, 2024 Page 40



Upclose of the ridge cap installed and
seamed.

The vent is covering the head closures, but
they are installed in every panel. You can
also see the top of the panel is turned up.

® This prevents any moisture from being
blown in and getting behind the panel.

Prog. Report: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 41



Prog. Report: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

------ The head closure is installed at the top of all

. the panels. This prevents animals, debris
271 and any water from getting into the ridge
cap.

May 16, 2024 Page 42



Prog. Report: May 10, 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Board of Directors Meeting

The vented ridge was installed and the ridge
cap installed. Sealant and rivets were used
at each lap. The following photos show the
vents being installed.

May 16, 2024 Page 43

e—————



STAFF REPORT

z . DATE: 5/16/24
<& e TO: Board of Directors

OVprarks S
TN NVAT R FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &

PARK DISTRICT  SUBJECT: REVIEW OPTIONS FOR PLAGROUND RETROFIT VS
REPLACEMENT FOR THE SMALL PLAYGROUND AT COMMUNTIY

CENTER PARK

RECOMMENDATION
Review the option for upgrading the small playground at Community Center Park. Consider the

option of retrofitting the existing structure vs the option of a full playground replacement.

BACKGROUND

The Board identified retrofitting/replacing the small playground in the Oak and Filbert area of
Community Center Park as a CIP Priority for the 24/25 FY. The District Administrator and Parks
Superintendent met ‘with original playground designers, Miricle Playsystems Inc., to gather
information, clarify options, and facilitate budget planning.

Images and quotes have been obtained for four (4) possible playground ideas from Miricle
Playgrounds. Images of each playground idea is attached (Playground 1-4). All quotes include
installation and CPSI Inspection. All quotes exclude demolition of existing playground and
playground surfacing materials. Two (2) options were provided for retrofitting the existing
structural poles and roofs, and two (2) options were provided for full playground replacement.

OVparks staff participated in a review and ranking of these playgrounds. Staff considered play-
value, aesthetics, and variety of movement. A comparison graph with prices, retrofitting vs
replacement, and staff rankings is provided below:

Playground | Quoted Price Retro/Replace Ranking
1 $45,687 Retrofit 1 (18 points)
2 $41,528 Retrofit 2 (15 points)
3 $54,887 Full Replacement 4 (2 points)
4 $50,090 Full Replacement 3 (8 points)

If the Board of Directors decides to pursue a full playground replacement, staff will proceed with
the District’s bid-process as outlined in ORPD Operational Policies & Procedures Manuel, Section
18. If the Board of Directors decides to pursue a retrofit for the playground, Miricle Playsystems
is the sole source provider, and staff will proceed with begin negotiating and planning a retrofit
playground project with Miricle Playsystems.

The option of upgrading the small playground via a retrofit is supported by both lowest cost a
highest ranking.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 44



SAIHUNLILIOY YIIIU3 0] SYUBLILOIIALT Aeld Und Buneal)

AV'1d DNINOISHd

| mEanmU»m_a

101381 fed pue uoiiealday ajeaaduelq 1oy pasedald

¥) ‘ajeAsduel

107101 Y1ed Aunwwo) afersbuelp

AV1d ONINDISIN SIALSASAVEA 3X0vHIW

Page 45

May 16,2024

Board of Directors Meeting

. Orangevale Recreation & Park District



SAIUNWLWOY Latiu 0) Sjuatiuoug £eld ung buneaty

AV'1d DNINDISHd

mEmﬁ%%a

o

A
. SR

1011381 YJed pue uo1ealnay ajesduel( oy patedald

Y] 'sjeaaduel

107101 Yled Aunwwio) ajerabuelq

AVEd DRINDHSA0 SIALIEASAVI TT0VHL

Page 46

May 16, 2024

- Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

3



SAIJUNWILIOY Yatiu3 03 SIUBLIUOLIALT ABld UNy OUINRA

AV'1d DNINDISHA

“SWwIBIsAs/ i

TOVIN

1013S1Q M{8d pue U0IIEAIINY B|eAaduel( o) paledald

¥J ‘a|easdueiQ

107101 )Ied Ajunwuio) ajersbuelq

AVid ONINDISH0 "SEEISASAVTA THIHIN

Page 47

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

-.4

R



SRIIUNWILWOY Yt 0} Sjuawuodiaug Aeld ung buneal)

AV'1d DNINDISd

swiasAg/iid

1013S1Q Jted pue UoI3ea10aYy 8|eAadue.( (o) paedald

¥9 'ofeAadue.q

107101 )Jed Ajunwuwoy) ajeabuelq

ANTd ONINISI0 SERISASAVIA T12THIN

Page 48

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -

.



RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve to authorize the District Administrator begin the planning process for a

retrofit playground upgrade to the small playground at Orangevale Community Park.

ATTACHMENT
Playground 1
Playground 2
Playground 3
Playground 4

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 49



OVrarks

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 24-05-720

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT APPROVING THE RESOLUTION OF
INTENTION TO LEVY ASSESSMENTS FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2024-25, PRELIMINARILY APPROVING THE
ENGINEER'S REPORT AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF
HEARING FOR THE ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING AND

LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT (OLLAD)

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District, County of Sacramento, State of California, has previously
ordered through Resolution 92-06-51 the formation of an assessment district pursuant
to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 for the purpose of
financing certain park and recreation improvements and refurbishments as specified in
the District’s updated Master Plan and for the purpose of funding maintenance

. operations of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board, through Resolution 92-06-51, has ordered that the

: park and recreation improvements specified in the Engineer’s Report dated March 26,
1992, be constructed, and has estimated that the cost of such proposed park and
| recreation improvements is greater than can be raised from a single annual assessment,

and has ordered that the estimated costs of these improvements be raised by an
assessment levied and collected in annual installments over a period of 20 years,

. commencing in fiscal year 1992-93 and ending in fiscal year 2012-13 and then
' continued from year to year as necessary to fund other capital, maintenance and other

needs;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of
the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, County of Sacramento, State of California,
that:

1. On July 17, 1991, by its Resolution No. 816, this Board ordered the
formation of and levied the first assessment within the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District Maintenance Assessment District 1991 (the
“Assessment District”) pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972.

2. On February 15, 2024 this Board adopted Resolution No. 24-02-716, A
Resolution Directing Preparation of the 2024-25 Annual Report for the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District Maintenance Assessment
District. Pursuant to this resolution, SCI Consulting Group, the Engineer
of Work, prepared a report in accordance with Article XIIID of the
California Constitution and Section 22565, et seq., of the California
Streets and Highways Code (the "Report"). The Report has been made,
filed with the Clerk of the Board, and duly considered by the Board and
is hereby deemed sufficient and preliminarily approved. The Report shall
stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent proceedings under and
pursuant to the foregoing resolution.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 50



D 6 \‘gél,. .
= =Ty
/

OVprarks
ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &

PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

It is the intention of this Board to levy and collect assessments within the
Assessment District for fiscal year 2024-25. Within the Assessment
District, the existing and proposed improvements, and any substantial
changes proposed to be made to the existing improvements, are generally
described as installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational
facilities and improvements, including, but not limited to, turf and play
areas, landscaping, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems,
drainage systems, lighting, fencing, entry monuments, basketball courts,
tennis courts, gymnasium, running tracks, swimming pools, other
recreational facilities, security patrols to protect the Improvements,
graffiti removal and repainting, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and
equipment, as applicable, at each of the locations owned, operated or
maintained by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District.

The Assessment District consists of the lots and parcels shown on the
boundary map of the Assessment District on file with the Clerk of the
Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, and reference is
hereby made to such map for further particulars.

Reference is hereby made to the Engineer’s Report for a full and detailed
description of the improvements, the boundaries of the Assessment
District and the proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of
land within the Assessment District. The Engineer’s Report identifies all
parcels which will have a special benefit conferred upon them and upon
which an assessment will be imposed.

The assessments are not proposed to increase from the previous year’s
assessments. The Board of Directors declares its intent to levy and collect
assessments for the fiscal year 2024-25 within said district at an
assessment rate of $3.50 per month or $42.00 per year per single family
residential parcel, apartment unit and/or condominium; a lower rate of
$3.08 per month or $36.96 per year per each mobile home unit or per one-
quarter acre parcel devoted to commercial use; and a rate of $1.40 per
month or $16.80 per year per one-quarter acre for parcels devoted to
industrial or mini storage use, all as set forth in the benefit chart included
in the Engineer’s Report.

Notice is hereby given that on June 20, 2024, at the hour of 6:30 p.m. at
the District offices of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826
Hazel Avenue, California 95662, the Board will hold a public hearing to
consider the ordering of the improvements and the levy of the proposed
assessments.

Prior to the conclusion of the hearing, any interested person may file a
written protest with the Clerk of the Board, or, having previously filed a
protest, may file a written withdrawal of that protest. A written protest
shall state all grounds of objection. A protest by a property owner shall
contain a description sufficient to identify the property owned by such
owner. Such protest or withdrawal of protest should be mailed to the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel Avenue, California
95662.

The Clerk of the Board shall cause a notice of the hearing to be given by
publishing a copy of this resolution once, at least ten (10) days prior to

Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 51



the date of the hearing above specified, in a newspaper circulated in the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District.

PR gge———

OVprarks

ORANGEVALE

RECREATION & 16t : .
PARK DISTRICT PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16" day of May 2024 by the following vote:

AYES :
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CLERK OF THE BOARD

6826 Hazel Avenue !
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 52



June 2024

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

- Board of Directors Meeting

ENGINEER’S REPORT

Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District

Engineer of Work:

.ﬂ.
SCIConsultingGroup

Public Finance Consulting Services

4745 Mangels Boutevard

- FE P ]
Fartield, California 94534
F417 G Al 4 st

WWAW.SCT-CRLUUET

May 16, 2024 Page 53



This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 54



Pagei

Orangevale Recreation and Park District |

Board of Directors
Michael Stickney, Chair
Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Sharon Brunberg, Secretary
Manie Meraz, Director
Arica Presinal, Director

District Administrator
Becky Herz

District’s Attorney
David W. McMurchie

Engineer of Work
SCl Consulting Group

Orangevale Recreation and Park District el - —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District SCiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 55



Pageii

This page intentionally left blank

Orangevale Recreation and Park District el _35____,___‘
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District sCConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 56



Page iii

Table of Contents

Introduction........... tereesrenssressssnnannne veseesanennan resmeneerresnen 1
Assessment CONtinUation ProCEAUIES .......eeeeeeeerereriiiiiiiieiieicnisisiimmiessersas s 2
Plans & Specifications...... .4
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Estimate of Cost and Budget ..........ccccceeunvieisscssnnnnceenccssesene &
AsSeSSMENT DISTICE DEDL ......veeeiiriirceciaeeeesristeterresrssnereeresssssonsaresassssssssssasssssunnssssannes 7
Exemption From Proposition 218..........ccciiermnnnnenninnnisensennisssinssn s s, 8
Method of Apportionment SRR | |
Method Of APPOTtIONMENT........coniireciinisiisniniiininsassinssss s sssensesssasesssssassessassssasess 10
DiSCUSSION OF BENEFIL ......vvvrreeiirieiriserierresssiraeeecesissnssssessessesstsosssessssssseasessssssnssnsnssssesans 10

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space

Authority 13
Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District 13
Beutz v. County of Riverside 14
Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego 14
Bonander v. Town of Tiburon 15
Compliance With CUITeNt LaW .........ccceuirmrernninnninsisesssssissiiinissssssesins 15
SPECial BENEFILS .....ccoveirerririniiiinininitesensies st st snsssnsssn s sssas st sa st s s sbsaaas 16
BENEFIt FACTONS .vviiiiiiieriesererersnteeraeeseessanensossssostssmnasssstssseosasessnsnsisssessesonsassansnseessanssns 17

Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational areas for
all property owners, residents, employees and customers throughout the

Assessment District. 17
Increased economic activity. 18
Expanded employment opportunity. 19

Enhanced protection of property through reduction of the risk of fire and reduced
cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care and natural

disaster response. 19
Specific enhancement of property values due to Enhanced quality of life and
desirability of the area. 20
Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities, and zones of benefit 23
Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas 25
Improved views 25
General versus Special BENEfit ...t e tenese s 25
Calculating General Benefit.........ccovuieeimniienenenneniiscsseiss e 26
Benefit to Property Outside the Assessment District 27
Orangevale Recreation and Park District e e

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District 8CiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 57



Page iv

Benefit to Property within the Assessment District 28
Benefit to the Public at Large 29
Total Generoal Benefits 29
BENEFit FINAING ..veuverrrerieeeerneceieassetsesnttsirssastsbesene e ssss st sts s st ss st s sssstsosstsas e mnensanas 30
MEthOd OF ASSESSIMENT....ccuviverrerrererereersestisnsasssnsessoesssssresmesmissessarsasssssstsssrsnssssasannessans 31
Assessment APPOTtIONMEDNT.......cccvvererierirnnriitinenaten et st s 31
Land Use Classes 32
Non-Residential Assessment Units 37
Benefit Factor Index 37
Assessment Per Parcel 37
Benefit Assessment Matrix 38
Assessment.........ccceueee Sesssaasasanannsssns ceetassassasasssssnncasasss B0
Assessment Diagram....... teceesssnssasssesesnenansrssasanan Sassissesensnanass .42
Assessment Roll 2024-25 . 45
End Notes... 46
o T T ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

: -é;.msultingaroup

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 58



Page 1

Inroducton_

On June 29, 1992, the Board of Directors of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
("Park District") adopted Resolution Number 92-06-51 Ordering Formation of the
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District ("Assessment District") to levy
and collect assessments. The Assessment District was initially formed for the following
purposes: (1) to provide funds for the construction of new capital improvements within
the District contained in the District’s Capital Improvement Master Plan consisting of a
community center, swimming pool, soccer and other athletic fields, playground
renovations consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act, restroom construction,
and miscellaneous improvements to the District’s various park sites distributed
throughout the geographical area of the District; and (2) to fund the maintenance,
repair and replacement of the capital improvement projects constructed with
assessment proceeds for the useful life of those capital improvements, which useful life
exceeds the 20-year term of repayment of the bonds; and (3) to pay the cost of servicing
such capital improvements constructed with assessment proceeds including the costs of
water, gas, and other utilities; and (4) to fund the cost of construction and maintenance
of additional capital improvement projects consisting of park and recreational facilities
on a pay as you go basis.

At the time the Assessment District was formed in 1992, the Park District had been
experiencing a revenue shortfall that was due to declining property tax revenues. In
fiscal years 1991-92 and 1992-93 the State of California enacted new legislation shifting
a significant portion of property tax revenue away from special districts such as the Park
District to Educational Revenue Augmentation Funds established in each county
(hereinafter ERAF’s) to help fund the State’s obligation to fund education according to
the requirements of Proposition 98. The Park District lost the amount of $1,012,654 in
property tax revenue in the first year of this tax shift to ERAF’s, which revenue loss
forced the Park District to postpone projects, reduce recreational programs and cut
staffing for park maintenance. This annual property tax revenue loss has continued each
year to the present time.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ;twffm-\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District “:IConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 59



Page 2

Since its formation, the Assessment District has funded the construction of all of the
capital improvements specified in the District’s 1992 Capital Improvement Master Plan
through the issuance of Certificates of Participation in the amount of $4,720,000
secured by a pledge of the assessment revenues (the “Bonds”), and agreed to repay the
principal amount of those Bonds plus interest over a 20-year term from the assessment
revenues levied and collected annually within the Assessment District. Since its
formation, the Assessment District has also utilized a portion of the assessment
revenues to fund the continuing maintenance, repair and replacement of the
improvements constructed with such assessment proceeds as those maintenance
requirements arise. In fiscal year 2014-15 the assessment proceeds will be used to pay
for a portion of the continuing costs of maintenance, repair, and replacement of
portions of the District’s park and recreational capital improvements, and the servicing
of those improvements.

Assessment Continuation Procedures

This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared to establish the budget for the capital
improvements, maintenance and services expenditures that are proposed to be funded
by the proposed 2024-25 assessments, to determine the special benefits received from
the park maintenance and capital improvement projects by real property within the
Park District, and to specify the method of assessment apportionment to lots and
parcels within the Park District. This Report and the proposed assessments have been
made pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the
California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XNIC and XIIID of the
California Constitution (Proposition 218).

In each year for which the assessments will be levied, the District Board must direct the
preparation of an Engineer's Report, budgets and proposed assessments for the
upcoming fiscal year. After the Engineer's Report is completed, the Board may
preliminarily approve the Engineer's Report and proposed assessments and establish
the date for a public hearing on the continuation of the assessments. This Report was
prepared pursuant to the direction of the Board adopted on February 15, 2024.

If the Board approves this Engineer's Report and the proposed continuation of the
assessments by resolution, a notice of assessment levies must be published in a local
paper at least 10 days prior to the date of the public hearing. The resolution
preliminarily approving the Engineer's Report and establishing the date for a public
hearing is used for this notice.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e
i iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 60



Page 3

Following the minimum 10-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing
will be held for the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed
continuation of the assessments for fiscal year 2024-25. This hearing is currently
scheduled for June 20, 2024. At this hearing, the Board will consider approval of a
resolution confirming the assessments for fiscal year 2024-25. If so confirmed and
approved, the assessments will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for
inclusion on the property tax rolis for Fiscal Year 2024-25.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o *1%
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District #C1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 61



Page 4

Plans& .Sﬁec'ifiéations

For fiscal year 2024-25, the District proposes to use the assessment proceeds to pay the
costs of maintaining, repairing and replacing portions of its park and recreational
facilities to ensure that such facilities retain their high quality through the term of their
useful lives after the construction costs of those facilities have been paid.

The work and improvements (“Improvements”) proposed to be undertaken by the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District’s Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District
(the “Assessment District”) and the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual
assessment provide special benefit to Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as
defined in the Method of Assessment herein. In addition to the definitions provided by
the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (the “Act”) the work and improvements are
generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and
improvements, including, but not limited to, turf and play areas, landscaping, ground
cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage systems, lighting, fencing, entry
monuments, basketball courts, tennis courts, gymnasium, running tracks, swimming
pools, other recreational facilities, security guards, graffiti removal and repainting, and
labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, at each of the locations
owned, operated or maintained by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District. Any
plans and specifications for these improvements will be filed with the District
Administrator of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District and are incorporated
herein by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the design and construction of recreational
improvements, including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling,
cutting and filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights,
playground equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and
usual maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair,
removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life,
growth, health, and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming,
spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish,
debris, and other solid waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and
other improvements to remove or cover graffiti.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District i "'—*"S”f""-‘\\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 62



Page 5

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

T ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District J—
*(.iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 63



Page 6

;Fiscal Year 2024-25 Estimate of Cost ahd Budget

~ Total|
Budget |
Project Budget Fiscal Year 2024-25
1 Capital Improvement Projects
Total Capital Improvements $858,000
2 Maintenance and Service Expenditures
A Agricultural Supplies and Services $24,500
B  Utilities $231,300
C  Chemicals $65,000
D  Security $26,000
E  Fuel $26,400
F  Other Expenses $221,000
G  Other Professional Services $35,000
Total Maintenance and Service Expenditures $629,200
3 Incidental Expenditures
A Engineering/Accounting Expenditures $18,600
B  Legal Services $5,000
Total Incidental Expenditures $23,600
4  Debt Service )
A Interest Expense $0
B  Bond Principal Repayment $0
C  Tax/Lic/Assessments $1,300
Total Debt Service $1,300
5 Salarles and Benefits
A  Salaries and Benefits $1,254,000
Total Costs for Installation, Maintenance and Servicing for Fiscal Year 2023-24 $2,766,100
Total benefit of iImprovements $2,766,100
Single Family Equivalents (SFEs) 13,539
Benefit received per SFE unit $204.30
Less:
District Contribution for General Benefits $1,383,050
District Contribution toward Speclal Benefits $814,407
Estimated Assessment Revenues for Fiscal Year 2023-24 $568,643
|Budget Allocation to Property
Total Assessment Budget $568,643
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 13,539.12
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit ﬁz.oo
Orangevale Recreation and Park District pummm————
iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 64



Page 7

Assessment District Debt

The park and recreation improvements constructed within the assessment district and
listed on Table 1 have been financed through issuance of Certificates of Participation by
Orangevale Recreation and Park District known as Orangevale Recreation and Park
District Certificates of Participation 1992 Series A and Refunding Certificates of
Participation 1996 Series A (the “Bonds”).

in order to facilitate the issuance of the Bonds and the funding of the District’s Capital
Improvement Master Plan, the Board, in Resolution 92-06-51, opted to levy an annual
installment assessment which, under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets
& Highways Code, § 22500 et seq.) (the “Act”) is a procedure for financing capital
improvements, the cost of which exceeds the amount of assessment revenue that can
be collected in any single fiscal year. The annual installment assessment levied by the
Board of Directors in this Resolution is a one-time assessment to be levied in annual
installments through fiscal year 2012-13 sufficient to pay the principal and interest on
the outstanding Bonds. The provisions of the Act specifically allow the Board to assess
an annual installment assessment on a one time basis to be collected over any period of
time less than thirty (30) years. The Bonds were used to finance the costs of the
construction of the Capital Improvement Plan and were secured by a pledge of 100% of
all assessment revenues for repayment of principal and interest on the Bonds.

This pledge of 100% of the assessment revenues for principal and interest payments on
the Bonds was facilitated by the requirement in the Bond documents that the District
establish a “Special Lease Payment Fund” and deposit all assessment revenues collected
each year into the Special Lease Payment Fund administered by the Bond trustee. The
trustee is then authorized to utilize the assessment revenues deposited into the Special
Lease Payment Fund to make principal and interest payments on the Bonds when due.
This is the mechanism which ensures that the District’s irrevocable pledge of 100% of its
assessment revenues to bond payments provides a security interest and first lien on
such assessment revenues in favor of the bondholders. The assessment revenues on
deposit in the Special Lease Payment Fund are not subject to levy, attachment, or lien
by or for the benefit of any creditor of the District, and the District is prohibited from
pledging those assessment revenues to any other obligation other than the principal
and interest on the Bonds. The District also promised in the bond documents not to
reduce the amount of its assessments while any of the Bonds are outstanding and
unpaid.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District '
‘L iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 65



Page 8

To the extent that assessment revenues on deposit in the Special Lease Payment Fund
exceed the principal and interest payments owing on the Bonds in any year, then the
bond trustee is authorized to release those excess assessment revenues back to the
District to be utilized to fund maintenance, repair, replacement, and servicing
expenditures required by the District to maintain all park and recreational
improvements in good condition throughout their useful life.

Upon full repayment of the principal and interest on the Bonds in fiscal year 2012-13,
District legal counsel has opined that the Board of Directors of District has the discretion
to levy annual assessments thereafter based on an annual budget of expenditures for
the Assessment District for each ensuing fiscal year for additional capital improvements,
additional maintenance, repair or replacement of existing capital improvements, and
the payment of servicing costs of those improvements pursuant to the provisions of the
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (the “Act”), Proposition 218 and Articles XIIIC and
D of the California Constitution so long as the amount of assessments per parcel and the
methodology of assessment initially established by the Board in 1992 is not changed.
The Act authorizes continuing assessments on an annual basis after a public hearing
upon a majority vote of the District’s Board of Directors each year.

Exemption From Proposition 218

The districtwide assessment district was formed and the District issued its bonds
secured by assessment revenues in 1990, prior to the passage of Proposition 218, the
Right to Vote on Taxes Act, which was approved by the voters of California on
November 6, 1996, and now comprises Articles Xill C and Xlll D of the California
Constitution. Proposition 218 provides that all assessments levied by local governments
after the adoption of Proposition 218 in 1996 must comply with the following two
criteria: (1) assessments must be demonstrated to provide “special benefits” to the
parcels of real property upon which the assessment is levied, and not for general benefit
to the public and society at large, including non-property owners such as tenants and
visitors to District Facilities; and (2) no assessment may be imposed on any parcel of real
property which exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit
conferred on that parcel.

T T ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District .
= iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 66



Page 9

The assessment levied by the districtwide assessment district prior to the passage of
Proposition 218 in 1996 is exempt as an assessment existing on the effective date of
Article XIll D imposed exclusively to repay bonded indebtedness of which the failure to
pay would violate the contract impairment clause of the United States Constitution (See
Cal. Const., art. XIll D, 5(c)). The assessment district’s Certificates of Participation 1992
Series A, and the District’s Refunding Certificates of Participation 1996 Series A, all
represent contractual obligations to which the District pledged 100% of the assessment
revenues received in the assessment district. The District’s contractual pledge to levy
and collect all of the assessments within the assessment district to pay principal and
interest on the Certificate of Participation obligations are protected from impairment by
the prohibition against impairment of the obligation of contract contained in the United
States Constitution. (See section entitled Assessment District Debt.)

In addition, Government Code section 53753.5, which is part of the Proposition 218
Omnibus Implementation Act, provides that this exemption means that all such
assessments in the assessment district are exempt from “the procedures and approval
process” defined in Section 4 of Article Xill D. Section 53753.5(c)(2) goes on to state that
the definition of exemption from the “procedures and approval process” means
exemption from the requirements to separate general benefit from special benefit, and
the requirement to assess publicly owned parcels within the assessment district.

In addition, Government Code section 53753.3(b)(4) specifically provides that any
subsequent increases in such assessment district assessments must comply with such
procedures and approval processes except for those assessments which preexist the
adoption of Proposition 218 and are exempt since the proceeds of such assessments are
pledged to pay bonded indebtedness. Therefore, any subsequent increases in the
assessments pledged to debt are also exempt from the procedures and approval
processes of Article XIli D.

Despite this exemption from the requirements of Proposition 218 to separate general
benefit from special benefit, this Engineer’s Report nevertheless demonstrates that the
assessments levied in the assessment district are limited to funding special benefits to
property within the assessment district, and any potential general benefit to the public
and others not paying assessments has been excluded in the calculation of the
assessments and the funding of the assessment district budget.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e O J%\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District & CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 67



Page 10

et_h"o;d fdf-hppplﬁﬁbnment

Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be
derived from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout
the Park District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to
properties within the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District. The method used for apportioning the
assessments is based upon the proportional special benefits conferred to the properties
over and above the general benefits conferred to real property in the Assessment
District or to the public at large. Special benefit is calculated for each parcel in the
Assessment District using the following process:

= |dentification of all benefit factors derived from the Improvements

= Calculation of the proportion of these benefits that are special and general, and
quantification of the general benefits

= Determination of the relative special benefit per property type

s Calculation of the specific assessment for each individual parcel based upon
special vs. general benefit; property type, property characteristics,
improvements on property and other supporting attributes

Discussion of Benefit

Assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property conferred by
the capital improvements or services funded with the assessment revenue. This special
benefit to assessed real property must be demonstrated to be over and above any
general benefits. Proposition 218 has clarified that the assessment levied by the Park
District must comply with the following two criteria: (1) assessments must be
demonstrated to provide “special benefit” to the parcels of real property upon which
the assessment is levied, and not for general benefit to the public and society at large,
including nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors to district facilities; and (2)
no assessment may be imposed on any parcel of real property which exceeds the
reasonable costs of the proportional special benefit conferred on that particular parcel.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District = e
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 68



Page 11

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the installation,
maintenance and servicing of landscaping improvements to be provided with
assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are derived from the statutes
passed by the California Legislature and other studies which describe the types of
special benefit received by property from maintenance and improvements of park and
recreational facilities such as those proposed by the assessment district. These types of
special benefit are summarized below. Specifically, the Legislature at Public Resources
Code section 5506 states its intent that land acquisition, improvement and services by a
park district specifically benefit the properties assessed and the persons paying those
assessments in the following respects.

When the assessments were first formed in 1992, the Engineer’s Report and Board
established the following special benefits from the assessments:

1. Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational
facilities for all residents, customers and guests.

2. Protection of open space, views, scenery and other resources values and
environmental benefits enjoyed by residents, employees, customers and
guests and preservation of public assets maintained by the Park District.

3. Increased economic activity.

4. Expanded employment opportunity.

5. Reduced cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care,
fire prevention and natural disaster response.

6. Specific enhancement of property values.

For more discussion see the section entitled Special Benefits below.

The legislative history behind Proposition 218, the adoption by the Legislature of the
Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and appellate case law interpreting the
provisions of Proposition 218 demonstrate the analysis that the Board of Directors of
the Assessment District must undertake in order to determine the amount of special
benefit to assessed real property from the park and recreation facilities and
maintenance funded by assessment revenues, and the limitation that such assessments
should not exceed the costs of the proportional special benefit to each such parcel as
required by Proposition 218.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e .
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £T1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 69



Page 12

The State of California Legislative Analyst’s impartial analysis of Proposition 218 states
that first, local governments must estimate the amount of “special benefit” landowners
receive, or would receive, from a capital improvement project or service. If such a
capital improvement project or service provides both special benefits to that parcel of
real property and general benefits to members of the public and nonproperty owners
such as tenants and visitors, then the District may charge landowners only for the cost
of providing the special benefit. The District must use general revenue such as property
taxes and user fees to pay the remaining portion of the costs of a project or service.
Second, the District must ensure that no property owner’s assessment is greater than
the cost to the District to provide those capital improvements or maintenance services
to benefit that particular owner’s property.

The District, by means of this Engineer’s Report, must estimate the amount of “special
benefit” landowners receive from the park and recreation facilities and maintenance,
repair and replacement services funded with assessment revenues. If these park and
recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and replacement services provide both
special benefits to property owners within the District and general benefits to
nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors, then the District must quantify the
special benefit properties received from those park and recreational improvements and
maintenance and repair services, and also quantify the amount of general benefit
received by nonproperty owners such as tenants and visitors from such improvements
and maintenance services.

In addition, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 provides as
follows:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among
all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by
each such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Five recent court cases construing the assessment provisions of Proposition 218
demonstrate the process that the District must utilize to satisfy Proposition 218’s special
benefit and proportionality requirements.

——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District A -
s 1ConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 70



Page 13

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open
Space Authority

The first of those cases is the Supreme Court’s decision in Silicon Valley Taxpayers
Association v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (2008) 44 Cal.4th 431. That case
dealt with an open space assessment. The Court emphasized that the Engineer’s Report
must demonstrate distinct benefits to particular properties above and beyond those
which the general public using and enjoying the open space receives. The Court also
noted that such special benefits would likely result from factors such as proximity,
improved access, and views.

Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District

A similar holding can be found in the Court of Appeals 2009 decision upholding the
business improvement district assessment to fund supplemental municipal services in
the case of Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property and Business Improvement District
(2009) 174 Cal.App.4th 708. In that case, the Court held that services provided to
assessed property including security, street maintenance, and marketing, promotion
and special events for property owners within the Assessment District were all special
benefits conferred on parcels within the Assessment District because they “affected the
assessed property in a way that is particular and distinct from their effect on other
parcels and that real property in general and the public at large do not share.” The Court
further held that under Proposition 218, the cap on the total assessment is the entirety
of the reasonable cost of the special benefit conferred on all parcels by the
improvements and services funded by assessment revenue. The Court also noted that if
special benefits themselves produce certain general benefits to the public at large, the
value of those general benefits need not be deducted before the caps on the special
benefits which the assessments provide are calculated. Therefore, the Court concluded
that security, maintenance, and special event services specially benefit property within
an Assessment District and may be apportioned according to the cost of providing those
services without respect to the cost of generating general benefits.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e :
{ConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 71



Page 14

Beutz v. County of Riverside

The case of Beutz v. County of Riverside (2010) 194 Cal.App.4th 1516 dealt with an
assessment under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and concluded that
Proposition 218 permits assessments to fund maintenance, repair and replacement of
park and recreational facilities when supported by an adequate Engineer’s Report. The
Court concluded that park and recreational improvements, maintenance, and park and
recreational services confer special benefit on property. However, the Court noted that
the Engineer’s Report in that case did not separate and quantify the degree of special
benefit to properties being assessed for such services, as opposed to the general benefit
conferred on members of the public such as nonproperty owners, tenants and visitors
from such park improvements and services. The Court noted that the nature and extent
of general and special benefits from the park improvements and maintenance services
must be quantified in relationship to each other based on credible solid evidence.

Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego

In the recent Court of Appeal case of Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of
San Diego (2011) 199 Cal.App.4th 416, the city levied an assessment under the
Landscaping and Lighting Act for maintenance services consisting of trash removal,
sidewalk sweeping and washing, landscaping, graffiti abatement and trail and canyon
beautification. The Court implicitly found that such services do provide special benefit to
the property being assessed from those services pursuant to the requirements of
Proposition 218. However, similar to the Beutz decision, which was issued after the
creation of the Engineer’s Report for the Golden Hill assessment, the Court found that
the Engineer’s Report must specifically quantify the special and general benefits from
the assessment.

e

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —
“C1ConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 72



Page 15

Bonander v. Town of Tiburon

In the Court of Appeal case of Bonander v. Town of Tiburon, the town of Tiburon formed
an assessment district to fund the cost of moving overhead utility lines underground.
The engineer identified special benefits of improved aesthetics, increased safety, and
improved service reliability. The degree of benefit to an individual property was
dependent on proximity to existing overhead utility lines. The assessment district was
divided into three zones. The Court found that undergrounding of utility lines did
constitute a special benefit conferred on real property and it is a proper subject for
assessment. The Court also found that it is permissible to conclude that all properties in
a district benefit equally from a certain type of special benefit, and therefore assess all
such properties an equal assessment amount. The Court concluded that just because a
particular benefit is conferred equally upon all properties in an assessment district does
not compel the conclusion that such benefit is not tied to particular parcels of property.
Finally, the Court found that Proposition 218 requires that the proportional special
benefit derived by each parcel shall be determined depending on the entirety of the
capital cost of a public improvement, or its maintenance and operation expenses, and
not just as costs incurred in each zone. The Court noted that Proposition 218 requires
the amount of the assessment to be proportional to the benefits conferred on the
property, not the costs incurred.

Compliance with Current Law

This Engineer’s Report, and the process used to establish these proposed assessments
are consistent with the case law described above and with the requirements of Articles
X1l C and XilI D of the California Constitution based on the following factors:

1. The fact that the park and recreational facilities and maintenance, repair and
replacement services for those improvements have some general benefit to the
public at large including non-property owners, tenants and visitors, does not
mean that they do not also have a special benefit to property owners whose
parcels are assessed. While many government facilities and services may
provide public benefits, when special benefits can be identified, they may be
separated from general public benefits and their costs imposed as assessments
on the properties to which those special benefits accrue.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e e e
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District s 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 73



Page 16

2. This Engineer’s Report is consistent with Beutz, Dahms and Greater Golden Hill
cases because the Improvements will directly benefit property in the
Assessment District and the general benefits have been explicitly calculated and
quantified and excluded from the Assessments. The fact that the park and
recreational facilities and maintenance repair replacement services have some
general benefit to the public at large does not mean that they do not also have
special benefit to property owners whose parcels are assessed.

3. The Engineer’s Report is also consistent with the Bonander decision because the
Assessments have been apportioned based on the entirety of the capital cost of
the Improvements and based on proportional special benefit to each property in
each zone.

Special Benefits

This Engineer’s Report, in the following sections, identifies the special benefits for the
various types of properties within the Assessment District which are proposed to be
assessed. This Report also quantifies the special and general benefits from the
assessments. A description of the types of special benefits conferred on real properties
within the District by the park and recreational facilities and maintenance funded with
assessment revenues follows.

These special benefit factors are derived from Legislative findings and intent established
in statute before the adoption of Proposition 218 as specified above, and as such, must
be harmonized with the provisions of Proposition 218 in implementing the assessments.

The applicable provisions of Proposition 218 regarding assessments were described in
the Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision described above, which provides
specific guidance that parks and recreational areas may confer the following special
benefits:

= Proximity to recreational and open space
= Expanded or improved access to recreational and open space
= Views of recreational and open space

The Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a
service or improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or
derivative advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or
improvement are general benefits. This decision also provides specific guidance that
park improvements constitute a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is
proximate to a park or open space, the improvement of which is funded by an
assessment:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e EE—
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District #C1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 74



Page 17

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a
direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an
indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the
improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district’s property values).
In summary, from the case law interpreting Proposition 218 requirements regarding
such assessments, the District’s assessments fund specific park and recreation
improvements, maintenance and servicing costs that can be described by additional
special benefit categories as summarized as follows:

=  Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities.

= Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas.
= Improved views.

= Enhanced recreational opportunities

The grounds for validity of the foregoing special benefit categories are supported by the
following evidence:

Benefit Factors

Enhanced recreational opportunities and expanded access to recreational
areas for all property owners, residents, employees and customers
throughout the Assessment District.

Residential properties specifically benefit from the enhanced recreational opportunities
provided by the Improvements made throughout the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District. These include, among others, new parks and open spaces, areas for
nature based recreational activities, and higher levels of maintenance of parks,
recreation areas, and trails than would be provided in absence of the assessment.

In "Trends: Parks, Practice and Program" by Love, L. and Crompton, J. (1993) the authors
found that:

“The provision of parks and recreation services play an influential role in a
community's economic development efforts. When companies choose to set up
business or relocate, the availability of recreation, parks and open space is high
on the priority list for site selection. Recreation and parks have a significant
influence on people's preferred living locations.””

The "Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America’s 1993 State of the Industry Report"
found that:

"From rock climbing to biking to backpacking, the outdoor recreation industry --
worth at least $132 billion annually to the U.S. economy-- is growing by leaps
and bounds. The biggest and most noticeable effect has been on public lands:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s F‘E‘“"E—‘--\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 75



Page 18

Visits to parks and other spaces increased by well over 100 million in the last
decade just as funding dwindled.™
All properties within the assessment district will specially benefit from the assessments
that will be used to expand, protect and maintain public recreational lands, parks, open
space areas, trails and other public resources.

Increased economic activity.

The Assessment District creates expanded and improved parks and recreation areas that
are also better maintained. This specifically increases the desirability of the area and
enhances recreational and wildlife education opportunities, which, in turn, leads to
expanded use. Expanded use and activities facilitated by new and existing parks and
open space areas brings greater numbers of visitors into the area who can utilize the
services of businesses within the Assessment Districts. The visitors to the Park District’s
open space will be more likely to shop and eat locally. Increased use leads to increased
economic activity in the area, which is a special benefit ultimately to residential,
commercial, industrial and institutional property located within the assessment district.

“California's public parks generate more than S35 million annually from
businesses for local events. Visitors to public parks and outdoor recreation areas
support approximately 235,000 jobs in California’s economy. "

“"Numerous studies demonstrate that linear parks can increase property values,
which can in turn increase local tax revenues. Spending by residents on
greenway-related activities helps support recreation-oriented businesses and
employment, as well as other businesses that are patronized by greenway users.
Greenways often provide new business opportunities and locations for
commercial activities like bed and breakfast establishments, and bike and canoe
rental shops. Greenways are often major tourist attractions which generate
expenditures on lodging, food, and recreation-oriented services. Finally,
greenways can reduce public expenditures by lowering the costs associated with
flooding and other natural hazards.”

“Although the chief reason for providing outdoor recreation is the broad social
and individual benefits it produces, it also brings about desirable economic
effects. Its provision enhances community values by creating a better place to
live and increasing land values. In some underdeveloped areas, it can be a
mainstay of the local economy. And it is a basis for big business as the millions
and millions of people seeking the outdoors generate an estimated 520 billion a
year market for goods and services.””

“people are spending increasing amounts of money on recreation. In California
people spent an average of 12 percent of their total personal consumption on
recreation and leisure, which was the third largest industry in the state. Also,
many recreational activities that can be pursued in locally protected areas (such

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ‘ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 76



Page 19

as biking, hiking, bird-watching, cross country skiing, and canoeing) entail
equipment costs that support local businesses, providing new jobs and tax
revenue.”®

Expanded employment opportunity.

Improved recreational areas and public resources foster business growth, which in turn
creates additional employment opportunities for Assessment District residents. In
addition, the assessments expand local employment opportunities by funding new
projects that may create the need for additional construction or maintenance jobs.

Improved and well-maintained parks, open space and recreational areas also provide
business properties with an opportunity to attract and keep employees due to the
benefits provided by these areas.

Non-residential properties also will specifically benefit from the maintenance and
improvement of parks, recreation areas and open space areas in many ways. Employees
will have additional wildlife and recreation areas to utilize for exercise, recreational
activities, picnics, company gatherings or other uses. These Improvements, therefore,
enhance an employer's ability to attract and keep quality employees. The benefits to
employers ultimately flow to the property because better employees improve the
business prospects for companies and enhanced economic conditions specially benefit
the property by making it more valuable.

The California Park and Recreation Society, in 1997 found that:

“Recreation and park amenities are central components in establishing the
quality of life in a community, a business’ main resource is their employees for
whom quality of life is an important issue. The availability and attractiveness of
local parks and programs influences some companies relocation decisions and
the presence of a park encourages real estate development around it.””

Enhanced protection of property through reduction of the risk of fire and
reduced cost of local government in law enforcement, public health care
and natural disaster response.

The assessment also benefits properties in the Assessment District by funding
maintenance services and park safety and security patrols that preserve the level of
special benefits from park and open space in the Assessment District and protect the
public’s parks, recreational facilities and open space resources by reducing the risk of
damage or harm and maintaining public access to these important public resources.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s "f-':*'?f"“““"-mh
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District r{ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 77



Page 20

Improved and well-maintained recreational areas and open space lands can also serve
to improve public safety and reduce the cost to local government by providing a healthy
alternative for youth and adult activities. Studies have shown that adequate park and
recreation areas and recreation programs help to reduce crime and vandalism.

“Natural parks and open space require few public services - no roads, no schools,
no sewage, no solid waste disposal, no water, and minimal fire and police
protection.”®

Exercise derived from recreational activities lessens health related problems
and subsequent health care costs. Every year, premature deaths cost American
companies an estimated 132 million lost work days at a price tag of $25 billion.
Finding and training replacements costs industry more than 5700 million each
year. In addition, American businesses lose an estimated $3 billion every year
because of employee health problems.”
High quality recreational and open space areas allow residents and employees in the
Assessment District to enjoy activities close to home, thereby not spending time driving
to other areas. Moreover, parks, open space and trails in these lands promote healthy
activities that help to reduce the cost of health care. Such cost reduction frees public

funds for other services that benefit properties.

All of these factors ultimately specially benefit property within the Assessment District
by specifically reducing the risk of damage to property, and specifically making the
property within the assessment district more usable and desirable and ultimately, more
valuable.

Specific enhancement of property values due to Enhanced quality of life
and desirability of the area.

The assessments will provide funding to maintain, improve and preserve parks,
recreational facilities and open space areas that otherwise may not be preserved for the
public benefit. Additional development, and the congestion it causes, reduces the
desirability of property within the Assessment District. Therefore, improved open space
areas and public wildlife areas enhance the overall quality of life and desirability of
properties within the Assessment District. This is a special benefit to residential,
commercial, industrial and other properties.

The Presidents Commission on American's Outdoors (1987) found natural beauty
was the single most important factor in deciding tourist destination.*®

“The importance of quality-of-life in business location decisions has been
repeatedly verified in the literature. (Boyle, 1988; Bramlage, 1988, Carn &
Rabianski, 1991; Conway, 1985; Epping, 1986; Sarvis, 1989; Tosh, et.al., 1988)"1

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o "_;_'F‘“?:_&—-"M
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 78



Page 21

“Home buyers over age 55 considering a move were surveyed about the amenities that
“Would seriously influence them in selecting a new community’ ”** the following results

were found:

Amenity Group % Seeking Amenity  Rank on List
Walking and jogging trails 55+ 52 1
Walking and jogging trails 35+ :i:‘:’k per 65

Outdoor spaces 55+ 51 2
Outdoor spaces (park) 55+, moving to 55

suburbs
Open Spaces 55+ 46 4

Extensive park and open space, nature lands and wildlife areas are one of the most
important public resources and features for property owners in the Assessment District.
Therefore, the acquisition and preservation of park and open space properties is a very
important feature for property owners in the Assessment District that enhances the
quality of life and desirability of property located in the Assessment District.

In addition, the assessments provide funding to significantly expand, improve and
maintain the public parks, open space lands, recreational areas, wildlife and nature
habitats, wildlife corridors and other public resources. The Improvements funded by the
assessments also specifically benefit properties by limiting urban sprawl and large lot
development that negatively impacts existing improved properties in the Assessment
Districts. In turn, property values are specifically enhanced by the availability of
expanded, improved, safe, preserved and maintained parks and open space lands within
a community. Values of commercial and industrial property increase based on these
same elements and the enhanced economic activity derived from the greater quantity
and quality of public resources in the area.

The correlation between enhanced property values and expanded and well-maintained
open space areas and recreational areas has been documented. The United States
Department of the Interior, National Park Service determined that:

“An investment in parks and recreation helps reduce pollution and noise, makes
communities more livable, and increases property value. Parks and recreation
stimulate business and generate tax revenues. Parks and recreation help
conserve land, energy and resources. Public recreation benefits all employers by
providing continuing opportunities to maintain a level of fitness throughout

Orangevale Recreation and Park District = %
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District ‘(iConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 79



Page 22

one’s working life, and through helping individuals cope with the stress of a fast-
paced and demanding life.”*?

Additionally, the National Recreation and Park Association, in June 1985, stated:

“The recreation value is realized as a rise in the value of land and other property
in or near the recreation area, and is of both private interest to the landowner
and others, holding an economic stake in the area, and of public interest to the
taxpayers, who have a stake in a maximum of total assessed values. #as

Moreover, the Supreme Court of California and the United States Supreme Court have
found that improved and well-maintained park facilities confer special benefits to
property by enhancing property values. In Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4th 132, 143
(1993) the Supreme Court of California found that:

“Plaintiff’s basic argument that a special assessment is never appropriate to
fund park improvements is unconvincing. Significantly, plaintiff’s attempt to
differentiate between street lights, sewers, sidewalks and flood control as
constituting proper subjects for special assessment, and public parks as matters
of such a general nature as to not justify a special assessment, is virtually
identical to an argument rejected nearly a century ago by the United States
Supreme Court in Wilson v. Lambert.”?

In Wilson v. Lambert (1898) the United States Supreme Court stated:

“The residents and property holders in the District of Columbia must be regarded
as coming within the class of beneficiaries; and, so far from being injured by the
declaration that the park shall also have national character, it is apparent that
thereby the welfare of the inhabitants of the Assessment District will be
promoted. Whatever tends to increase the attractiveness of the City of
Washington, as a place of permanent or temporary residence, will operate to
enhance the value of private property situated therein or adjacent thereto. 16

In addition, professional property appraisers and instructional books on the subject find
that well-maintained public recreational grounds and areas enhance property values in
a community. Enhancement value is the tendency of open space to enhance the
property value of adjacent properties. It is also explicitly recognized by federal income

tax law:

U.S. Treasury regulation Sec. 14(h)(3)(i) requires that the valuation of a
conservation easement take into account (i.e., be offset by) any resulting
increase in the value of other property owned by the donor of the easement or a
related person. Section 14(h)(4) sites as an example a landowner who owns 10
one-acre lots and donates an easement over eight of them: “By perpetually
restricting development on this portion of the land, (the landowner) has ensured
that the two remaining acres will always be bordered by parkland, thereby
increasing their fair market value.”

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s
sCiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 80



Page 23

The special benefits from the Improvements are further detailed below:

Proximity to improved parks and recreational facilities, and zones of
benefit

According to the industry-standard guidelines established by the National Park and
Recreation Association {the “NPRA”), neighborhood parks in urban areas have a service
area radius of generally one-half mile and community parks have a service area radius of
approximately two miles. Sacramento County also provides similar to slightly larger park
service area radii guidelines. The service radii for neighborhood parks and neighborhood
green spaces were specifically established to give all properties within this service radii
close proximity and easy walking access to such public land areas. Since proximate and
accessible parks serve as an extension of the usable land area for property in the service
radii and since the service radii was specifically designed to provide close proximity and
access, the parcels within this service area clearly receive a direct advantage and special
benefit from the Improvements - and this advantage is not received by other properties
or the public at large.

An analysis of the service radii for the Improvements finds that all properties in the
Assessment District enjoy the distinct and direct advantage of being close and proximate
to one or often multiple parks within the Assessment District, and lie within the
recommended service radius for such facilities. The benefiting properties in the
Assessment District therefore uniquely and specially benefit from the Improvements.

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the Improvements are included in
the Assessment District. All properties within each of the four planning quadrants of the
Assessment District enjoys unique and valuable proximity and access to the
Improvements within the established service radii, discussed above, that the public at
large and property outside the Assessment District do not share.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed
projects combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property
within a particular land use category, regardless of the location of that property within
the boundaries of the Assessment District.

The reasons for this determination are as follows:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ,;;;m
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District srziConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 81



Page 24

1. The capital development plan provides for major new and/or expanded and
renovated neighborhood park and recreational facilities in each of the four
planning quadrants utilized by the Park District, disbursed equally
throughout the geographic area comprising the proposed Assessment
District. The total area served by the Park District is approximately sixteen
square miles. Each of these planning quadrants contains an average area of
approximately four square miles. The maximum distance from a parcel of
real property to a new or expanded neighborhood park and recreational
facility in the northwest quadrant is 1.5 miles. In the northeast quadrant,
the distance is approximately 1.6 miles. The distance is 1.5 in the southwest
quadrant and 1 mile in the southeast quadrant. Therefore, all parcels of real
property within the proposed Assessment District are located within an
average maximum one and one-half mile radius from a new or expanded
neighborhood park and recreational facility constructed, maintained and
improved with assessment proceeds.

2. The most significant of these projects is a fourteen-acre community park
with a 12,000 square foot community center with pool, located in the
geographic center of the Assessment District and easily accessible to all
residents of the District. All parcels of real property within the proposed
Assessment District are located within a two-and-one-half mile radius of the
proposed community center, well within the Sacramento County planning
guidelines for such community centers.

The boundaries of the Assessment District have been carefully drawn to include the
properties in the Orangevale Recreation and Park District that are proximate to the
proposed Improvements and that would materially benefit from the Improvements.
The Assessment District is coterminous with the District boundaries. As the properties in
the District have developed over time, regional and neighborhood parks have been
strategically located throughout the community as it has been built out. Park size and
location have been carefully incorporated into the design of the community, consistent
with the NPRA and Sacramento County park planning guidelines. Now, with a mature
community, all parcels in the District are located in close proximity to at least one park.
it therefore is appropriate to provide a District-wide Assessment District because all
parcels benefit similarly.

In the Assessment District, the advantage that each parcel receives from the
Improvements is direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels
that benefit from the Assessment. Since all parcels in the Assessment District have good
access, additional proximity is not considered to be a factor in determining benefit
within the Assessment District. Therefore, zones of benefit are not justified or needed
within the Assessment District.

e ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —
iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 82



Page 25

Access to improved parks, open space and recreational areas

Since all of the parcels within the Assessment District enjoy close access to the
Improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved parks,
open space and recreation areas that are provided by the Assessments. This is a direct
advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.

Improved views

The Park District, by maintaining the landscaping at its park, recreation and open space
facilities provides improved views to properties in the Assessment District. The
properties in the Assessment District enjoy close and unique proximity, access and
therefore views of the Improvements; therefore, the improved and protected views
provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely
conferred upon property in the Assessment District.

General versus Special Benefit

Article XIlIC of the California Constitution requires any local agency proposing to
increase or impose a benefit assessment to “separate the general benefits from the
special benefits conferred on a parcel.” The rationale for separating special and general
benefits is to ensure that property owners subject to the benefit assessment are not
paying for general benefits. The assessment can fund special benefits but cannot fund
general benefits. Accordingly, a separate estimate of the special and general benefit is
given in this section.

In other words:

Total _  General + Special
Benefit ~  Benefit Benefit

There is no widely accepted or statutory formula for general benefit. General benefits
are benefits from improvements or services that are not special in nature, are not
“particular and distinct” and are not “over and above” benefits received by other
properties. The SVTA decision provides some clarification by indicating that general
benefits provide “an indirect, derivative advantage” and are not necessarily proximate
to the improvements.

In this report, the general benefit is conservatively estimated and described, and then
budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the assessment.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e —e
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 83



Page 26

The starting point for evaluating general and special benefits is the current, baseline
level of service. The baseline level of service is defined as the extent and level of park
and recreation facilities that would exist in absence of the assessments. The assessment
funds Improvements “over and above” this general, baseline level and the general
benefits estimated in this section are over and above the baseline.

A formula to estimate the general benefit is listed below:

Benefit to Real Benefit to Real Property Benefit to
General - Property Outside Inside the Assessment +  the Public
Benefit the Assessment District that is Indirect and at Large
District Derivative

Special benefit, on the other hand, is defined in the state constitution as “a particular
and distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred on real property located
in the district or to the public at large.” The SVTA decision indicates that a special
benefit is conferred to a property if it “receives a direct advantage from the
improvement (e.g., proximity to a park).” In this assessment, as noted, properties in the
Assessment District have close and unique proximity, views and access to the
Improvements and uniquely improved desirability from the Improvements and other
properties and the public at large do not receive significant benefits because they do
not have proximity, access or views of the Improvements. Therefore, the overwhelming
proportion of the benefits conferred to property is special, and is only minimally
received by property outside the Assessment District or the public at large.

In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit
on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided
within the assessment district. It is also important to note that the improvements and
services funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and
services funded by the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report and the Court
found these improvements and services to be 100% special benefit. Also similar to the
assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer’s Report fund
improvements and services directly provided within the Assessment District and every
benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys proximity and access to the
improvements. Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general
benefits from the Assessments. However, in this Report, the general benefit is more
conservatively estimated and described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by
sources other than the Assessment.

Calculating General Benefit

In this section, the general benefit is conservatively quantified.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District et —o -“;_E"E&---\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District {ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 84



Page 27

Benefit to Property Outside the Assessment District

Properties within the Assessment District receive almost all of the special benefits from
the Improvements because properties in the Assessment District enjoy unique close
proximity and access to the Improvements that is not enjoyed by other properties or the
public at large. However, certain properties within the proximity/access radius of the
Improvements, but outside of the boundaries of the Assessment District, may receive
some benefit from the Improvements. Since this benefit is conferred to properties
outside the Assessment District boundaries, it contributes to the overall general benefit
calculation and will not be funded by the Assessments.

The properties outside the Assessment District and within the proximity radii for
neighborhood or community parks in the Assessment District may receive some benefits
from the Improvements. Since these properties are not assessed for their benefits
because they are outside of the area that can be assessed by the District, this is form of
general benefit to the public at large and other property. A 50% reduction factor is
applied to these properties because they are all geographically on only one side of the
Improvements and are over twice the average distance from the Improvements
compared to properties in the Assessment District.

The general benefit to property outside of the Assessment District is calculated as
follows with the parcel and data analysis performed by SCI Consulting Group.

Assumptions:

11,563 parcels outside the district but within either 0.5 miles of a neighborhood
park or 2.0 miles of a community park within the Assessment District

11, 816 parcels in the Assessment District

50% relative benefit compared to property within the Assessment district
Calculation

General Benefit to Property Outside the Improvement District =

(11,563/(11,563+11,816))*.5 = 24.7%

Although it can reasonably be argued that Improvements inside, but near the Park
District boundaries are offset by similar park and recreational improvements provided
outside, but near the Park District’s boundaries, we use the more conservative approach
of finding that 24.7% of the Improvements may be of general benefit to property
outside the Assessment District.

== ‘-_—5’?&-_.“_\

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e ,
iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 85



Page 28

Benefit to Property within the Assessment District

The “indirect and derivative” benefit to property within the Assessment District is
particularly difficult to calculate. A solid argument can be presented that all benefit
within the Assessment District is special, because the Improvements are clearly “over
and above” and “particular and distinct” when compared with the baseline level of
service and the unique proximity, access and views of the Improvements enjoyed by
benefiting properties in the Assessment District.

Nevertheless, the SVTA decision indicates there may be general benefit “conferred on
real property located in the district” A measure of the general benefits to property
within the Assessment area is the percentage of land area within the Assessment
District that is publicly owned and used for regional purposes such as major roads, rail
lines and other regional facilities because such properties, while physically within the
Assessment District, are used for regional purposes and could provide indirect benefits
to the public at large. Approximately 2.5% of the land area in the Assessment District is
used for such regional purposes, so this is a measure of the general benefits to property
within the Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District %ﬁﬁw
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District &4:1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 86



Page 29

Benefit to the Public at Large

In Beutz, the Court opined that general benefits from parks and recreation facilities
could be quantified by measuring the use of parks and recreation facilities by people
who do not live within the assessment boundaries. This Report uses this general benefit
measure as the third component of our overall general benefit quantification.
Therefore, the general benefit to the public at large can be estimated by the
proportionate amount of time that the Park District’s parks and recreational facilities
are used and enjoyed by individuals who are not residents, employees, customers or
property owners in the Park District’. SCI has conducted numerous surveys of similar
parks and recreation districts in the Sacramento area and other areas in California and
has determined that use by the public at large is nearly always less than 20%. Moreover,
a second quantification of benefits to the public at large is based on solid, credible
evidence consisting of District records which document the percentage of participants in
the District’s recreation programs conducted within the District’s park and recreational
facilities who reside within the District and the percentage of those who utilize the
District’s recreational programs and services and reside outside of the District. The
percentage of participants in the District’s recreation programs who do not reside within
the Assessment District provides another estimate of the percentage of general benefit
to the public at large. This analysis found that 20% of recreation program participants do
not reside in the District. Based on this data and analysis, we conclude that the general
benefits to the public at large equal 20%.

Total General Benefits

Using a sum of these three measures of general benefit, we find that approximately
47.2% of the benefits conferred by the Improvements may be general in nature and
should be funded by sources other than the assessment.

1 When District facilities are used by those individuals, the facilities are not providing benefit to
property within the Park District. Use under these circumstances is a measure of general benefit.
For example, a non-resident who is drawn to utilize the Park District facilities and shops at local
businesses while in the area would provide special benefit to business properties as a result of
his or her use of the Improvements. Conversely, one who uses Park District facilities but does
not reside, work, shop or own property within the Park District boundaries does not provide
special benefits to any property and is considered to be a measure of the general benefits.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District S —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District {ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 87



Page 30

General Benefit Calculation

24.7% (Outside the Assessment District)
+ 2.5% (Property within the Assessment District)
+ 20.0% (Public at Large)

=47.2% (Total General Benefit)

Although this analysis finds that 47.2% of the assessment may provide general benefits,
the Assessment Engineer establishes a requirement for a minimum contribution from
sources other than the assessments of 50.0%. This minimum contribution above the
measure of general benefits will serve to provide additional coverage for any other
possible general benefits.

The Assessment District’s total budget for installation, maintenance and servicing of the
Improvements is $2,766,100. Of this total budget amount, the District and other partner
agencies and contributors will contribute $2,197,457 from sources other than the
assessments. This contribution equates to approximately 79.4% of the total budget for
installation, maintenance and servicing of the park and recreational improvements and
constitutes more than the measure of 50.0% general benefits from the Improvements.

Benefit Finding

As extensively described in this Report, the assessment funds will be used to improve,
maintain and preserve a well distributed set of important local resource lands and
improvements in the Assessment District. Any general benefits from the Improvements
to the public at large or property in the Assessment District are more than offset by the
District’s contributions, which are well above the cost of the Improvements providing
special benefits to property in the Assessment District. Therefore, this Engineer’s Report
finds that the Improvements are a significant, tangible benefit that should reasonably
and rationally confer more special benefit to properties in the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District than the assessment rate of $42.00 per benefit unit.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e '*é"““'—--—‘
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 88



Page 31

Method of Assessment

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by
each property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of
Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the
purposes of this Engineer’s Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is
each property’s relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. In this
case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one
Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

Assessment Apportionment

To estimate the relative benefit to each land use class from the proposed
improvements, a point system was created prior to Proposition 218 utilizing the single
family residential parcel as the "benchmark property”. A Benefit Assessment Matrix,
illustrating relative scoring of points by land use class and the grandfathered benefit
categories and the total points for each land use class, is set forth at the Benefit
Assessment Matrix Section of this Report, and indicates the point scoring and totals for
each land use class.

The Board has determined that the location, nature and function of the proposed
projects combine to provide substantially equal benefit to all parcels of real property
within a particular land use category, regardless of the location of that property within
the boundaries of the assessment district.

The following is a brief description of the resulting assignment of points for each land
use class:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —————
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District #iConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 89



Page 32

Land Use Classes

Land Use Class A: Single Family Residential /Condominium Parcels

This is the "benchmark property” for determining benefit, which will be conferred on
each parcel by the proposed projects to be constructed with assessment proceeds. A
base rating of five (5) points has been assigned for single family residential parcels with
respect to the following benefits: enhanced recreation opportunities Benefit Category
1); preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets Benefit Category 2);
expanded employment opportunities (Benefit Category 4); reduced costs of local
government for law enforcement and public healthcare (Benefit Category 5); and
increased property values Benefit Category 6). No points were assigned for Category 3
regarding economic activity as residential properties were viewed as not receiving any
such benefit. Benefit Category 3 describes a direct economic benefit to commercial and
industrial properties, and is not applicable to single family residential parcels. Therefore,
each single-family residential parcel was assigned a point total of twenty-five (25)
points.

Condominium parcels were judged to benefit the same as single family residential
parcels in these benefit categories, and therefore the same point total of twenty-five
(25) points was assigned to condominium parcels and they are included as part of the
single family residential land use class. Condominium parcels will be assessed on a per
unit basis since the ownership of condominium units is carried on the Sacramento
County Assessor's records on a per unit basis.

Land Use Class B: Multi-Residential and Apartment Parcels

Multi-residential and apartment parcels are reported on the Sacramento County
Assessor's records by the number of multi-family dwelling units on each parcel. Each
multi-family dwelling unit was judged to benefit the same from the proposed
improvements as will a single family residential parcel with respect to enhanced
recreational opportunities (Benefit Category 1), preservation of open space, scenery and
cultural assets (Benefit Category 2), expanded employment opportunities (Benefit
Category 4), and increased property values (Benefit Category 6).

= R ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o i
“iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 90



Page 33

However, unlike single family residential/condominium parcels, multi-residential and
apartment parcels were judged to receive some benefit in the form of increased
economic activity resulting in the attraction of customers, most notably prospective
tenants, which could be expected to occur as a result of expanded and improved park
and recreational facilities available for use by prospective tenants. Therefore, a point
total of two (2) was assigned to multi-residential and apartment parcels in Benefit
Category 3. With respect to Benefit Category 5, reduced costs of local government for
law enforcement and public healthcare, multi-residential and apartment parcels were
judged to benefit somewhat less than the single family residential/condominium parcels
because some multi-residential units provide their own private security services.

Therefore, three (3) points were assigned in Benefit Category 5 for multi-residential and
apartment parcels. Each multi-residential or apartment unit was therefore assigned a
total of twenty-five (25) points.

Land Use Class C: Mobile Home Residential Parcels

Mobile home residential parcels were judged to benefit essentially the same as single-
family residential/condominium parcels and multi -residential and apartment parcels in
all benefit categories. A base rating of three (3) points has been assigned for each
benefit category. Therefore, each such parcel is assigned a total of fifteen (15) points.

Land Use Class D: Commercial Property

The commercial land use class has been broken down into various subcategories
consisting of retail stores, service stations, restaurants, hotel/motel, theaters,
recreation, private golf course/country club, shopping center, other commercial/service
sector and other commercial/product sector.

Commercial parcels are judged to benefit substantially less than do single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the enhanced recreational
opportunities afforded by the proposed improvements (Benefit Category 1). Therefore,
two (2) points were assigned to the commercial land use class in that category.
Commercial properties were also perceived to benefit less than single family
residential/condominium parcels with respect to the benefit of preservation of open
space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit Category 2) and only one (1) point was
assigned to the commercial land use category in this Benefit Category 2.

——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District T
CiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 91



Page 34

On the other hand, commercial properties will benefit from construction and
maintenance of the proposed improvements in terms of the increased economic activity
and the attraction of customers and clients that will result benefit Category 3) and thus
five (5) points were assigned to the commercial land use category in this Benefit
Category 3, whereas single family residential/condominium parcels received zero points
in this Benefit Category 3. In Benefit Category 4 regarding expanded employment
opportunities, commercial properties are also assigned five (5) points upon the rationale
that the increased business activity generated by construction of new park and
recreational facilities and expanded recreational programs will not only make the
community a better place to live, but it will also make it a better place to work, making
it easier for a local business to attract and keep quality employees.

Commercial properties were judged to benefit somewhat less (4 points) than single
family residential/condominium parcels with respect to the benefit of reduced cost of
local government for law enforcement or public healthcare, primarily because most
commercial parcels within the assessment district are not located in close proximity to
District facilities and therefore the effects of the District's expanded security program
will benefit commercial property somewhat less than residential properties.

With respect to the benefit of increased property value (Benefit Category 6) commercial
properties were perceived to benefit to the same extent, although in a slightly different
way, than single family residential parcels and five (5) points were assigned to the
commercial land use category in Benefit Category 6. Values of commercial properties
increase based on (a) increased economic and business activity generated by the
construction of the proposed park and recreational improvements; and (b) the
increased volume of business generated by expanded recreational activities and special
events facilitated by such new and refurbished facilities which creates a greater number
of users of the facilities who will also utilize the services of businesses within the
Assessment District boundaries.

These considerations lead to a point total of twenty-two (22) points for the commercial
land use class which is slightly less than the twenty-five (25) points assigned to the single
family residential/condominium class. This reflects the fact that commercial properties
are judged to benefit less than residential properties from the construction of the
proposed improvements once all of the potential benefits to real property from the
proposed improvements are evaluated.

e ———

Orangevale Recreation and Park District G =
-iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 92



Page 35

Land Use Category E: Industrial and Mini Storage Parcels

Industrial and mini storage parcels have been judged to benefit less than will
commercial properties from the construction of the proposed improvements. Such
parcels only benefit incidentally from the enhanced recreational opportunities benefit
Category 1) and preservation of open space, scenery and cultural assets (Benefit
Category 2). Therefore, such parcels have been assigned a rating of one (1) point in each
of those benefit categories. However, industrial and mini storage parcels were assigned
a point rating of three (3) in Benefit Category 3, the benefit of increased economic
activity, since the construction of the proposed improvements will benefit some local
industries in the areas of construction supplies, hardware, etc. Such parcels will
probably benefit less than retail commercial parcels from the increased economic
activity generated by greater numbers of users of the proposed park and recreational
improvements to be constructed. With respect to expanded employment opportunity
Benefit Category 4), a rating of one (1) point was assigned since mini storage
employment opportunities are negligible and industrial employment opportunities are
driven by market factors unrelated to usage by people who also utilize the park and
recreational improvements and the expanded recreation opportunities afforded by
those facilities. Industrial parcels have been assigned a rating of two (2) in Benefit
Category 6 regarding increased property value which is less than the five (5) points
assigned in this category to commercial property because industrial parcels are not
judged to increase in value as a result of construction of the proposed improvements to
the same extent as will commercial properties. Industrial properties will not experience
increased economic activity generated by users of the proposed facilities as will
commercial properties, and therefore the value of such industrial parcels will be
affected to a smaller degree than will the value of commercial parcels. With respect to
the reduced cost of local government for law enforcement and public healthcare
(Benefit Category 5), industrial and mini storage parcels were only assigned a rating of
two (2), less than all other land use classes. Such parcels are perceived to benefit less in
this area since many such parcel owners provide their own security and because
industrial and mini storage uses are perceived to generate less law enforcement activity
and cost than do commercial properties, particularly retail properties. On the other
hand, industrial parcels should benefit from reduced costs of public healthcare in the
same way and to the same general extent as will commercial properties. Therefore, a
rating of two (2) points was assigned to industrial/mini storage uses in this Benefit

Category 5.

The total point score for industrial/mini storage parcels is ten (10) points per assessable
unit, reflecting the fact that these parcels will benefit less from the proposed
improvements than will the other land use classes.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e "f%
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District = 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 93



Page 36

Land Use Class F: Exempt Parcels

This land use class includes all parcels which are classified as exempt from real property
tax by the Sacramento County Tax Assessor and includes all parcels classified as exempt
from this type of assessment by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. Therefore,
vacant properties will not be assessed until they are put to some use. At the time that
they are put to use, they will be assessed based on the land use category into which the
vacant property falls.

Properties owned by governmental entities such as the federal government, State
government, and other special districts, such as water districts, school districts, and fire
districts, also will not be assessed. It has been determined that these parcels are not the
type of property for which the park and recreational facilities funded with assessment
proceeds were planned, designed, constructed, operated and maintained. The Board
has determined that these publicly owned properties do not receive the same special
benefits from the construction of these facilities as do the other land use classes
described above. In addition public schools have entered into joint use agreements with
the District which provide economic value to the District which offsets the cost of any
incidental special benefits received by these publicly owned parcels. Likewise, property
consisting of a railroad, gas, water, or electric utility right-of-way shall not be assessed,
since such utility-related property is not deemed to benefit at all from the construction
of the proposed improvements. Finally, properties owned by churches, vacant and
agricultural parcels will not be assessed.

Since the exempt land use class receives a zero point rating in all benefit categories, it is
not included in the Benefit Assessment Matrix.

= o

Orangevale Recreation and Park District m— o
;ConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 94



Page 37

Non-Residential Assessment Units

In order to equalize the assessment among residential and non-residential land use
classes in terms of the area of land to be benefited by the construction of the proposed
improvements, an assessment methodology has been used to convert the acreage of
each non-residential parcel into an equivalent number of single family residential
parcels that could have been developed on each non-residential parcel but for the
commercial and/or industrial use to which the parcel has been put. Approximately
eighty-eight percent (88%) of the parcels within the proposed Assessment District are
traditional single-family residential subdivision lots. The average gross density of these
subdivisions is approximately 3.6 gross dwelling units per acre. Assuming ten percent
(10%) of the gross acreage of a subdivision is consumed in public streets, the average
net density of these subdivisions is approximately 4.0 dwelling units per net acre and
the average residential lot size is approximately one-quarter acre. Accordingly, the
number of assessment units for each commercial and industrial parcel has been
determined by dividing the parcel acreage of each parcel by four. Therefore, each
commercial and industrial parcel within the Assessment District will be assessed on a
quarter acre basis and each one-quarter acre of each commercial and/or industrial
parcel will generate a separate assessment. This methodology equalizes the assessment
and the distribution of benefit between residential and non-residential parcels by
insuring that each non-residential assessment unit represents essentially the same land
area to be benefited by the construction of the improvements with assessment
proceeds as the average single family residential parcel.

Benefit Factor Index

The Assessment Matrix also shows the Benefit Factor index for each land use category.
Since a single family residential parcel is the "benchmark property”, the relative scores
of all other land use classes were related to the benchmark by indexing. A single family
residential parcel was assigned a relative Benefit Factor Index of 1.00. The Benefit Factor
Index for other land use classes was determined by dividing the point total for each
particular land use class by the point total for the single family/condominium residential
class.

Assessment Per Parcel

The total number of units (either dwelling unit or one-quarter acre parcel count) for
each land use class was multiplied by its respective Benefit Factor Index to determine
the number of Single Family Equivalent (SFE) assessment benefit units for each land use
class. The sum of the Assessment Units for all land use classes was then divided into the
annual assessment amount to determine a Base Assessment.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District mm— j‘m"—“—-\
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District -1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 95



Page 38

The final assessment per parcel was determined by multiplying the Base Assessment
times the SFE units for the parcel.

Benefit Assessment Matrix

In an effort to categorize the special benefit that each parcel of land would receive by
the formation of a landscaping and lighting assessment district and the levying of an
assessment to cover the improvements intended, a matrix of impacts was developed.
The matrix follows this section. The matrix was developed as follows.

The determining factor as to how a benefit was derived was the use of the land as
determined by the Sacramento County Assessor’s Department. Each parcel is assigned a
one digit code based upon the use of the property and in most cases, the zoning of the
land. Using the Assessor’s Code numbers, the various uses of land within the District
boundaries were broken down into five different uses. It was determined that there are
six different ways that a parcel of land can be benefited by enhancing the park system.
Each different category of land use is affected differently by these types of benefit.

Each type of benefit was applied to each category of use and rated on a scale of one to
five, with five being the most intense level of benefit. The number of points assigned by
the rating is shown on the following page. The points for the six types of benefit were
tallied and an overall number was determined for each category of land use. The
resultant number is then used in assigning the annual assessment to the various parcels
of land within the District boundaries. An annual check is made of property usage to
ensure that the latest information is used in assigning the assessment levy.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District “M
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ 1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 96



Page 39

ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 ASSESSMENT
BENEFIT ASSESSMENT MATRIX

Land Use Classes
Per Unit Per 1/4 Acre
Single Family/ Industrial/
Condominium | Multi-Family | Mobile Home | Commercial | Mini-Storage
1 |Enhanced recreation opportunities and expanded
access to recreation facilities for residents, s 5 5 2 1
customers and guests
2
Preservation of open space, wildlife, scenery,
views and other environmental benefits enjoyed 5 5 5 1 1
by residents, customers and guests; protection of
historical and cultural assets of the region.
3 |Increased economic activity resulting in the o 2 o 5 3
attraction of customers and guests.
4 |Expanded employment opportunities. 5 5 5 5 1
5 [Reduced cost of local government in law 5 3 3 a 2
enforcement and public health care.
6 |Increased property values. 5 5 4 5 2
Total Points 25 25 22 22 10
Units/ 1/4 Acre 10,700 1,734 414 780 136
Benefit Factor Index 1.00 1.00 0.88 0.88 0.40
Single Family Equivalent Units (SFE) 10,700.00 1,734.00 364.32 686.40 54.40
Total SFE Units 13,539.12
I [
Annual Assessment Amount $568,643.04
[ [ [
Base Assessment $42.00
Assessment per Unit $42.00 $42.00 $36.96 $36.96 $16.80
Assessment per SFE $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00
Assessment Subtotals $449,400.00 $72,828.00 $15,301.44 $28,828.80 $2,284.80
Total Assessment $568,643.04
\ J
Orangevale Recreation and Park District .
=621ConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 97



Page 40

Assessment

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2024 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within
the Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XHID of the California Constitution (collectively “the
Act”), to proceed with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and
file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and
an assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels
within the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said
improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the
assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2024-25 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE
FY 2024-25)
Budget
Capital Improvements and Maintenance Expenditures $1,487,200
Incidental Expenses $23,600
Debt Service $1,300
Salaries and Benefits $1,254,000
TOTAL BUDGET $2,766,100
|Less: Contributions
District Contribution for General Benefits ($1 ,383,050)|
District Contribution toward Special Benefits ($814,407)
INET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $568,643
Orangevale Recreation and Park District e

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District £ iConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 98



Page 41

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part
hereof showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive
number of each parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel
Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

I do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and
lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth
in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made
a part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District
in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from
said improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal
year 2024-25. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby
made to the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder
of said County.

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2024-25 for each
parcel or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: April 12, 2024

Engineer of Work

5

John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

By

e

Orangevale Recreation and Park District = <
= iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 99



Page 42

Assessment Diagram

The Assessment District includes all properties within the boundaries of the Orangevale
Recreation and Park District. The area within the boundaries of the Park District is
primarily developed for urban residential and commercial use.

The boundaries of the Parks Maintenance and Assessment District are displayed on the
following Assessment Diagram.

e —

Orangevale Recreation and Park District v il -
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District #C1ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 100



Page 43

WVIOVIA LNAWSSTSSV ik ¥ WP
LOTILSIT INTHSSISSY ONLLHOM ONY DONIIVISANY P yhaniiciyind
LORLLSIQ Yvd ¥ NOLLY TUI TIVAIINVEO

Aiepunog 1181 Wed pue uoeanay aisrebueio [ ]
puaba

“WITW DU §SHOSTASSY IAILINLLSIO St
A% Savia OIVS NIG3LAMVID $1103Nw HOV3 'ST30WN
HONE [0 ONY G301 3HL 02

SHYASC TIV U0 NUZSQD TIVHE Sdvih FE0HL, "N
NWOHS STROMYS ANY 2O SREISNANIA Gty S3M1 FHL 4O
NOILa HI830 03 NVAIC Y 803 QANINYEOVE 40 ALNICD
3HX 40 HOSSASEY 34 40 IDNA40 1L M OBOORS 0
SOARG ONY Sdvinl FHL DL FAYW ABENEN S uuzﬁwuwn

O ¢

GNWY 40 TR0MUYY HOVH LENNOY URIAET ININBEILIY

z?ﬂa n%\_i..ozzuz: ik #0d 10 Em‘.w.unummn
WO OXvG O BOVIN ARRNI §1 300

oz 40 AYG Ml O

QUNIYEIVE 30 ALNAGD SHL 40 NOLIGNY ALNNCY

H A0 30420 FHL M G 14 FUIN WA WWISL OIS Y04

1I0H LNIABSIREY 3-LL INEVUOVIO LNENSEIRSY IV

ONY <02 YVIA YDl FHL HOJ 62 40 AVG

BHL NO NVADWIG INRNSEASEY SIKA 30 ONYY 50

B USATNOKY TIMUINOD St A NEIVBEZSEY Ne

HOLYHLSINIADY

TR J0AYE
STHL YINOITYD DINZOVHIVE 43 ALNNGS
LOSULEIC Xifrd GNY hOLYIMOT TTYAIONVEO 3Hs
40 HOLYHASINIHOY 3HL 45 FT0 3HL N OIII003Y

L3INL

g
Avd Sl WNIOANYO QUNIHVEIYE 3Q

ALNAOD LNY S SRV ONY NOLLwII3Y IWAZINYLC
AL SO HOLVHLISINAGY FH L 30 3Did S0 THL N O3y

Page 101

£:1ConsultingGroup

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



Page 44

This page intentionally left blank

S i

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e— -
~CiConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 102



Page 45

Assessment Roll 2024-25

An Assessment Roll (a listing of all parcels assessed within the Assessment District and
the amount of the assessment) will be filed with the Clerk of the Board and is, by
reference, made part of this report and is available for public inspection during normal
office hours.

Each lot or parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is shown and illustrated on the latest
County Assessor records and these records are, by reference made part of this report.
These records shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or

parcels.
Orangevale Recreation and Park District ey ; —
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District S 1ConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 103



Page 46

End thés

1 Love, L. and Crompton, ). Trends: Parks, Practice and Program. Oxford University
Press-USA. New York, NY. 1993.

2 1993 State of the Industry Report . Widdekind, L. ed. The Outdoor Industry Association
(The Outdoor Recreation Coalition of America and the Sporting Goods Manufacturers
Association's Outdoor Products. pub.) Boulder CO. 1993.

3 california Parks and Recreation. The California Parks and Recreation Society, pub.

Sacramento, CA. (http://www.cprs.org.)

4 PKF Consulting. San Francisco, CA. “Analysis of the Economic Impacts of the Northern
Central Rail Trail.” For the Greenways Commission, Maryland Department of Natural
Resources, Annapolis, Maryland. June 1994.

5 Outdoor Recreation Resources Review Commission, Outdoor Recreation For America: A
Report To The President And The Congress. January 2002.

6 ibid. Smith, Van.

7 Ibid. California Parks and Recreation. 1997.

8 parks and Recreation, National Recreation and Park Association, pub. Ashburn,
Virginia. January 2001. (http://www.nrpa.org/)

9 National Park Service. NPS Technical Information Center. Washington D.C, 1983.

10 Report of the President Commission on Americans Outdoors, U.S. Government
Printing Office: Management. Washington D.C. 1987.

11 Crompton, J., Love L., More T., An Empirical Study of the Role of Recreation, Parks and
Open Space in Companies’ (Re)Location Decisions, Journal of Park and Recreation
Administration, Spring, 1997, vol 15 no. 1, p p37, 40.

12 \wylde, Boomers on the Horizon: Housing Preferences of the 55+ Market, National
Association of Home Builders, 2002,

13 |bid. NPS.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e o ——
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District #£CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 104



Page 47

14 Ibid. NPRA. June 1985.

15 Knox v. City of Orland,4 Cal.4t 132, 143 (1993) the Supreme Court of California.

16 wilson v. Lambert (1898) 168 U.S. 611, 616 [42 L.Ed. 599, 601, 185.Ct.217] the United
States Supreme Court.

e

Orangevale Recreation and Park District m—
= iConsultingGroup

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 105



ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 24-05-721

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT APPROVING THE RESOLUTION OF
INTENTION TO LEVY ASSESSMENTS FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2024-25, PRELIMINARILY APPROVING THE
ENGINEER'S REPORT AND PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF HEARING
FOR THE KENNETH GROVE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Kenneth Grove
Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District, County of Sacramento, State of
California, has previously ordered through Resolution 94-05-86A the formation of an
assessment district pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of
1972 for the purpose of financing certain park and recreation improvements and
refurbishments as specified in the District’s updated Master Plan and for the purpose
of funding maintenance operations of the District; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of
the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District, County of
Sacramento, State of California, that:

1. On February 15, 2024, this Board adopted Resolution No. 23-02-717, A
Resolution Directing Preparation of the 2023-24 Engineer’s Report for
the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (the
“Assessment District”). Pursuant to this resolution, SCI Consulting
Group., the Engineer of Work, prepared a report in accordance with
Article XIIID of the California Constitution and Section 22565, et seq.,
of the California Streets and Highways Code (the "Report"). The Report
has been made, filed with the Clerk of the Board and duly considered by
the Board and is hereby deemed sufficient and preliminarily approved.
The Report shall stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent
proceedings under and pursuant to the foregoing resolution.

2. It is the intention of this Board to levy and collect assessments within the
Assessment District for fiscal year 2024-25. Within the Assessment
District, the existing and proposed improvements, and any substantial
changes proposed to be made to the existing improvements, are generally
described as installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational
facilities and improvements, including, but not limited to, turf and play
areas, landscaping, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems,
drainage systems, lighting, fencing, entry monuments, basketball courts,
tennis courts, gymnasium, running tracks, swimming pools, other
recreational facilities, security patrols to protect the Improvements,
graffiti removal and repainting, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and
equipment, as applicable, at each of the locations owned, operated or
maintained by the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment
District.

3. The Assessment District consists of the lots and parcels shown on the
boundary map of the Assessment District on file with the Clerk of the
Board of the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment
District, and reference is hereby made to such map for further particulars.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 106



P —
OVpaRKs

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

4. Reference is hereby made to the Engineer’s Report for a full and detailed
description of the improvements, the boundaries of the Assessment
District and the proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of
land within the Assessment District. The Engineer’s Report identifies all
parcels which will have a special benefit conferred upon them and upon
which an assessment will be imposed.

5. The assessments are not proposed to increase from the previous year’s
assessments. The Board of Directors declares its intent to levy and collect
assessments for the fiscal year 2024-25 within said district at an
assessment rate of $12.57 per month or $150.78 per year per single family
residential parcel, apartment unit and/or condominium as set forth in the
benefit chart included in the Engineer’s Report.

6. Notice is hereby given that on June 20, 2024, at the hour of 6:30 p.m. at
the District offices of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826
Hazel Avenue, California 95662, the Board will hold a public hearing to
consider the ordering of the improvements and the levy of the proposed
assessments.

7. Prior to the conclusion of the hearing, any interested person may file a
written protest with the Clerk of the Board, or, having previously filed a
protest, may file a written withdrawal of that protest. A written protest
shall state all grounds of objection. A protest by a property owner shall
contain a description sufficient to identify the property owned by such
owner. Such protest or withdrawal of protest should be mailed to the
Orangevale Recreation and Park District, 6826 Hazel Avenue, California

95662.

8. The Clerk of the Board shall cause a notice of the hearing to be given by
publishing a copy of this resolution once, at least ten (10) days prior to
the date of the hearing above specified, in a newspaper circulated in the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16® day of May 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

CLERK OF THE BOARD

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 107



ENGINEER’S REPORT

Orangevale Recreation and Park District

Kenneth Grove Assessment District

June 2024

Engineer of Work:

SC |-ConsultingGroub

Public Finance Consulting Services

1745 Mangels Boulevard
Fairfield, California 94534
707.430.430()

WWW.SCH-CR.COMN

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 108



This page intentionally left blank.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 109



Pagei

Kenneth Grove Assessment District

Board of Directors
Michael Stickney, Chair
Lisa Montes, Vice Chair
Arica Presinal, Secretary
Sharon Brunberg, Director
Manie Meraz, Director

District Administrator
Becky Herz

District’s Attorney
David W. McMurchie

Engineer of Work
SC! Consulting Group

Orangevale Recreation and Park District i ——
Kenneth Grove Assessment District ©C1ConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 110



Page ii

This page intentionally left blank

== :M

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —
ConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 111



Page iii

Table of Contents

Introduction........... sessassasnaasartasasassnssn reeesssssssnrssaenns cersanses eerssrsssassesaes correnne cressnnes 1
Formation of AssessmMENnt DIStrCt .....c..ecveiveerireccemniienniiiesie s et 1
Exemptions from Proposition 218 2
Substantive Requirements of Proposition 218 .......c.ccovvieiiiiiiiniinen, 4

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space

Authority 4
Plans & Specifications........ esssanenssaiiasessusTRasEe SRS Epeem——. vesssaneesessonssensesess B
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Estimate of Cost and Budget .......c.cccocvveiiiiinnnccnns ceovnenecesenene 7
Method of Apportionment ..........ccccevvnnneenns O U S 8

Method of APPOrtIONMENT.......ccoiiiiininiiinre et 8
DiSCUSSION OF BENETIt .....vcviviieeirierieitestisreriesee st eree it ae et e e s s e sabesr e s ebssmn e ssere s 8
MEthOd OF ASSESSIMENT....ccvuiieriierieierieerreerisseesssrisbs s it e e sareesrsastsssnessse st s s annanenssts 11
Assessment APPOrtiONMENT.......c.ooiiirreiiiniiieesi e 11
Assessment............ rereesssssnesanes cerreesesssessesssnnanearen cesnenne O PN 12
Assessment Diagram......... T Ressenvensensias sessasanss ceossossnnnsassnsosnanees 14
Appendix A - 2024-25 Assessment Roll ............c.ce.cen. ssaremsmsssssssansesefose — 15
Orangevale Recreation and Park District e .

Kenneth Grove Assessment District siConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 112



Page iv

This page intentionally left blank

e —

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —
{1 ConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 113



Formation of Assessment District

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed pursuant the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 by the Orangevale Recreation and Park District commencing with
Resolution No. 94-02-83 dated February 10, 1994 (hereinafter the "Resolution of
Intention"). The Resolution of Intention provides the following: (1) formation of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District; and (2) a description of
the improvements which the Assessment District is authorized to construct and
maintain including the following: (a) installation of sound walls and other ornamental
structures and facilities which are necessary or convenient for the maintenance or
servicing of curbs, gutters, walls, sidewalks, paving, water irrigation, drainage or
electrical facilities; and (b) land preparation such as grading, leveling, cutting and filling,
sod landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage; and {c) the maintenance or
servicing of all of the above including repair, removal or replacement of all or part of any
improvement or other typical maintenance services.

The Engineer's Report, diagram and assessment and Resolution of Formation of the
Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District was adopted by the Board
of Directors of Orangevale Recreation and Park District by Resolution No. 94-05-86A on
May 12, 1994. That resolution confirmed the findings in the Resolution of Intention and
was adopted after a public hearing during which members of the public were offered
the opportunity to protest against the formation of the Assessment District. The
Resolution of Formation notes that the owners of the affected properties included
within the proposed Assessment District have filed with the District written consents to
the proposed formation of the Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment
District and the proposed levying of assessments as specified in the Engineer's Report.
The Resolution of Formation included a provision that a perpetual contingency reserve
fund be established in the amount of the first year's total assessment revenue to be
paid by the developer by agreement in order to cover the costs of any contingencies
which may occur throughout the duration of the Assessment District. The Resolution of
Formation also provided that should any new subdivision be annexed into the Kenneth
Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District in the future, that a separate
perpetual contingency reserve fund is required to be established for operations within
that particular annexed area calculated as the amount of the first year's assessment
levied against real property within that annexed area to be paid by the developer of the
annexed area to fund contingencies with respect to maintenance and operations in
future years with respect to the property annexed to the Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District B
Kenneth Grove Assessment District ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 114



Page 2

The initial assessment levied upon each parcel of real property within the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District for fiscal year 1994-95 was $150.78 per parcel. The Kenneth
Grove Assessment District has continued to levy the same annual assessment per parcel
of $150.78 per fiscal year from the date of formation to the present time.

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District was also formed for the purposes of providing
park and recreational improvements in addition to landscape corridors and streetscapes
to the residents of the assessment district. The Assessment District may utilize
assessment revenue to fund these additional purposes in the future.

Exemptions from Proposition 218

Having been formed in 1994, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District assessments were
existing on November 6, 1996, the effective date of Article XHID of the California
Constitution (Proposition 218). Proposition 218 identified preexisting assessments which
fell within one of four exemptions identified in section 5 of Article XHID as exempt from
the procedures and approval process for assessments detailed in Proposition 218.

The four "exemptions" delineated in Proposition 218 that are applicable to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District are as follows:

(1) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital cost or maintenance and
operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water, flood control, drainage
systems, or vector control (Cal. Const., art. XIIID, § 5, subd. (a)); and

(2) Any assessment imposed pursuant to a petition signed by the persons owning all of
the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially imposed
(Cal. Const., art. XIIID, § 5, subd. (b)).

Both of these exemptions from the provisions of Proposition 218 apply to the Kenneth
Grove Assessment District. First, the Assessment District was formed pursuant to a
petition signed by all of the current owners of the real property subject to the
assessment (the developer of the Kenneth Grove Subdivision) at the time the
assessment was initially imposed which meets the requirements of California
Constitution Article XHID, section 5(b).

In addition, the initial purpose of the assessment was to finance the capital costs and
maintenance and operation costs for constructing sidewalks, sidewalk and street
landscaping, irrigation and drainage to enhance the parcels of property comprising the
Kenneth Grove Assessment District.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District > 4»@“—-—"—.&
Kenneth Grove Assessment District CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 115



Page 3

Both of these exemptions from the procedures and approval process for assessments
specified in Proposition 218 have been satisfied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment
District.

First, the exemption which is an assessment imposed by a petition signed by the persons
owning all the parcels subject to the assessment at the time the assessment is initially
imposed is evidenced by the Resolutions of the District and the written consents filed by
the then current owners of the real property subject to the assessment in 1994 before
the Assessment District was formed.

The second exemption available for capital and maintenance costs associated with
sidewalks, streets, and landscaping and irrigation associated with sidewalks and streets
is supported by case law decided under the provisions of California Constitution Article
XHID, section 5(b) (hereinafter "Proposition 218"). The Board of Directors of the District
has adopted the position that street and sidewalk landscaping is an integral part of
"streets" and "sidewalks" and therefore an existing assessment for the maintenance of
such landscaping is exempt under Proposition 218. Streets and Highways Code section
29 provides that "roadside planting and weed control” is included within the definition
of construction and maintenance of streets.

The assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District prior to the
passage of Proposition 218 are exempt under both of these exceptions articulated in
Proposition 218.

Those procedures and approval processes with respect to which the Kenneth Grove
Assessment District is exempt are as follows:

Orangevale Recreation and Park District pp e —
Kenneth Grove Assessment District ConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 116



Page 4

(1) Procedural requirements regarding the imposition of assessments including (a)
identification of all parcels which will have special benefit conferred upon them by
the improvements or services funded by the assessment; and (b) differentiation
between "special benefit" and "general benefit" conferred on properties from the
improvement and/or services funded with assessment proceeds; and (c) allocation
of assessments per parcel dependent upon the proportion of special benefit to
each property in relationship to the entirety of the costs of acquiring or
constructing an improvement or of maintaining and operating such an
improvement among the parcels to be assessed; and (d) the assessment on a
parcel may not exceed the reasonable cost of the "proportional special benefit"
conferred on that parcel by the improvements or services funded with assessment
proceeds; and (e) procedural requirements including the 45-day mailed notice to
property owners of the proposed assessment; an opportunity for property owners
to protest by ballot against the proposed assessment at a public hearing; and
prohibition of any assessment if a majority protest exists, A "majority protest” is
defined as ballots from property owners submitted in opposition to the
assessments amounting to more than 50% of the total ballots submitted by
property owners, with ballots submitted weighted according to the proportional
financial obligation for paying assessments for each affected parcel.

In light of the fact that the Kenneth Grove Assessment District was formed prior to the
imposition of Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996 and complies with the definitions of
two of the exemptions in Proposition 218 as specified above, the assessments levied
within the Kenneth Grove Assessment District are exempt from the substantive and
procedural requirements outlined above.

Despite that exemption, this Engineer's Report specifies the facts and circumstances
demonstrating that the assessments levied within the Kenneth Grove Assessment
District comply with the substantive requirements of Proposition 218.

Substantive Requirements of Proposition 218

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space
Authority

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley
Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (“SVTA”). This
ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive
assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important elements of
the ruling included further emphasis that:

= Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit

T ———

Orangevale Recreation and Park District —
= iConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 117



Page 5

= The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly
defined

= Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to
property in the assessment district

This Engineer’s Report is consistent with the SVTA decision and with the requirements
of Article 13C and 13D of the California Constitution because the improvements to be
funded are clearly defined; the benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys
close and unique proximity, access and views to the Improvements; the Improvements
serve as an extension of usable land area for benefiting properties in the Assessment
District and such special benefits provide a direct advantage to property in the
Assessment District that is not enjoyed by the public at large or other property.

e —

Orangevale Recreation and Park District s
-lConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 118



Page 6

Plans & Specifcations

The work and improvements proposed to be undertaken by the Orangevale Recreation
and Park District’s Kenneth Grove Assessment District (the “Assessment District”) and
the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual assessment provide special benefit to
Assessor Parcels within the Assessment District as defined in the Method of Assessment
herein. In addition to the definitions provided by the Landscaping and Lighting Act of
1972, (the “Act”) the work and improvements are generally described as follows:

Installation, maintenance and servicing of public recreational facilities and
improvements including landscape corridors, streetscapes and other park and
recreational improvements. The plans and specifications for these improvements have
been filed with the District Administrator of the Orangevale Recreation and Park District
and are incorporated herein by reference.

As applied herein, “Installation” means the construction of recreational improvements,
including, but not limited to, land preparation, such as grading, leveling, cutting and
filling, sod, landscaping, irrigation systems, sidewalks and drainage, lights, playground
equipment, play courts, recreational facilities and public restrooms.

“Maintenance” means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and
usual maintenance, operation and servicing of any improvement, including repair,
removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life,
growth, health, and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming,
spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or injury; the removal of trimmings, rubbish,
debris, and other solid waste, and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and
other improvements to remove or cover graffiti.

“Servicing” means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating
agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other
improvements; or water for the irrigation of any landscaping, the operation of any
fountains, or the maintenance of any other improvements.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e —
Kenneth Grove Assessment District iConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 119



Page 7

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Estimate of Cost and Budget

7‘0_tal
Budget|
Installation, Maintenance & Servicing Costs
Improvements $16,000
Operating Expenses
Ag/Horticulture Services & Supplies $800
Water $800
Fuel $1,000
Maintenance Contract $0
Subtotal $2,600
Incidental Expenses
Advertising/Legal Notices $500
Administration & Inspection $1,130
Annual Engineer's Report $1,000
Professional Services $500
Other Expenses $100
Subtotal $3,230
Contribution to/(from) Reserves Fund Balance Available
Contribution to (from) Contingency ($16,402)
Total Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District Budget $5,428
(Net Amount to be Assessed)
|Budget Allocation to Property
Total Assessment Budget $5,428
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 36.00
Assessment per Single Family Equivalent Unit $150.78
Orangevale Recreation and Park District el ) ——
Kenneth Grove Assessment District - ConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 120



Page 8

Method of Apportionment

Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be
derived from the installation, maintenance and servicing of park facilities throughout
the Park District, and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to
properties within the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries of the
Assessment Diagram as included within this Engineer's Report. The method used for
apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special benefits to be
derived by the properties in the Assessment District over and above general benefits
conferred on real property or to the public at large. The apportionment of special
benefit is a two step process: the first step is to identify the types of special benefit
arising from the improvements, and the second step is to allocate the assessments to
property based on the estimated relative special benefit for each type of property.

Discussion of Benefit

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to
property. This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits.
Moreover, such benefit is not based on any one property owner’s use of the Park
District’s recreational facilities or a property owner’s specific demographic status. With
reference to the requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 states:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be
apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among
all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by
each such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XIIID of the California Constitution, has confirmed
that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property and that the value of
the special benefits must reasonably exceed the cost of the assessment:

"No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of
the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel."

Orangevale Recreation and Park District ’.f""“m
Kenneth Grove Assessment District “:iConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 121



Page 9

The Kenneth Grove Assessment District consists solely of residential parcels populated
with single family residences which receive the benefit of sidewalks and streetscape
landscaping constructed adjacent to major streets within the subdivision, which
improvements were constructed by the developer of the subdivision and are maintained
by the Kenneth Grove Assessment District. The Assessment District also was formed
with the power to levy assessments for additional park and recreational improvements
to serve the residents of the assessment district. All of the parcels within the boundaries
of the Assessment District enjoy close proximity to the sidewalk and streetscape
improvements constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds. The Assessment
District consists of only 36 parcels comprising the subdivision, and the improvements
consisting of sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and maintenance uniquely benefit
this small subdivision as a "special benefit.” Existing improvements are not of sufficient
magnitude to significantly benefit adjacent residential parcels located outside the
Assessment District.

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,
parcels resulting from the installation, maintenance and servicing of existing sidewalk
and streetscape landscaping improvements and future park and recreational
improvements to be provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special
benefit are summarized as follows:

a. Extension of a walkable areas and green spaces for properties within close
proximity to the Improvements.

b. Proximity to improved sidewalks and streetscape landscaping and other
park and recreational improvements.

c. Access to improved sidewalks and landscaping and other park and
recreational improvements constructed to serve the residents and property
of the assessment district.

d. Improved local views regarding sidewalk and streetscape landscaping and
future park and recreational improvements.

In this case, the recent the SVTA decision provides enhanced clarity to the definitions of
special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

= Proximity
=  Expanded or improved access
= Views

e ——

Orangevale Recreation and Park District R
*1ConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 122



Page 10

The SVTA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or improvement that
provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative advantages
resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are general
benefits. The SVTA decision also provides specific guidance that landscape and park and
recreational improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is
proximate to such landscape and park and recreational improvements constructed and
maintained with assessment proceeds:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a
direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an
indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the
improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district’s property values).
Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed
above further strengthen the argument that these assessments comply with the
provisions of Proposition 218, despite the fact that they are exempt from such
constitutional requirements as set forth above.

Although it could be argued that there are no general benefits from these
Improvements, it is possible that there are some visual benefits received by parcels
which are not in the Assessment District. This is a measure of the general benefits to the
public at large. We estimate this benefit to be no more than 5%.

Special Benefit 95%
General Benefit 5%
Total Benefit 100%

The maintenance and servicing of these Improvements is also partially funded, directly
and indirectly, from other sources including the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, the local water provider, and the State of California. This funding
may come in the form of grants, development fees, special programs, and general
funds, as well as direct maintenance and servicing of facilities (e.g., curbs, gutters,
streets, drainage systems, etc.). This funding from other sources more than
compensates for general benefits, if any, received by the properties within the
Assessment District. The sum total of this contribution exceeds the 5% minimum needed
to offset any general benefit, as noted above.

Therefore, despite its exemptions from the procedural and substantive requirements of
Proposition 218, the Kenneth Grove Assessment District complies with the substantive
requirements of Proposition 218 regarding the differentiation between special benefit
to properties within the assessment district from the improvements and maintenance
funded with assessment proceeds and general benefit to properties outside the
assessment district.

I —

Orangevale Recreation and Park District -
ConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 123



Page 11

Method of Assessment

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit
for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by
each property in relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of
Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute
assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as
providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the
purposes of this Engineer’s Report, all properties are designated a SFE value, which is
each property’s relative benefit in relation to a single family home on one parcel. In this
case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which is one
Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

Assessment Apportionment

The benefits from the Assessment District are deemed to be received by property on a
dwelling unit basis, with equal benefit to each dwelling unit on a parcel. Therefore, all
improved residential properties that represent a single residential dwelling unit are
assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Traditional houses, zero-lot line houses
and town homes are included in this category. Multi-family parcels are also assigned
one SFE per dwelling unit. Property owned by the District does not benefit from the
assessments and therefore is assigned zero SFE units. Currently, all assessed properties
within the Assessment District are in single family residential use.

Orangevale Recreation and Park District T ——..
Kenneth Grove Assessment District -iConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 124



Page 12

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2024 the Board of the Orangevale Recreation and Park
District adopted its resolution initiating proceedings for the levy of assessments within
the Assessment District and authorizing the Orangevale Recreation and Park District,
County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and
Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively “the
Act”), to proceed with the proposed levy of assessments;

WHEREAS, said Resolution directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and
file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the assessment district and
an assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels
within the assessment district, to which Resolution and the description of said proposed
improvements therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act
and the order of the Board of said Orangevale Recreation and Park District, hereby make
the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of said
improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the
assessment district.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be
paid by the Assessment District for the fiscal year 2024-25 is generally as follows:

SUMMARY COST ESTIMATE
FY 2024-25
Budget|
Capital Improvements and Maintenance Expenditures $18,600
Incidental Expenses $3,230
TOTAL BUDGET $21,830
Less: Contributions
Contributions to/(from) Reserves and Contingency ($16,402)
NET AMOUNT TO ASSESSMENTS $5,428

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part
hereof showing the exterior boundaries of said Assessment District. The distinctive
number of each parcel or lot of land in the said Assessment District is its Assessor Parcel
Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

e ———...

Orangevale Recreation and Park District e
IConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 125



Page 13

| do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and
lots of land within said Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be
received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth
in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made
a part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Assessment District
in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from
said improvements.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal
year 2024-25. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby
made to the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder

of said County.

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2024-25 for each
parcel or lot of land within the said Assessment District.

Dated: April 12, 2024

Engineer of Work

LV

By

John W. Bliss, License No. C052091

e —"

Orangevale Recreation and Park District o .
ConsultingGroup

Kenneth Grove Assessment District
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 126



Page 14

Assessment Diagram

The boundaries of the Assessment District are displayed on the Assessment Diagram
below.

261-067

Assessor’s Map Bk. 261 Pg. 067
County of Sacromento, Calif,

POR. SEC.32,T.10N.,R.7E,M.D.B.&M.
RM. Bk:z‘?}’Pg. 5 (6-30-93)

Kenneth Grove ,

Orangevale Recreation and Park District et - —
Kenneth Grove Assessment District ¢ CiConsultingGroup
Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 127



Orangevale RPD,
Orangevale RPD Kenneth Grove
Assessment Roll FY 2024-25

Assessment Number Assessment Number
& Assessor Owner Site SFE A &A r
Parcel Number Name(s) Address Units ment  Parcel Number
26106700350000 BALAKRISHNA VI 8504 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700200000 BALLUCH TIMOTH 8539 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700020000 BELMONTE FAMIL 8505 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700360000 CHAVEZ ALBERTO 8500 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700060000 DALE BARTLETT 8527 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700070000 DARLEEN M GURW 8531 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700110000 DAVID WRIGHT/C 8536 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700280000 DIAZ GONZALEZ 6209 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700240000 FORD THOMAS 6204 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700040000 GOLTZ SURVIVOR 8519 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700270000 GROVER MORRIS 6205 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700050000 IRMA DOT LEBAS 8523 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700330000 JOAN D OXFORD 6225 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700080000 JOHNSON JEANF 8535 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700140000 KAMATH BASAVAN 8524 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700260000 LANDI ROBERTC 6201 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700210000 LE NIKKI KHIET 8543 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700030000 MANUEL R/IRIS 8509 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700230000 MARK J CHRISTE 6208 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700250000 MAXIMA BARTLET 6200 WEATHERGL 1 $150.78
26106700170000 MAXIMA BARTLET 8527 HEATHERC 1 $150.78
26106700150000 MCCANN FAMILY 6238 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700310000 MELEOBELLE LP 6210 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700370000 ORANGEVALE REC GREENBACKLN 0 $0.00
26106700160000 PAMELA JEANHE 8523 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700090000 PEDERSEN JAMES 8543 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700180000 REIMCHE TROYA 8535 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700130000 ROUSSELJOHNT 8528 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700100000 SEGURA TREADWE 8542 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700010000 SHARLENE DAVID 8501 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700180000 SHARLENE DAVID 8531 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700340000 SHARLENE DAVID 8508 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78
26106700300000 SHARLENE DAVID 6214 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700320000 SMITHRODNEYR 6221 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700290000 STADLER FAMILY 6218 WINDORAH 1 $150.78
26106700220000 SULEYMANOV EDU 8547 HEATHER C 1 $150.78
26106700120000 ZANDIDOLABIMA 8532 CLOUDCROF 1 $150.78

Orangevale Recreation and Park District . —

Kenneth Grove Assessment District ©CiConsultingGroup

Engineer’s Report, FY 2024-25

Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 128

Orangevale Recreation & Park District -



STAFF REPORT

g = DATE: 5/16/24

<& E TO: Board of Directors

OVprarks o

ORANGEVALE FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator

RECREATION &

PARK DISTRICT  SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 24-05-722, RESOLUTION ADOPTING
THE ORANGEVALE RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT PRELIMINARY

BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND OF FISCAL YEAR 2024/25.

RECOMMENDATION

Review the Draft Orangevale Recreation & Park District Preliminary Budget for General Fund of
FY 2024/25. Approve Resolution 24-05-722, Resolution adopting the Preliminary Budget.

BACKGROUND

The Draft Orangevale Recreation & Park District Preliminary Budget for General Fund of FY
2024/25 has been reviewed and supported by the District’s Admin & Finance Committee

Starting Fund Balance:
e Anticipating FY 23/24 to end under in Expenses: $551,954
e Anticipating FY 23/24 to end under in Revenue: $101,192
o Note, $305,000 in allocated Park Development Fees were not drawn 23/24.
e Preliminary Budget for 2024/25 is starting with an Estimated Fund Balance of: $811,747
o Estimate includes budgeted unused Fund Balance for FY 23/24 of: $360,985

Highlight of expenses incorporated in the Budget:
e Increases in Salaries, Group Insurance, and Workers Comp
o Increases in PT wages as of Jan. 2024 partially due to minimum wage increases

A 3.5% COLA for FT staff (Western States CPE for March 2024 = 3.6%)
Hiring a Recreation Coordinator
Changing a Recreation Supervisor to a Recreation Supervisor lI
Adding stipend salary and commission salary staff positions

o Rising insurance expenses
e Additional Services and Supplies

o Addition of Medical Supplies purchasing area for AED’s

o Registration service fees of $90,000 for elections

o Increased Professional Services for GO Bond consultant
e (Capital Projects

o Driveway/Trails and Pathways project at OCCP: $540,000

o New Mower: $25,000
e Contingency Appropriations of $50,000

O o0 0 O

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 129



Highlight of revenues incorporated in the Budget:

Estimating a 3% increase in property taxes collected

Increase in Rental Revenue

Utilizing $352,000 in Park Development Fees

Collecting $198,000 of Prop 68 Grant funding for the Driveway and Pathway projects
Iincrease in Recreation Service Revenue

No adjustments to the $545,014 of Reserves

RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve Resolution 24-05-722, Resolution adopting the Orangevale Recreation &

Park District Preliminary Budget for the General Fund.

ATTACHMENT
Orangevale Recreation a Park District Budget Year End Compilation Sheet — FY 23/24 -24/25

Resolution 24-05-722
Draft Orangevale Recreation & Park District Preliminary Budget for General Fund of FY 2024/25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 130



YEY'TTE vEY'PS9 000°TTZ L20°L9Y 098'80Y dduejeg puny 394 'Ad(Q Yed - IZEE
I8b'v9 18p‘v9 w1'es EYT'ELT 876'€9T Jduejeg pung uonedPaq yied nar vl - 388|
|
2€6'S TE6°S Z€6°S €6°S 7€6°S AAIDS3Y |BIDUID - BN0JD YIBUUR) - BYLE||
I
2ITL (090°t) vEL'ET vL9'ce 191°22 vZL'9T aduejeg pung pu3 Jeaal|
0sz'ze 090°'T 049V 0€L’s (866°T) v8S‘E Z85°S ‘dwj [031dn) 3 sajjddns g sadjnas - sasuadx3||
829‘s - 829's 829°s 286's 285°s sanuanay
vEL'ET 9422 94L°TC £91°0Z YZL'9T acupypg pund b3 bujuuibag
AGNNd TYHINIO - 2A0JD YI2UUd)Y - S1LE
E€TL'TIE E€TL'TIE €TLTTE €TLTIE 2AIISY [RIDUID - QY110 - VILE
TIT'Ee (8€2'z62) 951962 (960°1) 85.96S 616'06T aouejeg punj puj Jeaj
0v8‘9v8 ShL'v6T SS1'668 006'€6T‘T vI0°68Y 006'v68 sasuadx3 |030L
000612 SST'6LT S8'68€ 000695 (TEE'9TE) 699°TT 000'8Z€ juswanoidw jende)
00€‘T - 00€°T 00€'T (ovZ't) 09 00€'T 1saJ91ul/uondwapay puog - sadieyd 43410
0¥5'9¢9 065'STT 010°80S 009'€29 (9TE88) S8 LLY 009'S9S saljddng 18 saJIA9S - Sasuadx]
S6L°€LS 205C Z0€°9LS S6L°ELS YST'ELS TOE‘ELS sanuanay||
9S1°962 600679 600619 8ISZIS 8IS‘ZIS a2upjog pund 1034 bujuubag|
annd Tv¥3INID - av0 - ViLE)|
$T0'StS - bTO‘Sts $10'SHS YT0‘SYS ¥10'SPS 9AIISIY |BIBUDD - VZEE
{szo‘z8s) (856°0€S) (0zL'186) 1668€ 1A SNOJA2Id > 10 < 3dubjpg pund pu3 IDaA
zeL'622 294°0Sp LVL'TI8 $86°09€ 189088 brs‘8IvT €98°CES asunjog pund pu3 034
0vZ'E88°E vS6°TSS 9/5°269° 0ESYYEY 8T.°296 2519097 0.8°895°€ sasuadx3 [p30]
AWE4 S6T°202 GEQ'EL 0£0'9L2 JEITTS)
000595 SYY'ETe 655'856 000Z8T‘T 079'99¢ 08108 00T'L¥8 wawanosdw) [ended
050289 vrL'sL 95t'62S 00Z'€09 862'S6 26T°€SS 0SS'8¥9 satjddng g sa0IMIBS
080'v0S'C 045TS 0EL0ET'T 00£'€8T°C 008°00T 0ZY'TL6'T 0TT'€L0T s)jauag 13 saueles
STZ'TOE‘E (z61‘TO0T) 8T9°T9IT’E 0T829Z°E (2g£0°8¢L) ErI'SY9‘e 08T°€2LT anuanay (3oL
0LL'YT9 €15°0T £87'108 0L6°06L 89%°'SS 898°TT9 00¥'9SS ISIN/S934 "I9Y/301AI3S 104 Sadiey)
000'€9S (OvE‘erT) 099°€6¢ 000°LEY (v€2'912) 99/'LT 000'vET S¥ILdOH/s1uRID/NBIT U]
005°€22 L08'Y LOE'LTT 005212 STS9Y ST0'SST 005'80C Jay1Q/1sa431ul/sjeruay
Sv6'668'T 828'9C 89T'6Y8'T (12944} vTZ'9¢ ¥61'09LT 08Z'vzL'T uonexe]
LVLTT8 S0LTVE'T SO0LTVET €SS'6LE'T ESS6LE'T doupjog pund 1034 butuuibag
aNNd TvY¥3IN3O - VZEE]
sz/ve sz/ve 2DUBIBYIA 153 ve/ee ve/ee uaRYIa €2/t €2/t
123png 123png witjdid vz/€t PY 153 123png g2/t s|eandy 123png

994 JusWdo[aAa( Yied ‘UoIRIIPaQ Yied N3N U] ‘BA0I9 Y1auuay] ‘ayTi0 ‘pund |eiduan

SZ/PZ Ad O ¥T/ET Ad - 19n0Auie) [eNYDY SA 328png

1214351 YJed pue uoi3easday ajeaasuelQ

Page 131

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



\4i

OVrarxks
ORANGEVALE

RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 24-05-722

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, STATE
OF CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING THE GENERAL FUND PRELIMINARY
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and
reserves were reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2023 /2024; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year
2023/2024, be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(1) Salaries & Employee Benefits $ 2504080
(2) Services & Supplies 687,050
(3)  Other charges 74110
(4) Fixed Assets 565,000
(a) Land 0
(b) Structures & Improvements 540,000
(c) Equipment 25,000
(5) Expenditure transfers 3.000
(6) Contingencies
(7)  Provision for reserve increases 50,000
TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 3883240

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure
program will be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance
Available and Property Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is
hereby adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail
the approved appropriations, revenues and methods of financing for the

2024/2025 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this

16th day of May 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 132



, ) ATTEST:
'VPARKS Clerk of the Board
ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT ATTACHMENTS:
Financing Requirements Summary Schedule
Expenditure Detail Schedule
Revenue Detail Schedule
Long-Term Loan Schedule
Fixed Asset Schedule
|
i
6826 Hazel Avenue g
Orangevale, CA 95662 ]
916-988-4373
OVparks.com
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024

Page 133



SIN3INND0A 139adNg AYVNININEYEd

SIN3INND0A LNdNI 139aNng §202-#20Z A4 ALNNOD OLNINVHIOVS

139angd AYVNINITI™Ad S202-720¢ JdVIA TVOSId

10141S1a MdVd 8 NOILYIHOTH FTVAIONVHO

Page 134

May 16, 2024

- Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



LINIT ¥3ANNAE3AO
LINIT OL 193rans SNOILYIYdOdddY -

]

TINITSNOILYIMdOdddY  0vZ'e8s'e $

9eL'vL. $ Gzozes ¢ - $

192°0G€"L $ SIv101l -

geL'eee $ gz20288 S

vL'118 $ J1GVIIVAY

3ONVva NN

d3HLIO -

- IONVHSNNONI  000°0S

¥10°G¥S - -

¥10'G¥S IVAEINEO -

3JONVIvd S3SVIUO3A  SIASVIUONI
aNNd aalsnrav

lovzesse) $

(6207289

(G12710€¢)

- 3SV34d030 FONVIEWNNONI

¥2/10/L 30 SY CEIVCESEE] - $
JONVIVE IINA3HOS ALIND3 NN 000°€ $

$

000'59S

—_—

000'SC
ONIONVNIZ 319V IVAY 1VLOL 000'0vS
Sa3300dd NVO1Wa3L-ONO T A3 LVWILS3 - $
3SvV3403d J1av 1IVAY JONV 1vd ANNd

(3Sv3y03ad 39 OL SINI3SIH TVIOL Ol ¥L $

_

3SYIHO03A IAYASTY ¥3IHLO0 0og’L

0182 $

- 3SY3-I3A S3AHISTY TVHIANTD

d3asSv3x03a 39 OL SINYISTH  050'289 $

$

3NN3ATY GALVWILST  080'40SC

SININIHINOIY 139aNg IHL ONIONVNIL4 4O SNVIW

‘ION3H344I0 W1O0L
INENERRIEREPRER T RLATelY

S3IAYISTY ¥3HLO
SAAYISTY TVHINIO

SISYIUONI IAYISTY "0 SNOISINOHL

S3ILIQOWWOD H3HLO - 08 103rdo

SIIONIONILNOD ¥O4 SNOILYIHdOYddY - 62 1D3r80

100 "0 NI SY34SNVAL ANN4VHLINI - 09 LO3rg0

NI SY34SNVHL SANN4 - 65 LO3Arg0
1N0 SH34SNVHL SANN4 - 0§ 103rdo

S13SSvV a3axId - 0¥ 10380 TV1OL
IN3WdINO3 - €¥ 103r80
SINIWIAOHAI ANV STANLONYLS - 2 LO3rdO
NOILISINOJV ONV1- #¥ 103rao

S13SSV Q3aXId - 0 LO3rda0

S3SN ONIONVNId ¥3H10 - 0€ 1O3rgao V10l

VA/SININIOAnr
S1INIWSSISSY
VdIONIEd

ANV LS3H3LNI
SINIWAVdI
3Sv3T ANV NvO1

S3SN ONIONVYNIH ¥3HLO - 0€ 1353rdo
S3NddNS ANV S3DIAY3S - 0¢ 103rd0

S1i43N38 FIA0TdWI ANV S3VIVS - 01 LD3Ard0

JFANLIANIdX3 40 LOArd0 AQ SNOLLYIHdOHddY

VZee NN TVAINTD J04 3 1NA3HOS SINTWIYINOIY ONIONVNIS
LOIYLSIa YHVd '? NOLLVI™OIY FTVAIONVEO

13950N4g WIN3dd $202-#202 dv3A 1vVOSId

Page 135

May 16,2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 (oos) 0 0 00S oL 1413 SLIN3AT NOLLINDOD3Y| €08€020C
o] (0og) 0 0 00s 0 89 SW3LI NOILINDODO3Y| <208€020¢C
0 009 006'C 0S.2 00€C b’ 6zL'L NOILINDOO3H 33A0TdN3| 008€020C
0 (oov) 001 0 00S 0 0 ININIASHNGWIIH NOLLINL| 00.£0202
0 0 00S 08l 005 0 0 S31ddNS ONINIVYL B NOILYONA3| 009€020C
0 0 000'€ 005 000'€ 010’} 0 SADIAYIS ONINIVHL B NOILYONA3A| 005€0¢0C
0 00S 000t 0002 00S'€ ¥82'C 0€SC JSNIAdX3 IDNIFHIANOOD/SSIANISNG| 0062020C
0 (002) 008'C 00z’ 000'¢ 116'C 628’1 SNOILJIMOSENS/STYIIA0M3d/SHO0d| 0012020C
0 0 002C 002 00zZ'C 6€8'L 0 S3ADILON TVOIVONISILYIAAY| 00500202
0 08.°0Z¢ 080'¢0S°C 0c2'0¢€L'T 0o0¢’‘e8l‘e 0zr'ei6’L ovr'98.'L 01 109fqo0

0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 S3ATYILIY - IHVYO H1TVaH| 0008CL01L
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3HILIY - YYD IVINIQ| 000.210L
0 0.104 0lL'8l 018’2 0008 ShS'L LIE6 1S0D H3aAOTdW3 - SNI INS|  000S¢10L
0 008ty 00L'L6 0zz'L9 00€'6¥ €88'GS 6L6'0v 1S09 Y3A0TdNI - SNI ANOD SHANHOM| 000+Z10L
0 01092 olLs'Ive 269'6¥C 005'592 959'6€Z S eve 1S0D Y3AOTdNT - SNI dNOYD|  000€ZL0L
0 0 005°20L 28966 00520} LLV'L6 901'28 1802 Y3IAOTdW3 - IHASYO| 0002¢L01L
0 00z’ 00Z'LeE 9Z€'962 000 'vzZe 089'z6¢ TIr8se 1S0D H3IAOTdNT - INIFWIAHILIY| 000L2i0oL
0 0 000C!) 00001 00021 oov'L 0052 AN3dILS SY3gW3aN auvod| 00¥ZLi01L
0 000°celL 000'8€S 000'G0¥ 000's0¥ Lov'LLE 00z'LLE d13H vd.LX3 - SIOVM 8 SIIEVYIVS| 00421101
0 00996 009'890'L 000666 000ZL0'L ¥ZE€'706 Ll1¥'Ze8 S33IA0TdAT UYINO3Y - SIOVM 8 STIEVIVS| 000LLLOL

LORILSIA ¥YVd B NOLLYIHOIH TTVAIONVHO VIEE
19Bpng sobueys  19bpngunpld  s|emyoy-is3 19bpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uondussaq wiay

leutd g2-v¢ Ad ST-vZ Ad ¥2-€C Ad leutd $2-€C Ad €2-2T Ad eI Ad jusuiwod

aNN4 TVYH3N3O - vZee aNN4d
1O14.1S1a MHVd ® NOLLYIHOTY FTVAIONVEO
139ang WIN3dd §2-¥202 Ad - 3TNA3HIOS 1Ivi3ad FENLIANIDX3

Page 136

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



(oo¥)

aNN4 TVY3INIO - vZee aNNd
1O141S1d XAVd '8 NOILYIHOIY FTVAIONVEHO

139ang WIN3¥d §2-¥202 A4 - 3TNAIHOS Ivi3A JANLIANIAX3

0 00l 0 005 0 0 SIDINY3S NOILONYLSNOD| 00181202
0 (0ov) 00} 0 005 0 0 S3NddNS IONVNILNIVIN ONIGWN1d| 00891202
0 (ooe] 001 0 00% 0 0 IDIAY3S FONVNILNIVIN ONISWNTd| 00291202
0 (00%) 001 0 00S 0 0 S3NddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
0 (oo¥) 00} 0 008 0 0 AlddNS IONVNILNIVIN WILSAS TVOINVHOINW| 00251202
0 (0ov) 001 0 00S 0 0 E32IAY3S IONVNILNIVIN WILSAS TVOINVHOINW| 00451202
0 (oov) 001 0 005 0 0 S3NddNS IONVNILNIVIN LNFWIAOHANI ANV1|  002¥1202
0 (oo?) ool 0 00§ 0 gzl'e) 3OIAY3S IONVYNILNIVIN LINFWIAOHAWNI ANV1|  00L¥1L202
0 (oo%) 00l 0 005 0 0 S3NddNS FONVYNILNIVN TvOI¥L0313|  00Z€1202
0 (oog] 001 0 00¥ 0 0 3DIAY3S IONVNILNIVIN TvOIdL0313| 00L€L202
0 (00v) 001 0 005 0 0 STVOINIHD| 0022202
0 (oo¥) 001 0 005 0 0 S3IMddNS IONVNILNIVIN ONIAINg| 00211202
0 (oot) 001 0 005 0 0 S3MNddNS ANLINOILYOHTYENLINDINOY| 00101202
0 (oo%) 001 0 005 0 0 3DIAYAS TvANLINDILHOHIVENLINDINOY|  00€01202
0 000} 000'22 000'81 00092 o¥Zve 66€'L S3IDIAYIS ONILNIYA| 00580202
0 051 0SL't 004} 009'L vep 266 SdWVLS| 20180202
0 00S¢T 0000} 0052 0052 Zr90l sveY S3DINY3S 1v1SOd| 00180202
0 (002) 001 0 00€ 0 0 SADI| €09.0Z02
0 0 005 002 00S 0 0 SNOIS| 20920202
0 00z 00v'9 00Z'9 00Z'9 180'S G209 S3NddNS 301440| 00920202
0 00%'t 000'9L 00S 'S 009'tL 885 7l €80l S3NA diHSYIGWaN| 00190202
0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥Z9 IONVANSNI TVINIY| 00550202
0 (009'¢) 00G'0EL AT 00lL'9g} WI-y¥7} 80086 JONVENSNI ALNIGVI| 00150202
0 00¢ ool'e 0092 0082 €15 z6€¢ NOLLY1HOdSNVYL 33A0NdN3| 0060202

sabueyy  jebpng wijpid  sjenjoy-3s3 jobpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduasaq way|
leutd 5z-¥Z Ad ST-vZ Ad PZ-€ZAd  leud pZ-€TAd  €2-ZZ Ad TTIZT A4 jusunwo

Page 137

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 (0ov) 001 0 005 0 0 S31ddNS 3ONVNILINIVIW INSWJIND3 U3HLO| 00262202
0 (oo#) 00l 0 005 0 0 IDIAYIS IONVYNILNIVIN LNFWINOT ¥3HLO| 00162202
0 (00v) 00} 0 005 0 0 S3NddNS 3ONVNILNIVIN LNIWdIND3 dOHS| 00282202
0 (0ov) 001 0 00S 0 0 30IAY3S ONVNILNIVIN INSWJINO3 dOHS| 00182202
0 (oov) 001 0 00 0 0 LIN3WdINO3 SASVIVSINIY| 00522202
0 (007) 0092 002C 000'€ €08’} 2812 S37ddNS FIONVYNIALNIVIAN LNININDT 301440| 00292202
0 (00¥) 00t 0 005 0 0 30IAY3S JONYNILNIVIN INIWDINO3 301440 00192202
0 (00v) 00} 0 005 0 0 SINVOI¥aNT 3 13Nd| 009€220T
0 () 00} 0 005 0 0 S700L 318VAN3dX3| 00922202
0 (0ov) 00} 0 005 0 0 S3NddNS INIVIN dIND3 NOILONYLSNOD| 00212202
0 (0ov) 00} 0 005 0 0 S3TddNS 3ONVNILNIVIN SAILOWOLNY| 00902202
0 (oor) 001 0 005 0 0 30IAY3S IONYNILNIVN SAILONOLNY| 00502202
0 0 005 0 00S 0 0 JONVNILNIVN WILSAS INOHJI1AL| 00661202
0 0 0001 00} 000t 0 0 d3LVM| 00861202
0 0 00S'SL 00821 00S'SL 88Y'GlL 9G1Lzk 320IAY3S INOHJIT3L| 00261202
0 (oot) 00} 0 00S 0 0 30IAY3S 1VSOdSIQ 39YM3S| 00561202
0 (0ov) 001 0 00S 0 0 30IAY3S TYSOdSIA/NOILOITIO0 3SN43d|  00€61202
0 (0ov) 001 0 005 0 0 70 13N/ 9d1/SVYO TVHNLYN| 00261202
0 (0ov) 001 0 005 0 0 ALIOIE1O313|[ 00161202
0 (0or't) 001 0 005t 0 0 SIDUVHO LINYIM| 00581202
0 (o) 00} 0 00S 0 0 S3I1ddNS NOILONYLSNOD| 00281202
jabpng sabueypy 186png wipld  sjemoy-i}s3 jabpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosaqg way|

leuld §2-vZ Ad SZT-¥Z Ad VZ-€ZAd  IBUIAVZ-ETAd  €2-ZZ Ad TTIT Ad JusugIWoY

aNN4d TVH3aN3O - vZee aNNd

1OI41SIa MHVd 8 NOILVIHOIY TVAIONVEO
139aNn8 WIT3dd S¢-¥20¢ Ad - 3TNAIHIOS TIVL3A JHANLIANIdXT

Page 138

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 0 002 051 00z [ G6l SIOYVHO ONIMYVd SO| 0029620C
0 0 00E'c 0082 00€'€ WEAS €96°C 3IOIAY3S INSWDO13AIA WIALSAS| 00116202
0 (000't) 000'} 0 0002 0 0 SIDIAY3S - ISNIJX3 ONILYHIJO ¥IHLO| 00668202
0 005 0052 008 0002 S00C Iz S3MddNS - 3SN3AdX3 ONILVY3dO ¥3HLO| 00868202
0 000'C 000'6€ 000'8€ 000'.€ ges'Le 680'GE S3NddNS TYNOILYIYO3Y| 00258202
0 (00091) 00588} 000'564 005'+0¢C YL v0T eYESLL S3I0IAY3S TYNOILYIHOIY| 00158202
0 00006 00006 0 0 L0162 0 (SNOILO3713) STDIAYIS NOILYYHLSIOFY| 00618202
0 0 000 00¢ 000 0 00z S3NddNS 0d| €0Z18202
0 0 000'9 086'S 0009 v.6'y 9v8'C JHVYML40S Od| 20218202
0 0 000'9 0007 0009 09’} 8/9C JYVMQYUVH Od| 10218202
0 0 00S¥1 0007} 00S¥1 LELpL 0€L'S SINVLINSNOD ¥3LNdWNOD| 10165202
0 0098} 000°L¥ 0000€ oor'ze €8L'11 LIv'S SADINY3S TYNOISSIJ0Hd HIHLO| 00165202
0 0 000 000°€ 000'% 169C 1082 S3IDIAYAS ALIINDOAS| 00125202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3DIAYAS ONIGIIOSNYYEL| 00295202
0 0 000G} 000'} 000G} 65 0 SADINY3S TvO3T| 001€5202
0 0 000'9 000'9 0009 90291 0 S30IAY3S ONIYIANIONIT| 00525202
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S3ADIAY3AS IVHNLOALIHOYY| 00615202
0 0 00561 0006} 0056} 8EL'LL 6¥8'8) S3IDIAYIS NOILOATIOD/ININSSIASSY| 00205202
0 0 0002 2829 0002 6.6'S 9/€'S S3DIAYAS ONILNNODIV| 00505202
0 00¥'s 00v'S 0 0 0 0 S3NddNS TvOIQan|  00v¥i2oT
0 0 0ov 001 00v 259 0 30IAY3S TYOIQ3N|  00€¥20z
0 0 005 0 005 0 (%) S3AMddNS TvIAOL1SNO|  0022€202
0 (006) 001 0 000’} 0 0 S3DIAY3S TVIQOLSND| 00L2€202
0 (oo 009’} 00Z't 00072 0 126 S3NddNS TYNOSH3J/ONIHLOTD| 00¥L€202
jobpng sabuey) jobpng wiald  sjenjoy-3s3 jobpng sjen)oy sjenyoy uonduasaq way|
leuld SZ-¥Z Ad ST-vZ Ad VZ-€ZAd  leUdPZ-EZAd  €2-TT AL 21T Ad JusuBIwwWo

aNNd TVH3NAO - vZee aNNnd

LORI1SIA MHVd ® NOLLVIHOIY ATVAIONVHO
1390dN8 WIT3dd S2-¥20C Ad - I1NAIHIOS 1IVL3A JHNLIANIdXS

Page 139

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 __ 00S __ 000°¢ : 00S°C _Em.u __ 080°2 T 65399l90

0 005 000'E 0052 005¢C 0802 [T JOIAY3IS ONILNINAYIONIA| 00126508
0 (000‘g) 000°sZ 00¥°62 000°0¢ 65601 0 £v 309fq0

0 __ (000°c) 00062 00’62 000°0¢ 65601 0 H3H1O0 - INIWJINOI/STTOIHIA|  00€0EVEY
0 (000‘Z19) 000°0¥S 551626 00025} 12569 [ Z¥10elqo

0 (000219 000'0¥S 651626 000'2SL'L __ 12569 0 S3YNLONYLS| 0020Z¥Zy
0 0 0 0 0 __ 0 0 SONIATING| 00L0ZveY
0 0 0 0 0 0 05¢‘L ¥ 399090

0 0 0 0 0 0 0se’L aNv1| 0010L¥LY
0 08S OLL'vL See'LL 0e5°€L 6GL'CL L2081 o¢ ¥3lqo

0 (oog) 00€'} 000t 009'L FA%A GelL'L SLNIAWSSISSVY/OIVXVL| 000S5+€0€
0 002 00% 9% FA:X47 00Z'v¥ LS 'ey 8.€'9L1 NOILdWIQ3Y NYOT/ANOS| 000ZzZE0e
0 (oze't) oLr'oz €2L/2 0€L'/2 90062 ¥98'ce 3ISNIJX3 1SIHILINI| 000LZ€0E
0 058'c8 050°289 951625 00209 782°cSS 9zZ'sob 0z 300090

jobpng sabueyy jebpng unjaud sjen}oy-}s3 jebpng sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduoseq way)

leuly §2-¥Z Ad S2-¥T Ad PT-€TAd  lewd pZ-€ZAd £2-TT AL TTIT Ad jusuwwod

139an8 WIN3dd S¢-¥20¢ Ad - IT1NATIHIOS 1IvVL3A JANLIANIAXS

AaNNd TV™EN3IO - vZee ANN4

LORILSIA MAVd 8 NOILVIHOFY FTVAIONVYEO

Page 140

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 __aau.za ove'e8s’s 9.5°269°C T R24% 4 166°189°C 1SS'8hE°T V 2€¢ TVLOL ANN4d
0 (062°19¢) __ ovz'cgs‘e 9.5°269°C 0ES‘vYT'y 166189°C 1S5°8VE°T Z££6€€6 YILNID ANNL
0 (0o00‘0s1) 000°0S 0 000002 __ 0 0 62399[q0
0 0 0 0 0 0 SINYISIY TvHIANIAD
(0oo'ost) 000'0S 0 000002 0 0 SNOILVINHONddY ADNIONILNOD| 00L06.6L
jebpng sabuey)d jobpng wiyjead  sjenjoy-is3 yabpng sjenjoy sjenoy uonduasaq waj|
leutd §Z-¥Z Ad SZ-¥Z Ad VZ-€ZTAd 1WA PZ-EZAd  €2-ZT Ad 21T Ad jusujiwwod

aNN4d TVH3INTO - vZee aNNnd

100141S10d MdVd '? NOILVI™HOIY FTVAIONVHO
1390dN8 WIT3dd $¢-¥20C Ad - 3T1NAIHOS T1IvVL3A FANLIANIdX3

Page 141

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



000077 |[f0000¥ 1) |[fo00sED) (0000 1) [Go6'ezV) |[Ez08€D I YIHLO VINIY ONIGNG[  006Zv6vs |
_ 0 __aom_wc :comf: (o0s'v1) _85_3 __69‘.9 __ JWOONI hwmxmhz__ 0001+6v6 _
- $ :a%.E $ __33.@8.5 $ __32.3».: m\_—sen.us.: $ __smv.oﬁ.: $ __:S.Eu.: $ _ 16 399[q0

E [0 [0 ] [&n E I ¥3H1O-STxvL[  0066L616 |

_ 0 __aoe = 0 (005) _am& __@me __ S3ILTVYNAd XV1 n_omn__ 00071616 _

_!o __so@ :a@ (o06) _ﬁwe __ﬂon D)} __ O3SNN ¥d XV1 n_omn._ 0001616 _

_ 0 =av: =§.: (ov1) _aE __aec __ 1dIN3a3d XL n_omn__ 00021616 _

_ 0 __aowf: __awm.v: (008¥1) ﬁm%_m: _ﬁmwt_‘: __ AYVLINA XVL Emmn_omn__ 00901616 _

_ (00s) __68@ __:i.i (00s2) _GN\.,Q l__sg_ b _ﬁ "ONM3A 31ddNS XV.1 Emmn_omn__ 00501616 _

_ (009) __68_ (Y] __amm.m: (o0601) _ﬁﬁ_a \__ﬁmm.o: __ "ONIN3A a3¥ND3S Xvi ﬁmmn_omn__ 00¥01616 _

E |[f000?) |[f000%¥) (000%¥) [lerzes) [evz'ss) il dNS N0 XVL dO¥d[  00£01616 |

_ (61€7) 1__8_. 1'L9) _ﬁ_‘mo_mmv 4 (008'6S) _A;\.{mu __ (egg'es) = O3SNN ¥NJ XVL n_omn__ 00201616 _

_ (9847°42) __Gmm_mmn_ 1) __Awow_mﬁ. L (008'2c69'1) _ﬁmmv_weo_ b __@wm.mrm. 1) _ﬁ O3S WNO XVl n_Omn.— 00101616 _

LORILSIA YuVd B NOILVINOTY FTVAIONVYEO  VZEE

196png sabueyd 196png siemoy 19Bpng feuid sienjoy sjenjoy uonduasag Wy
leutd §z-4Z Ad WNBId STV A4 1S3 PZTETAd  VEET AL €2-2Z Ad ze-1z Ad JusuIWOD

10141S10 MHVd ? NOILYIHO3d FTVAIONVHO

ANN4 TVH3ANTO - vZee aNNnd

139an49 WIT3¥d §202-¥20C Ad - FTNAIHIOS TVLIA INNIATA

Page 142

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



F _ _So 1'v2) __So 1'119) _ _ﬁmo.ommv _ _ (o00°285) _ _Anmm.ooov __ﬁmvh.nwmv _ 96 393lq0
— __ 006 __ao: __amu Eooo. ) __:3 __ (ege) ; S30INY3S Em:om_w_ 00269696 _
_ __ (000'sz) __88,22 __68.89 __ (000%8¢) __68.8& __cmm.om& __ SOHO J0INY3S zo_h«mzomm_ 009v9696 \_
_ __ 0 __aooﬂ __Coa Eooo.: _moﬁ.: __amo_a __ $334 ¥3HLO m:om_z<.:m_0w_§_ €1£€9696 ;

_ 0 __aoa_ons __88.83 __amo.n& __88.5& __ae..E __:.B.Noa _ §6398{90
E B 1[e |[feooze) [0 [0 |[feo0'052) |["LSia GNI §O0< N3 QIACD SLVIS|  ¥0565656 |
_ 4_ (000°86+) __aoo.wm: __ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ 0 __ av mpﬁﬂ 00695656 _
| I | O o Ccic B o N L L B
_ __ 0 __Soo,m: __Soo_N: __Goo.m: __Avmvd: __Gmw_ms \__ 431734 Xv.L dO¥d m_m2>>om=>_0_.__ 00225656 _

_ 0 __88. 1) _ _aom.nuu _ _:8.» 12) __aom.u 12) __ﬁ 10'552) __ (zes's12) _ v6 399[q0
0 _ 0 __ 0 __ 0 _ 0 _ 0 __ 0 __ d3HLO wzo_mmmozoo_ 0006v6v6 _
0 _ 0 : 0 :o _ 0 _ 0 4_ 0 __ SaNIHOVI oz_czm>_ 0065+6v6 _
_«’80.: :88.& 1__88_ 12) _ (000t2) _Wmo.mu __68,& __ (6 TvNI4) NOISSFONOD .omm_ 008¥¥6v6 _
_ 0 __Aooo_ni __Soo.b& _ (000°2) _ﬁwmv_g ﬁﬂmom.\.i __ (SY3IMOL T1130) S3AsvIT n_z:Om_O_ 006£¥616 _
epia PR o - PPt AP - S e A i soniuosea JuouLOD

ANN4d TVY3IN3O - vZee aNN4d

1O141SIA HHVd ® NOILLYVIHO3IY FTVAIONVHO
1390N4g WIN3¥d $202-¥20C Ad - 3TNATHOS 1V.L3A INNIAIY

Page 143

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ 0 __33_5 __Ama. Log'e) __85;2.3 __as.uwa.a __ai.m%_ﬁ __:nm.woh.u _ vzZee WLOL ANNA
_ 0 __ﬁov.wa __?, 1Z'10e'e) :ﬂq boL'e) \__as.uoa.s __?.S.m%.u __:.8.@25 _ Zee6££6 HILNIO ANNA
L LA L L | c— —
E [ IE [0 g [ E || 1Si0dS-5033008d TTvS L3SSV]  00C98686 |
_o _Ten.ooa __ss_s __G#.mos __as.ncu __a 16') meg.e _ 16 393[q0
c A | L LAk LA LA SR W
00000 |[foov D |[fez870) |[foovr02) (6D s ][ S3NNBATS §EHLO SNOANV TTHOSIA[ 00062626 |
_ 0 __85 __ 0 _ (0L2) _:Sv __ama ;_ $a33004d mozéawz__ 000v26.6 _
00€ [f0002) (055 (00£2) ((F732) (15670 Il SNOILNERIINOO/SNOILVNOG 00082626 |
1e6png sebuey) 196png sjenjoy 190png [eutd sjenjoy semoy uopduosag way|
feutd 52-vZ Ad WiBld STVT A 1S3 PTETAd  VEETAL £€2-2Z Ad eIz Ad JuBWHWWOD

10141SId MyVd ? NOILVY3™O3d FTVAIONVYHO

ANN4d TVH3IN3O - YZee ANNd

139dNg WNIN3¥d $20¢-¥20C Ad - 3TNAIHOS T1IVLIA INNIATA

Page 144

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



LONG-TERM LOAN SCHEDULE

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025

1 DESCRIPTION FUND PAYMENTS BALANCE DUE
Pecan Ave. Property Purchase (INTEREST) 332A 0.00 0.00
Pecan Ave. Property Purchase (PRINCIPLE) 332A 0.00 0.00
Pecan Avenue Property (Final payment made in 2021) 332A 0.00 0.00
TOTAL of LONG TERM DEBT: 0.00 0.00

Shackelton Woods formerly referred to as Grant Property.

2 DESCRIPTION FUND PAYMENTS BALANCE DUE
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave Property Purchase (INTEREST) 332A 26,406.25 204,392.55
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave Eroperty Purchase (PRINCIPLE) 332A 42,000.00 781,000.00
6920 & 6930 Hazel Ave Property 332A 68,406.25 985,392.55
TOTAL of LONG TERM DEBT: 68,406.25 985,392.55

Orangevale Community Center Park formerly Regency Baptist Church
Interest rate is 3.25%

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 145



EXHIBIT A

Orangevale Recreation and Park District
Reserve Fund Allocation - Fiscal 2024/25 PRELIMINARY

Orangevale Recreation and Park District -
General Fund 332A
Reserve Fund Category
Unrestricted
Assigned
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/15 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/16 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/17 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/18 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/19 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/20 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/21 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/22 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/23 200,000
Swimming Pool @ 7/1/24 200,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/15 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/16 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/17 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/18 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/19 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/20 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/21 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/22 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/1/23 150,000
Capital Replacement - Community Center @ 7/ 1/24 150,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/15 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/16 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/17 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/18 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/19 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/20 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/21 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/22 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/23 50,000
Capital Replacement - Parking Lots & Pathways @ 7/1/24 50,000
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/15 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/16 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/17 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/18 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/19 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/20 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/21 145,014

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 146



Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/22 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/23 145,014
Capital Replacement - Park Equipment @ 7/1/24 145,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/15 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/16 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/17 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/18 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/19 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/20 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/21 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/22 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/23 545,014
Total Assigned (General Reserve) @ 7/1/24 ' 545,014
2014/15 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/15 441,900
2015/16 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/16 429,800
2016/17 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/17 344,300
2017/18 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/18 399,500
2018/19 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/19 643,750
2019/20 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/20 628,750
2020/21 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/21 488,214
2021/22 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/22 845,690
2022/23 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/23 981,720
2023/24 Fiscal Budget (Fund Balance) @ 7/1/24 Est. 582,025
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2015 181,736
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2016 309,467
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2017 301,657
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2018 639,362
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2019 517,325
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2020 306,681
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2021 473,353
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2022 533,863
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2023 360,985
Unassigned Balance as of 7/1/2024 Est. 229,722
Orangevale Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District (OLLAD)
Reserve Fund Category
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/15 ' 527,320
Increase/Decrease 2015/16 13,034
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/16 540,354
Increase/Decrease 2016/17 138,134
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/17 678,488
Increase/Decrease 2017/18 43,091
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/18 721,579
Increase/Decrease 2018/19 104,416
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/19 825,995
Increase/Decrease 2019/20 -55,658
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/20 770,337
Page 2 of 5

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 147



Increase/Decrease 20/21 11,009
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/21 781,346
Increase/Decrease 21/22 112,427
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/22 893,773
Increase/Decrease 22/23 102,491
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/23 996,264
Increase/Decrease 23/24 Est -322,853
Debt Service & OLLAD Maintenance @ 7/1/24 Est 673,411

Kenneth Grove Landscaping and Lighting Assessment District 3748
Reserve Fund Category - used for the Kenneth Grove Landscape

Unrestricted
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/15 33,932
Increase/Decrease 2015/16 -26,042
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/16 7,890
Increase/Decrease 2016/17 4,204
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/17 12,094
Increase/Decrease 2017/18 4,110
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/18 16,204
Increase/Decrease 2018/19 6,892
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/19 19,521
Increase/Decrease 2019/20 3,575
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/20 23,096
Increase/Decrease 2020/21 _ 431
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/21 23,527
Increase/Decrease 2021/22 2,568
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/22 26,095
Increase/Decrease 2022/23 2,613
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/23 28,708
Increase/Decrease 2023/24 Est. 1,060
Assigned: Kenneth Grove Maintenance@ 7/1/24 Est. 29,768

Developer In-Lieu Fees - 88C
Reserve Fund Category as per Govt. Code Section 66477

Developer Deposits and Interest 2014/15 6,125
Reduction 2014/15 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/15 201,969
Developer Deposits and Interest 2015/16 63,696
Reduction 2015/16 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/16 265,665
Developer Deposits and Interest 2016/17 7,269
Reduction 2016/17 as per Resolutions -175,000
Restricted @ 7/1/17 97,934
Developer Deposits and Interest 2017/18 1,509
Reduction 2017/18 as per Resolutions 0
Restricted @ 7/1/18 99,443
Page 3 of 5

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16,2024 Page 148



Developer Deposits and Interest 2018/19

28,657

Reduction 2018/19 as per Resolutions

0

Restricted @ 7/1/19

128,101

Developer Deposits and Interest 2019/20

15,606

Reduction 2019/20 as per Resolutions

0

Restricted @ 7/1/20

143,707

Developer Deposits and Interest 2020/21

20,221

Reduction 2020/21 as per Resolutions

0

Restricted @ 7/1/21

163,928

Developer Deposits and Interest 2021/22

9,315

Reduction 2021/22 as per Resolutions

0

Restricted @ 7/1/22

173,243

Developer Deposits and Interest 2022/23

5,899

Reduction 2022/23 as per Resolutions

0

Restricted @ 7/1/23

179,142

Developer Deposits and Interest 2023/24 Est.

5,339

Reduction 2023/24 as per Resolutions Est.

120,000

Restricted @ 7/1/24 Est.

64,481

Park Development Fees - 332 |

Reserve Fund Category as per Govt. Code Section 66000 et seq.

Restricted @ 7/1/15

633,120

Developer Deposits and Interest 2015/16

89,230

Reduction 2015/16

0

Restricted @ 7/1/16

722,350

Developer Deposits and Interest 2016/17

105,978

Reduction 2016/17

-75,000

Restricted @ 7/1/17

753,328

Developer Deposits and Interest 2017/18

88,002

Reduction 2017/18

-360,000

Restricted @ 7/1/18

481,330

Developer Deposits and Interest 2018/19

66,914

Reduction 2018/19

-103,574

Restricted @ 7/1/19

444,670

Developer Deposits and Interest 2019/20

73,509

Reduction 2019/20

-136,806

Restricted @ 7/1/20

381,373

Developer Deposits and Interest 2020/21

66,691

Reduction 2020/21

0

Restricted @ 7/1/21

448,064

Developer Deposits and Interest 2021/22

58,975

Reduction 2021/22

-40,012

Restricted @ 7/1/22

467,027

Developer Deposits and Interest 2022/23

96,084

Reduction 2022/23

0

Restricted @ 7/1/23

563,111

Developer Deposits and Interest 2023/24 Est.

91,323

Page 4 of 5
Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting

May 16, 2024

Page 149



Reduction 2023/24 Est.

0

Restricted @ 7/1/24 Est.

654,434

Orangevale Recreation & Park District

Page 5 of 5
Board of Directors Meeting

May 16, 2024

Page 150



STAFF REPORT

z' » DATE: 5/16/24

X7 TO: Board of Directors

OVerarks | S

ORANGEVALE FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator

RECREATION &

PARK DISTRICT  SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 24-05-723, RESOLUTION ADOPTING
THE ORANGEVALE LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT

DISTRICT PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25.

RECOMMENDATION
Review the Draft Orangevale Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for
FY 2024/25. Approve Resolution 24-05-723, Resolution adopting the Preliminary Budget.

BACKGROUND
The Draft Orangevale Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY
2024/25 has been reviewed and supported by the District’s Admin & Finance Committee.

Starting Fund Balance:
e Anticipating FY 23/24 to end under in Expenses: $294,745
e Anticipating FY 23/24 to end over in Revenue: $2,507
e Preliminary Budget for 2024/25 is starting with an Estimated Fund Balance: $296,156
o Estimate includes budgeted Fund Balance for FY 23/24: -51,096

Highlight of expenses incorporated in the Budget:

e Additional Services and Supplies
o Increase in Chemicals, Electricity, Water, and Fuel
o Decrease in Land Services

e Capital Projects
o HVAC Replacements at Community Center and Building 2: $155,000
o Small Playground update at CCP: $55,000
o Turbine Blower: $9,000

No notable revenue changes
No adjustments to the $311,713 of Reserves

RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve Resolution 24-05-723, Resolution Orangevale Landscape and Lighting

Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY 2024/25.

ATTACHMENT
Resolution 24-05-723
Draft Orangevale Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY 2024/25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 151



>

fq_"'_“\

OVrarks

ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

i
i
i
!

RESOLUTION NO: 24-05-723

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ADOPTING THE ORANGEVALE
LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves were
reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2023/2024; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2024/2025,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

)] Salaries & Employee Benefits A
(2) Services & Supplies 626,540
3) Other charges 1,300
4) Fixed Assets 219,000
(a) Land
(b) Structures & Improvements 210,000
(c) Equipment 9,000

5) Expenditure transfers
(6) Contingencies
(7 Provision for reserve increases

TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS § 846840

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program will
be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and Property
Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues, and methods of financing for the 2024/2025 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 16th

day of May 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 152



LINM J3ANN/AEINO
1IN OL 193raNns SNOILYIYdOdddY - ‘3ON3YH34410 TVLOL
1INIT SNOILVIYd0dddY  0p8'9v8 $ INIWIHINOIY AYVY13OdNg TV10L

- S3AYZSTY ¥3IHLO

TLS'VEE $ 162'€L2 $ - $ 6987209 $ SIvIiOL - S3AY3STY TVH3INIO
658'¢e $ /6TeLT $ 951'962 $ JIGVIVAY S3ISVYIYONI 3AYIS3YH YO SNOISINOHC

3ONVIvd NN

- - ¥3HLO - S3ILIQOWWOD ¥3H10 - 08 LO3rdO
- - JONVHANNONT 0 SIIONIONILNOD HO4H SNOLLYIHdOdddY - 62 103rgo
clL'ile - SIL'LIE IVHINTO - 1N0 YO NI SYIJISNVHL ANN4VHLNI - 09 103rd0
JONV1vE CENEERE SISVIHONI €2/10/L 153 S3AYISTY - NI SH34SNvHL SANN4 - 65 LO3r90
aNnd aalsnravy JONVIVE 31NA3HOS ALIND3 ANNA - 1N0 SY34SNVYL SANNA - 0§ 103rdo
000'612 $ S13SSv d3axid - o0 103rg0 V1ol

000'6 IN3NCIND3 - ¥ 103rgo

(op8'ovs) $ ONIONVNI4 318V TIIVAVY TVLOL 000°012 SINIW3AOHdWI ANV SIANLONYLS - Z2¥ 1LO3rd0

- SQA3300dd NVOT Wd3L-ONOT AaLvIILST - NOILISINDOV ANV 1 - | ¥ 103rg0
(z6Z'¢L2) 3Sv3d03A NGV VAV 3ONV1vE NN S13SSv a3xXId - 0¥ 103rg0
- d3SY3403a 39 OL SIAYISTY TVIOL  00€'L $ S3SN ONIDNVNIH ¥3HLO0 - 0€ 103rd0 V10l

- 3SV34O3A SINYISIY HaHLO 00€’L S3IOVWVA/SIN3IW3Ioanr

SINJWSSISSY/SASNIOISAXYL

- 3SY34030 JONVHENNONI 0 IVdIONIYd ANV LS3HIINI

SININAVCIY 3SVIT ANV NVO1
- 3SVIY¥O3A SIAYISTY TvHINIO S3SN ONIONVNI4 ¥3HLO - 0€ 103rdo
a3asy3"d3a 38 OL SINY3SIA  0v5'929 $ S3IMddNS ANV S3DIAY3S - 0 LO3rdo
(eps'eLs) $ INNIATY d31VYINILST - $ S1143N38 33A0TdWI ANV SAVIVS - 01 103rgao

SINIFWIHINDIY 1390N9 3HL ONIONVNIL 40 SNYIW

JHNLIANIdX3 40 133r90 A9 SNOILVYIHdOHddY

({av110) v¥.€ ANNd ¥O0d 3TNATIHIOS SLNINWIFHINDIE ONIONVNIL

Jo1381q led 'g uoieasday ojeAsbueln

139ang WNIN3¥dd §202-¥20Z AVIA 1TvOSid

Page 153

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



000's 00082 0000 000'€L gor'LL 8v8’LL ALIDIELO3T3 ooL6L20e
00¢ 002 000’y 000t G.0€ yoL'e SIDHVHO LINY3d 0o0sglzoc
(000°t) 000G} 000V} 0009} €6E'6 evrTl S3MddNS NOLLYOIHdI| 00281202
0 000C 0 000 0 0 S3DIAY3S NOILYOIRANI ool8Leoc
0 00€T 000C 00€C cLE €821 S31TddNS IONVNILNIVIN ONISWNTd 00891202
0 000°L 009 000t SOy §G1 3OIAYIS IONVYNILNIVIN ONIGANTd 00.49120C
0 00S'L 00€'L 00S'L 5144 eor'L S317ddNS ONILNIVd 00291c0C
0 000'c 0052 000°€ 656l 90z A1ddNS IONVYNILNIVIN WILSAS TVOINVHOIN 0025120C
{o00't) 000'8 00S'€ 000'6 oLy ol¥'s ADIAHAS FONVNILNIVIN WILSAS TVOINVHOINW 0015120¢
(00072) 0002€ 000°0¢ 000'vE 0ze've 089'l€ S3ITddNS IONYNILNIVIN LNIFWIAOHWI ANV oozvieoe
(ooo'e) 000'8¢ 000'pi 000'2¥ 99z'L€ v66°¢E IOIAY3S FONVNILNIVIN INIWIAOHAWI ANV 00L¥1e0c
0 00S'} 00S'L 00S'L SIS 80. S3ITddNS IONVYNILNIVIA TvOId L0313 00zeLeoe
{oo0't) 000°€ 00€'} 000V Gee't 0 JOIAE3S FONVYNILNIVIN TvOIRILOT13 ooleileoe
0009 00029 000'8Y 000'9S €6LvE gLvle STVOINIHO 002zizoe
0 000'6 0009 000'6 956'8 SvL'G S3IMddNS ONVYNILNIVIN ONIiNg| 00211202
0 000CL 005’8 000Ct 181’6 Lig'e S3ITddNS TYINLINJILEOHVIENLINORIOY 00t0120C
0 00S°ZL 00S'2 00s'cl Gz0's €er'eL J0IAYIS TVHNLINDILYOHNVENLINOIOY|  00€0120¢
0 008 0s. 008 0LL GE SAIM €092020C
0 000"t 008 000'L bLLTL 0 SNOIS 20920202
{ooz) 0o€ 0 00S 60€ €l S$31NddNs 301440 00920202
(oo€) (074 0 00S 0 0 $S3NA dIHSY3anW3an 00190202
0 000°€ 000} 000°€ 09€'t voL'L IDIAY3S ONINIVHLUNOILYONA3|  005€020¢
aviio viie
j9bpng sabuey) jabpng s|enjoy-3s3 13bpng jeuly sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduasaq w3y}
leuld SZ-¥Z Ad wijaid §2-¥Z Ad vZ-€2 Ad ¥Z-€CT Ad €T-C¢C Ad ¢C T Ad jusunpiwwo)

(@v110) LOIMLSIA LNJWSSISSY ONILHOIT 8 3dVOSANYT ITVAIONVHO - VF.LE ANN4
1O111SIA M¥Vd '8 NOLLVIYHOFY FTVAIONVIO

139an9g WIN3¥d §202-¥202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1IV.L3A FNNLIANIdX3

Page 154

May 16,2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 00092 00022 00092 ¥0.'02 €012 S3DIAY3S ALIIND3S| 00425202
000 000G 0 0000+ 12T 692’1 S30IAY3S TvOT1|  004E5202
0 001G} 00L'sl 001Gl oze'el 11061 S3DIAY3S ONIYIIANION3| 00525202
00} 00S'€ 09%'c 00¥'€ 182°¢€ GS6'¢C S3DIAY3S ONILNNODDY| 00505202
000} 0006} 00081 0008} 20wl L2871 S3MddnS vIQOLSND|  0022€Z02
00z 00 00S'€ 005'€ 0L¥'E Sry S3ddNS TYNOSY3J/ONIHLO1D|  0071€202
0 005¢C 0022 005¢C vhv'l 186"} S3NddNS IONVYNILINIVW LNINDIND3 ¥3HLO| 00262202
0 005} 000'} 005t 658 220 30IAY3S SONVNILNIVW INSWJINO3 ¥3H1O0| 00162202
000'% 0058 0058 0052 88¢€'8 190'S S3NddNS IONVYNILINIVIN INIWNJINOI dOHS| 00282202
002 002" 002"} 005’} 185 6.5 S30INY3S FONVNILINIVW INSWdINO3 dOHS| 00182202
00€t) 002 005’} 00S°€ 6cL 185 INIWdIND3 S3SVAVSINIY|  006.220C
00T 00¥'92 000V 00072 8v8'5e z91'81 SINVOI¥EN1® 13Nd|  009€ZZ02
(00s) 0002 009'} 005C 72 ozL'l S7001 31avaN3dX3| 00922202
0 00S 00z 00S 8l 72 S3IMddNS INIVW diND3 NOILONYLSNOD| 00212202
00€ 009G 00€'S 00€S VISV 8z6'c S3MddNS JONVNILNIVW SAILOWOLNY| 00902202
(00s) 005'€ 00z2 000" Y3 SYP'E 3DIAY3S IONVNIINIVA SAILOWOLNY| 00502202
0 005’} 005} 005t zee) zee) FONVNILNIVIN W3LSAS INOHJI13L| 00661202
0v671 0¥6'08 000'1Z 00099 Z€5'€9 £88'2S d93LVM| 0086120C
(006) 00l 0 000t 0 0 3DIAY3S 3NOHdIN3L| 00461202
008 000Gt 000Gt 00C vl TL6EL ov0vl 30IAY3S VSOdSIa 3DVMIS| 00564202
0 000'€C 000 000€C 11922 GGv'8l 30IAY3S VSOJSIA/NOILO3TI00 3SN434|  00£61202
0 0000% 000 7€ 0000% 166'ZE ZEV €L N0 13N3 7/ Od1/SVYO WWANLYN| 00261202
av1io viie
18bpng safueyn jobpng s|enjay-js3 3obpng jeuid sjenjoy s|enjoy uonduosaqg way)
leutd §z-¥Z A4 WiRld SZ-PZ A4 PT-ET A ¥2-€2 Ad €222 Ad ZTIT Ad JuauwwWod

(@v110) 1O1MLSIA LNIWSSISSY ONILHOIT 2 3dVOSANYT ITYAIONVHO - V¥.€ ANNS
L1ORILSIA MAVd 8 NOLLVIHOZY TVAIONVHO

139an9 WIN3¥d §202-#202 Ad - 3TNAIHOS 1v1i3d F¥NLIANIAXS

Page 155

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ _38 ‘G6) _ _ 0 0 _ _ 000'S6 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 SNOILYINdONddY >ozmwz;zoo~ 00106262
0 0006 0006 0 0 0 0 _ £v193[q0
0 0006 0006 0 0 0 0 ININDIND3|  00£0EPEY
| | 1l | | | B IB |
_ 0 _ _88.85 L _ 000012 _ S¥8'68¢ _ _ 000°%L¥ _ _ 699°LL L _ 0 _ v elqo
000%92) 0000l2 G¥8'68¢ 000 vZ¥ 69911 0 S39N1ONYLS] 00z0zvey
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SONIdTiNg|  0010ZvTY
0 _ _ 0 00€°L TS; _ _ 00¢°L _ _ 09 L _ 0 o€ 199lq0
0 00€t 00€1 oo¢'t 09 0 SIN3WSSISSV/OIVXVL]  000S¥€0E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NOILdW3Aa349 NvOVANO8|  0002ZE0€
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3SNIdX3 1STH3LNI| 00012€0€
0 _ _ ov6' _ _ ov5‘9zZ9 010°80S _ _ 009'c29 _ _ G8Z'LLY _ _ 9LL'eSh _ 0z 19390
0 0 0 0 0 0 SIOUVHO ONDIEVd SO| 00296202
{oos't) 00091 00071 00S2} 0 G6ET S3ddNS - 3SN3dX3 ONILYHIdO ¥3IHLO| 00868202
(000's) 000°€E 000€Z 000'8€ 020°€Z £5.°02 S3DIAM3S TYNOISSIJ0dd ¥3HLO| 00165202
aviio veie
30bpng sabuey?) jobpng sjen)oy-}s3 jobpng jeutd sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduosaq way|
feuld §2-bZ Ad wijald SZ-¥Z Ad ¥2-€2 Ad ¥Z-€Z Ad €2-ZT Ad ZTIZ Ad JuBWHWWO

(@v110) LO1¥1SId LNJWSSISSY ONILHOIT B AdVISANYT ITVAIONVYHO - VL€ ANN

10141810 MHVd ' NOILLVIHOIIY TVAIONVEO

139ang WNIN3dd §202-¥202 Ad - 3TNA3HOS 1IVL13A F™NLIANIdXT

Page 156

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ 0 _ _58,#& _ _ ovs‘ors _ 651°668 _ _ 006°€61'L _ _ ¥10°68¥ _ _ oLL'eSP ; V #2¢ TVLOL GNNd
_ 0 _ _ag.té _ _ﬂmdv@ _ 651668 _ _ 006°€6L'L _ _ ¥10°68Y _ _ oLL'eSy _ $2£6.€6 ¥3LN3D ANN4
_ 0 _ _soo.ma L _ 0 _ 0 _ _ 000°6 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ 6.399[00
_o :o __o _o __o __o __o __ SINYISTY WHANID
av1io vrie
jabpng sabuey) 19bpng sjenjoy-)s3 jebpng |euld sjenjoy sjenjoy uonduasag way|
leutd §Z-vZ A4 wiaid §Z-vZ Ad ¥Z-€2 Ad ¥2-€Z Ad €222 Ad 2T A juBUIWWOD

(av170) LOIYLSIA LNIWSSISSY ONILHOIT ? 3dVOSANYT ITVAIONVHO - VP.LE ANNA
LORILSIA MAVd '8 NOILVIHOTFY TTVAIONVHO

139aN8g NIT3dd §202-¥20C A4 - 3T1NA3HOS 11vL13A JHNLIANIdX3

Page 157

May 16,2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



[0 | [zs2 | [(evs‘ess) | |(zoe’azs) | [fs6L'eLs) | |(s0s°168) ||(ev)'99s) _ V € TVLOL ONNd

[0 || zsz | [(evs'eLs) | |(coe'aLs) A | [(s0s"169) |[(€¥1998) _ ¥2€62£6 YILNIO QNN

[o || 22 | [(eve'sos) | |(eve'ses) | [(s68'898) | [(ee8v9s) |[fose1es) | 96 199[00

_ 1[0 | [0 |[0 |[0 |[0 —[o | [ 3 OAS NOILVINO3Y[  009+9696
_ |[Zse ] [evo89s) | [€v9895) | [(687895) | [(6687795) |[fess 1 98] | | INJFWSSISSV WIO3dS|  00€09696
[o |0 | |(o0s's) | |(6s9'2) ~|[loos') ][(z09'e2) |(z8v'y) _ 639390

[ |[© | [© |[0 BIE |[0 |[© | ¥3HLO TVINIH ONIQUNE[  006Z¥6v6
_ BIE | [008¥) | [(6s9) | [0067) |[Zog'el —|[sv¥) | [ SINOONT LSTHLINI] 0001 ¥6v6

av1io viie
196png sobuey) 196png sjemoy 196png jeuld siemoy sienjoy uonduosag way|
[eutd §z-vZ A4 wijeid SZ-VZ A4 953 $ZETAd ¥2-€2 Ad €2-2Z A4 ZT1Z Ad JueunIWWOD

(@v110) LO11SIa LNINSSIASSY ONILHOIT B 3dVISANYT ITVAIONVYO - VP.LE NN

LOI1SIA MHVd ? NOILVI™NOZAY FTVAIONVEO

139ang WIN3dd §202-¥202 A4 - 3TNAIHOS 1IvV.1i3A SNNIAIA

Page 158

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



STAFF REPORT

g i DATE: 5/16/24
<< 2% TO: Board of Directors
OVrarks

ORANGEVALE FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator

REATION
lI}:IEK DI?]%IC% SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 24-05-724, RESOLUTION ADOPTING
THE KENNETH GROVE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/25.

RECOMMENDATION
Review the Draft Kenneth Grove Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget
for FY 2024/25. Approve Resolution 24-05-724, Resolution adopting the Preliminary Budget.

BACKGROUND
The Draft Kenneth Grove Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY
2024/25 has been reviewed and supported by the District’s Admin & Finance Committee.

Starting Fund Balance:
e Anticipating FY 23/24 to end under in Expenses: $1,060

e Preliminary Budget for 2024/25 is starting Estimated Fund Balance: $23,734
o Estimate includes unused budgeted Fund Balance for FY 23/24: $22,674

Highlight of expenses incorporated in the Budget:
e Capital Projects
o Landscape Sculpture(s): $16,000

No notable revenue changes
No adjustments to the $5,932 of Reserves

RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve Resolution 24-05-724, Resolution Kenneth Grove Landscape and Lighting

Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY 2024/25.

ATTACHMENT
Resolution 24-05-724
Draft Kenneth Grove Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Preliminary Budget for FY 2024/25

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 159



ORANGEVALE
RECREATION &
PARK DISTRICT

6826 Hazel Avenue
Orangevale, CA 95662
916-988-4373
OVparks.com

RESOLUTION NO: 24-05-724

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT ADOPTING THE KENNETH GROVE
LANDSCAPING & LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025

WHEREAS, all necessary estimates of revenues, expenditures and reserves were
reviewed and filed for ending fiscal year 2023/2024; and

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED in accordance with Code Section
29089 of the Government Code, the preliminary budget for the fiscal year 2024/2025,
be and is hereby adopted in accordance with the following:

(D Salaries & Employee Benefits $
(2) Services & Supplies 6,250

3) Other charges

4) Fixed Assets
(a) Land
(b) Structures & Improvements 16,00
(c) Equipment

5 Expenditure transfers

(6) Contingencies

(7) Provision for reserve increases

TOTAL BUDGET REQUIREMENTS $ 22,250

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the means of financing the expenditure program will
be by monies derived from Revenue to Accrue, Fund Balance Available and Property
Assessments and Certificates of Participation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed preliminary budget be and is hereby
adopted in accordance with the listed attachment which show in detail the approved
appropriations, revenues, and methods of financing for the 2024/2025 fiscal year:

ON A MOTION by Director - , seconded by Director
, the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted this 16th

day of May 2024 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Chair, Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 160



LINIT I3ANN/AE3AO
LINIT OL 103raNS SNOILYIIdO¥ddY
LINIT SNOLLVIYdOHddY

M

0sz'ze 3

vp0'El $

999'62

$ SIv1OL -

2L $ 22991 $ - $

vEL'EZ

$ JFNGVIIvAY
3ONV1vE NN

d3H10 -

JONVHGINNONIT B

2E6'S

2€6's

IVY3INGO -

JONVIvd EERSTERRE(

aNN4 a3isnrav

SISVIUONI

(zeool)

(829°9) $

02/10/L 30 SV

IONVIVE

EEINERER] -
3INA3HIS ALINO3 NN -

“o009k  $

ONIONVNIH 37GVIIVAY TV1OL

SA33004d NYO1 WH31-ONO1 G3LVAILSE -

3SV3YO3A 18V IIVAV FONVIVE ANN4

d3Sv3y033d 39 OL SIAYISTA TVLOL - $

3Sv3y03A SAAYISIY ¥3HLO -

ISY3HO3A FIONVHEWNONS -

3SY3HO3IA SIAYISTIH TVHINIO
Q3Sv3ayO03ad 39 OL SIAYISTY
INNIATY A31VINILST - $

$

000529

SINIWIHINDIY 1390N49 IHL ONIONVNI4 40 SNYIN

-ION3H344IQ TV1IOL
INIWIHIND3N Adv139ang V101

S3AYISIY ¥3H1O0
SIAYISTY TWI3INIO

S3SYIUONI IAYISTH HO4 SNOISINOYd

S3ILIGOWWOD ¥3H1O0 - 08 1LO3rg0

000°9}

SAIONIONIINOD ¥04 SNOILVIIdOdddY - 6. 103rd0

1IN0 YO NI SH33ISNVHL ANNSVHLNI - 09 LO3rd0

NI SY34SNVHL SANN4 - 65 L03rg0
1IN0 SYIISNVAL SANN4 - 0§ 103ra0

S13SSV d3xXid - 0¥ 103rg0 V10l
INJNIND3 - €¥ 103r80

SINIWIAOCHAWI NV STANLONALS - 2¥ 103f80

NOILISINDOV ANV1 - Ly 103rg0
S13SSV Q3xid - 0¥ L03rd0

S3SN ONIONVNI4 ¥3H10 - 0€ 103rd0 V101

SIOVNVA/SININOANC

SINIWSSISSVY/SIASNIOIVSIXVL
TVdIONIYd NV LSFHILNI

SINJWAVIH ISV ANY NVO1

S3SN ONIONVNIH ¥3H10 - 0¢ 1LO3rdo

S3NddNS ANV S3DIAYSS - 02 103rdo

S1I43N38 FIA0TdNT ANV STI-IYIYS - 01 103rdo

FANLIAN3IAX3 40 103Arg0 Ag9 SNOILYIHdOYddY

L1O141S1d LNINSSIASSY JAOUO HLZNNIM

gv.¢ ANNd Y04 3TNAIHIS SLNINFAFINDIA ONIONVNIL

PIISIq ied '3 uonealday ajeAsbuelQ

139aNg WIN3dd §20¢-¥202 ¥V3A TvOSId

Page 161

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



0 (000°91) 000'9} 0 0 0 0 Zv10elqo
0 _ _Soo.w () _ ﬁooodr _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ _ 0 _ q _ _ S3AUNLONYLS| 0020Zvey ;
0 (ozs) 0szZ‘e 0L9'y 0cL's yL9'c 896'C 0z 39lq0
0 0 0 0 0 0 S3IOUVHI ONDIYVYd SO| 00296202
0 0ol 0 00l 0 0 S1S0D SSVdWOO| 00516202
08 0ze 0 oov 0 0 S3IDINYITS - ISNIADX3 ONILYHIHO ¥3H1O0| 0066820C
ooe 003 0 0o 0 0 SAVIAHIS TYNOISSIH0dd ¥3HLO| 0016520¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 SIDINY3AS ONIFIYOSNVYHL| 0029520C
0 ool 0 (Vo] 0 0 SIAVINYIS TvO31| 001€SC0C
0 000! 0001 0001 0001 000t SIDIAGAS ONIFYIIANIONT| 0052520¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 SAJIAYAS NOILOITIOO/LNIWSSISSY|  0020520C
(og) 089 049 059 9 695 SIDINGAS ONILNNODIOV| 00505202
0 0 0 0 0 0 ddnsS LNIVIN D3 dOHS| 00282202
00¢ 000} 0001 (10748 09€l 99L SINVOIHEN ® 13N4| 009€220C
0 0 0 0 0 SAVIAYIAS FONVNALNIVIN OLNY| 00502202
(ooy) 0s8 0S4 052 089 €€9 Y31lvM| 00861¢0C
0 0 0 0 0 0 S3ITddNS ONILNIVd| 00291202
(ozs) 009 0 08 0 0 S3ANddNS TvHNLINDILHOHAVHNLINDIROY|  00+0120C
(00g) 000} 002k 005 0 0 JOIAE3S TVINLTINOILYOH/IVINLINDIYOY| 00€0L20C
0 0s 0 0s 0 0 SNOIS| 209.0¢0C
0S 0s 0S 001 0 0 $317ddNS 301440| 00920202
0 00¥ 0 0oy 0 0 SADILON TVOIVONISILEINAY| 0050020¢
j396png sabuey) j19bpng wijead sjenydy-is3 jebpng sjenjoy s|enjoy uonduoseq way
feuly SZTZ Ad ¥2-€2 Ad leuly €2-22 Ad ZzlT Ad juswwiwod
S92 Ad v2-€¢ Ad

INIWSSASSY IAOHO HLANNIN - av.L¢ NN
1O14.1S10 MiVd ? NOILLVIHOFY ITVAIONVHEO

139an9g WIN3dd S2-¥202 A4 - 3TNA3IHIS Iv.Li3A JAUNLIANIIXS

Page 162

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ 0 _ _amm.m: 0sz‘ze _ _ 0.9'v _ 0cL's _ _ $19‘¢ 896°C _ g ¥.€ V10l aNNd
0 (ozs‘9l) 0sz'zz 0L9'Y _ 0¢cL's vL9e _ 896°C 62£6.€6 ¥IALNID ANNA
0 0 0 0 __o _ 0 __o ; 64 199(q0
0 0 0 _ * 0 _o _ 0 0 _ SNOILYINdOYddY AONIONILNOD| 0010664
jobpng sabuey) j9bpng wiald sjenyoy-is3 19bpng s|en)oy sjenjoy uonduasag way
leuly SZ-¥Z Ad $2-€2 Ad leuid £2-2Z Ad 21T A4 JUSWHLLILLIOD
SZ-vZ A4 $2-€2 A4

INIWSSISSV IAOUO HLINNIN - 8. ANNA
1O14LSIA MAVd 8 NOLLYVIAUOIN FTVAIONVEO

1390Nn8 WIN3¥d S2-¥202 A4 - 3TNAIHOS vL13A JHNLIANIdX3

Page 163

May 16, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



_ ) _ _ 0 _ _auwﬁ _ _ _ |(8z9's) _ _:.2.9 ; |(egs°s) _ g ¥.¢ TVLOL ANN4

[0 [{o | |(829°S) _ # _ _32.3 _ |(282"9) _ _anm.& _ 62£6.£6 ¥ILNID QNN

T. ; T. __8#.3 _ _ :aue.a _ _aov.a :68.3 _ 96 399[q0

[0 [0 | [(ezv's) | |[(ez¥'s) | |(8z¥'e) | |(c8e’s) | [ LNIWSS3SSV vI03dS| 00£09696

|0 |0 | [(002) || | [(002) _ Ewe |[(s1) _ ¥6 109190

[0 1[0 | [(002) ][ | [(002) | [(ggg) | [(Ls1) | [ 3WOONI LSIYIINI] 000L¥6¥6 |
AA0UO HLINNIM aNnd

jobpng sebuey) 3obpng s|enjoy-3s3 1ebpng sjenjoy sjenjoy way
leutd §Z-pZ Ad widdd GZ-¥Z A4 YZ-SZ A4 [euld Z-€Z Ad £2-22 Ad ZT1Z Ad uawWHWWo

LNIINSSISSV IAOUD HLANNIN - 8¥.2¢ ANNA
LOIRM1SIA MiiVd 8 NOILVIHOIY FTVAIONVHO

139ang WIN3¥d §2-¥202 A4 - 3TNA3IHOS 1IVL3A INNIAIN

Page 164

May 16,2024

Board of Directors Meeting

Orangevale Recreation & Park District



STAFF REPORT

g o DATE: 5/16/24
<7 = TO: Board of Directors
OVrarks

ORANGEVALE FROM: Becky Herz, District Administrator

II}.EEI%%&IIS-IT%QC%E SUBJECT: APPROVAL TO AUTHERIZE THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO
SIGN THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ORANGEVALE
RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT BENEFICIARY AGREEMENT
FOR AMERICAN RESCURE PLAN ACT OF 2021 WITH THE COUNTY

OF SACRAMENTO

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the District Administrator sign the First Amendment to the Orangevale Recreation and
Park District Beneficiary Agreement of American Rescure Plan Act of 2021 with the County of

Sacramento.

BACKGROUND

The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) was signed into law on March 11, 2021. The
District entered into a contract with Sacramento County on July 11, 2023 to receive funds on the
District’s behalf from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds.

The original agreement is here being amended to increase the maximum payment to the District
by $167,000.

RECOMMENDED MOTION
| move we approve to authorize the District Administrator to sign the First Amendment to the

Orangevale Recreation and Park District Beneficiary Agreement of American Rescure Plan Act of
2021 with the County of Sacramento

ATTACHMENT
First Amendment to the Orangevale Recreation and Park District Beneficiary Agreement of

American Rescure Plan Act of 2021

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 165



PARKS-ARPA-008/A1

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK
DISTRICT BENEFICIARY AGREEMENT FOR AMERICAN RESCURE PLAN
ACT OF 2021

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made and entered into this day of

2024, by and between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, a polltlcal subdnvnsnon
of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "County”, and Orangevale
Recreation and Park District, a Special Park District, hereinafter referred to as

“Grantee”.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA), signed into
law on March 11, 2021, established the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds under sections 602 and 603 of the Social Security Act to help
states and localities address the economic and health consequences of the
pandemic; and

WHEREAS, Sacramento County received approximately $301.4 million
from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds in two
installments, with 50% ($150 million) provided in May 2021 and the balance
delivered approximately 12 months later; and

WHEREAS, County and Grantee have previously entered into an
agreement on July 11, 2023, to provide for the scope of services identified in
Exhibit A attached to the original Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2024-0424,
under which, and on behalf of the County of Sacramento, the Director of
Regional Parks, or designee, is authorized to negotiate, execute, administer,
amend, and terminate ARPA agreements for the services to be provided by
Grantee; and

WHEREAS, County and Grantee now desire to formally amend said
Agreement to increase the maximum payment listed in Exhibit C.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement is amended as follows:
I. COMPENSATION

The maximum payment to Grantee is increased from $200,000 to
$367,000.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 166



PARKS-ARPA-008/A1
II. REAFFIRMATION

In all other respects, the above referenced Agreement, as
amended, remains in full force and effect.

III. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, as amended, and any attachments hereto,
constitute the entire understanding between the County and
Garntee concerning the subject matter contained herein.

IV. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Amendment shall be deemed effective as of the date first
written above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to
be duly executed as of the day and year first written above.

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, GRANTEE,

By: By:
Director, Regional Parks District Administrator,
Orangevale Recreation and
Park District
Date: Date:

CONTRACT AND GRANTEE TAX STATUS
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY COUNTY COUNSEL

By: Date:

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 167



PARKS-ARPA-008/A1

EXHIBIT C-1 to Agreement
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
hereinafter referred to as "County,” and
ORANGEVALE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT,
hereinafter referred to as "Grantee”

COMPENSATION

1. MAXIMUM PAYMENT TO GRANTEE
The Maximum Total Payment Amount under this Agreement is: $367,000.

2. The Maximum Total Payment Amount under this Agreement is based on the
certifications and representations made by Grantee as to the total negative
economic impacts experienced as a result of the pandemic as specified in Exhibit
F. The US Treasury and County will require the applicant to repay any grant
funds received in excess of Grantee’s need or used for purposes other than
allowed for under this Agreement.

3. PAYMENTS

The County shall reimburse Grantee for eligible negative economic impacts
incurred by Grantee and requested for reimbursement in accordance with the
Compensation Limitations provision of this Agreement, County shall address and
submit payments to Grantee at address in the Notice provision of this

Agreement.

Orangevale Recreation & Park District - Board of Directors Meeting May 16, 2024 Page 168



